* for identification purpose only {£ { % 5l

SCUD GROUP LIMITED,
REBREB AR QA

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RESHST BBRAA])
(Stock Code f& {755 : 01399)

5(/5_1{7




- CONTENT

CORPORATE PROFILE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B AR BT

4 .
GABREEM
- 2EKEX

NT OF FINANCIAL POSITION £ FRERBRRR
DLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN Eq_UI‘fY REEREER
ONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FERERER
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& M| EME

FINANCIAL SUMMARY BB E



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBEERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

CORPORATE PROFILE
AL

Established in 1997, the “SCUDFRERR"” brand has now grown into
a mobile digital product accessories brand to provide comprehensive
power solutions for mobile technological products including mobile
communication, mobile digital, smart electronic and multimedia
products. The “SCUDRZERE" brand has been focusing on the R&D
and application of lithium-ion battery, and on the back of its self-
developed and self-designed power management system as well as
advanced technology in battery module packaging, the brand stands
at the forefront of the industry, recognised as a highly reputable
brand in the safety and quality in its “SCUDREER" lithium-ion
battery modules. The “SCUDFRERE” brand was crowned as one of
the “China Top Brand” in 2004, selected as one of the “China’s 500
Most Valuable Brands” in 2005 and recognised as a “China Famous
Trademark” in 2006. In the same year, SCUD Group Limited (“SCUD",
the “Company” or, together with its subsidiaries, “SCUD Group” or
the “Group”) was listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), turning over a new leaf
for the “SCUDFRERR" brand.

The “SCUDREER” brand and ODM are the two core business
segments of SCUD Group, supplying high quality lithium-ion
battery products to the domestic retail market and manufacturers
of well-known telecommunication brands respectively. The Group's
manufacturing industrial park located in Fuzhou with land area of
over 100,000 m? is well-equipped with extensive and advanced
facilities. Accumulated with years of production and management
experiences, the industrial park has built up a refined and modernized
manufacturing system and hence become one of the most important
R&D and production bases for lithium-ion battery module products,
mobile communication and digital product accessories nationwide.
Subsidiaries of the Company have been accredited with the ISO9000
International Quality Accreditation and 1SO14000 Environmental
Management System Certification; their products have obtained well-
recognised certifications from UL, FCC, TUV, CE, CB, PSE and KC.

The “SCUDFRFERE"” brand has built up a comprehensive distribution
system across China via its extensive distribution channels and use of
e-commerce platforms, with an ambition of stepping up continuous
overseas expansion, further strengthening its foothold in China while
eyeing international markets at the same time, and dedicating itself to
provide quality “SCUDFRERR" products for consumers worldwide. The
ODM business of the Group mainly supplies quality lithium-ion battery
modules for original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital and
smart electronic products by entering into the supply chain systems
of well-known mobile technology products domestically and abroad.
The rapid development of the Group’s ODM business in recent years
enables SCUD Group to become one of the leading enterprises in the
industry. ODM clients mainly include Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Lenovo,
ZTE, Xiaomi and TCL.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE20165F12A31HILEE
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated) (B BB - UAREFITHIR)
2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000 % Change
ARBTRE AR®TT EZ3HEHL

(+/-)
Turnover ] 6,061,477 4,509,441 +34.4
(Loss)/profit for the year FEBR), &5 (124,833) 23,536 -630.4
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to ViN/NEIEZZ =N
owners of the Company ELFE(EE) w5 (118,951) 38,168 -41.7
(Losses)/earnings per share Sl (EER), B
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREEARES) (10.91) 3.50 -411.7
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GRS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (E 78
FiCodan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited %
¥ &Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited,

REGISTERED OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (name changed from Codan
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited to Conyers Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited with effect from 30 March 2017)

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

SCUD Industrial Park

Fuzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone
No. 98 Jianbin Avenue East
Mawei District, Fuzhou
Fujian Province, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Fang Jin (Chairman)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)

Feng Ming Zhu (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)
Huang Yan (resigned with effect from 25 August 2016)

Non-Executive Directors

Zhang Li (appointed as an Executive Director on 31 December 2010
and redesignated as a Non-Executive Director with effect from
25 August 2016)

Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong

Wang Jian Zhang

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Fang Jin
Yeung Mun Tai

LEGAL ADVISER

Reed Smith Richards Butler
20th Floor, Alexandra House
18 Chater Road, Central
Hong Kong

B201743 A30H B ER)
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.0.Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B EEm
BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants BALEEREHREBERAH
25th Floor, Wing On Centre BARETHER 15
111 Connaught Road, Central KEH 251
Hong Kong
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES
Loke Yu (Chairman) g (ERE)
Wang Jing Zhong TR
Wang Jian Zhang TE=E
Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016) MR4E(E52016F9 1 ARIER(T)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND FHEEERREEER
NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Loke Yu (Chairman) BEEMR(ER)
Fang Jin paka
Wang Jing Zhong Faa
Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016) MRHE(B2016F9 A1 HBESR(T)
RESUMPTION COMMITTEE EREES
Loke Yu (Chairman) BEgm(ER)
Wang Jing Zhong TR
Wang Jian Zhang TE=E

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016)
Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited (Note)
Royal Bank House - 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Note:

The name of the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in the
Cayman Islands has been changed from “Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited” to “SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited”
with effect from 12 May 2017.

The address of the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in
the Cayman Islands has also been changed from “4th Floor, Royal
Bank House, 24 Shedden Road, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1110, Cayman Islands” to “Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden
Road, P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman, KY1-1110, Cayman Islands”
with effect from 12 May 2017.

R4 (E520165F9 1 HiREST)
&7 (B820165F8 25 H#EEERT)

RiTBFEERE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited (Ff5E)
Royal Bank House - 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

B aE:

RRBRASEHENRNBPERSENEHE B
[Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited % % & SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited]
B2017F5 812 B B4R -

RRARRHASHESHRMBP SR BN T A
[4th Floor, Royal Bank House, 24 Shedden Road,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1110, Cayman
Islands ] % & A[Royal Bank House - 3rd Floor, 24
Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1110, Cayman Islands] * B2017F5812H
R o
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22 Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Fujian Haixia Bank

China Merchants Bank
China Construction Bank
Xiamen International Bank
Bank of China

WEBSITE

http://www.scudgroup.com
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”,
each a "“Director”) of the Company, | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Company for the full year from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2016 (the “Review Period”).

Looking back into 2016, SCUD Group focused on the R&D and
manufacturing of lithium-ion battery modules, which as the main
product of the Group have been used in smartphones, laptops and
tablets, wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage
and other fields. In addition, the Group's products also cover power
management module, lithium-ion battery cells, precision structural
parts and other fields. Of the two core business of the SCUD Group,
i.e. ODM business and own-brand business, the performance of ODM
business was outstanding in the Review Period. With the introduction
of the Group’s products in customers’ supply chain systems, the
Company further strengthened the breadth and depth of cooperation
with domestic customers, thus further consolidating its position as
a major supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for domestic mobile
phones and digital products. At present, the battery products of SCUD
are mainly used in smartphones and power banks. During the Review
Period, the revenue from such products accounted for approximately
76.0% and 9.3% in the Company’'s total revenue, respectively.
SCUD is currently a battery supplier for major domestic smartphone
brands including Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Xiaomi, Lenovo, ZTE, TCL and
Tian Power. Given the slowed growth of the global smartphone
market demand, three domestic brands, i.e. Huawei, OPPO and vivo,
recorded substantial increase in their revenue for 2016, which drove
the continued increase in the Group's revenue from ODM business in
2016. During the Review Period, the shipment of the Group’s ODM
mobile phone battery modules was approximately 187 million pieces,
representing an increase of over 37% as compared with that in 2015.
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The most important work for the Group in 2016 was to look for
further partners for cooperation and improve production efficiency
and process. In respect of customers, the stable increase in orders
placed by existing customers and the orders from new customers
became the main drivers for the Group’s business growth. As to
supply, the Group obtains more stable quality assurance through
selection of close partners. In terms of production, due to the
weakened cost advantage of consumer electronics manufacturing
caused by the increase in operating costs as a result of the continuous
rise of production costs in first-tier cities in the PRC, the Group
solves the problem with human resources through automating its
production lines. Therefore, in 2016, the Group proactively optimised
the business structure and re-adjusted the business layout to gradually
reduce investment in upstream battery cell business and concentrate
resources to consolidate the foundation of ODM business, to make
preparations for future development. Moreover, to ensure product
and work safety is the Group’s primary task. We have always ensured
production and operation in a way in which we shoulder social
responsibilities to provide high quality products for customers and
offer a safe and comfortable working environment for staff.

Apart from implementation of measures to improve operation
efficiency and productivity in the year, the management engaged
a professional adviser to assist the Company to improve its internal
control system to enhance the Group’s corporate governance. The
management is of the view that good corporate governance is very
important to maintain and enhance the confidence of the Company’s
shareholders, and the key to the development of the Group’s business
and safeguarding of the interests of the Company’s shareholders.
The Group will enhance the corporate value, transparency and sense
of responsibility through implementation of rules and regulations,
strict enforcement of internal control, improvement of risk prevention
and management and prompt disclosure of data in a public and
comprehensive manner, so as to maintain good corporate governance.
During the Review Period, the Company further optimised the
composition of the Board by engagement of two non-executive
Directors with experience in law and accounting respectively, with a
view to achieving best interests for the Company and its shareholders
relying on the valuable experience shared with the Board by the non-
executive Directors team who have extensive experiences in business
and with professional background.
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Looking ahead, the Group will adjust its development strategies in
response to market movements and invest more resources in R&D
and production of lithium-ion battery module products with high
quality, so as to further consolidate and raise the market status of the
Group and establish stronger presence of its brand. The Group will
proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-ion batteries in
new industries and new fields and grasp opportunities for access to
the market. In addition, the Group attaches great importance to the
safety of using batteries for electronic products. In the pursuit of high
efficiency and endurance of battery, it is required to conduct more
rigorous review of the safety of battery to ensure that all the batteries
delivered meet the high safety standards. Riding on high quality
customer resources, quality assurance and technology development
capacity, SCUD Group will be committed to the provision of safe,
portable and endurable green energy products for customers and
consumers.

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Management team, |
would like to thank all SCUD’s staff, directors, customers, suppliers,
all shareholders and institutions providing professional services to the
Company for all your support to SCUD throughout these challenging
times.
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the information published by the market research firm
IDC, smartphones recorded global sales of approximately 1.47 billion
units in 2016, representing a growth of only approximately 2.3% as
compared with the approximately 1.44 billion units in 2015, of which
the top five mobile phone manufacturers in terms of total sales were
Samsung, Apple, Huawei, OPPO and vivo, respectively. The growth
in sales of smartphones was positive but the rate of growth was far
lower than that in 2015. The significant decrease in global shipment
of smartphones was mainly attributable to the drop of shipment of
smartphones in the developed markets. However, the shipment of
smartphones in emerging markets continued to grow. The current
growth in the smartphone market is more reliant on the demand for
replacement instead of new purchase of mobile phones.

The latest survey on the global mobile phone market by the market
research firm Counterpoint indicates that the shipment of Chinese
branded mobile phones in 2016 hit a historic new high at 465 million
units, representing an increase of 6% year-on-year, higher than the
year-on-year increase of approximately 2.3% in the market.

The total shipment of Chinese branded mobile phones contributed to
nearly one third of global shipment. Domestic mobile phone brands
gradually gained a share in the domestic mobile phone market with
fierce competition by leveraging on their advantage in respect of
understanding the user habits and consumption psychology of mobile
phone consumers in the PRC. Domestic premium mobile phone
brands, riding on their own technical advantage and strong market
base, have gradually enlarged their shares in the domestic market and
consolidated their market positions. It is expected that, in the next
few years, the PRC domestic mobile phone brands will continue to
gain more share in the domestic mobile phone market.

Lithium-ion battery can be regarded as a critical factor for the
rapid development of small and medium-sized electric equipment
including smartphones, wearable devices, tablets and laptops and the
enhancement of battery capacity, safety and stability is currently the
most important part of the development and application of lithium-ion
battery. Given their higher brand awareness and popularity along
with the surging demand for mid- to high-end smartphones, domestic
smartphone manufacturers have proactively rolled out more mid- to
high-end models embedded with advanced hardware and functions.
Regardless of the powerful hardware of smartphone, all the functions
should be maintained with a battery. Smartphones with high-end
hardware and large screens will accelerate battery drain and require
batteries with better quality and longer endurance.
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At present, smartphone manufacturers have slowed down their
pace in innovation and the efficiency of the current mobile phone
processor has outpaced the demands of general users. However,
mobile phone users have urgent demands for endurance of battery
and thus the significance of mobile phone battery endurance is self-
evident. Therefore, to improve mobile phone endurance through
increase of battery capacity is a key problem to be first considered
by smartphone manufacturers in development of new models. Over
the years, the battery capacity of smartphone has steadily increased.
Bottleneck has occurred in respect of energy density of battery due
to the lack of breakthrough in terms of battery technology. Without
remarkable enhancement of battery technology, rapid charge
technology has been gradually applied in new models, while most
smartphone manufacturers still rely on increase in battery capacity
to improve battery endurance of mobile phones. However, high-
capacity battery results in large volume, which works against the
development of mobile phones towards light and thin design. Mobile
phone manufacturers expect that the development of new batteries
with high energy density by upstream battery manufacturers may
be an effective method to solve the problem of insufficient battery
endurance. Thus, it is a great competitive edge for battery and mobile
phone manufacturers to improve battery’s energy density.

The demand growth in the global lithium-ion battery market is
mainly from consumer electronics, which are featured by fast update
and short use cycle, giving rise to larger demands of consumers for
replacement of similar electronics each year. This drives the growth
of demand for mobile phones, laptops, tablets and other consumer
electronics and further promote the continued growth of demand for
relevant lithium-ion battery. At present, the demand in the mobile
phone lithium-ion battery market have become stable. However, with
the rise in demands of consumers for mobile internet, mobile payment
and mobile gaming, the overall demand growth of mobile phone
lithium-ion battery will maintain stable in the future, while tablets
and laptops will be additional drivers for the demand for lithium-
ion battery. In recent years, smart wearable devices have become
a new hot spot in consumption of electronics thanks to their rapid
development and diversity. In the future, the quantity of wearable
devices is expected to continue growing and there will be a significant
increase in the demand for batteries with a smaller volume and longer
endurance. Against the backdrop of energy price rise and increasingly
strict environmental protection requirements, the future application of
lithium-ion battery will be extended to the markets of electric vehicles
and electric tools. However, the problems to be overcome urgently
include cost reduction, enhancement of energy density of battery, etc.
The aforementioned areas represent enormous potential markets for
lithium-ion battery.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

SCUD Group engages in the development, manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules for smartphones, tablets and other smart
electronic products as well as the provision of all-round power supply
solutions for various consumer electronic products. The Group is in
the industry leading position among domestic professional lithium-
ion battery module manufacturers in terms of technology, production
capacity and sales volume. After years of independent R&D, SCUD
Group has mastered the core technologies for manufacturing
lithium-ion battery and possesses industry leading capacities for R&D
of battery management system and R&D and manufacturing of battery
modules. The Group ensures good quality and product safety through
automated production and enjoys high quality customer resources.
The sound partnership with various international renowned bare
battery cell producers and telecommunications product manufacturers
has become a major strength of the Group in developing its lithium-
ion battery business.

The current operations of SCUD Group mainly comprise its ODM
business and own-brand business. The ODM business mainly
supplies lithium-ion battery modules to manufacturers of well-
known telecommunication brands at home and abroad, while the
own-brand business mainly engages in the sale of power banks and
mobile phone accessories under “SCUD7R E B&” brand in the PRC.
At present, approximately 79% of the Group’s revenue is derived
from the ODM business mainly serving renowned smartphone and
tablet manufacturers at home and abroad which enjoy stable shares
in the end market. In view of the rapid growth in the end market
for smartphones and tablets in recent years, the ODM business is
expected to account for a higher proportion of the Group’s total
revenue and continue to drive our sales and profit growth in the
future.

12

FE o

REBREEZ AN  LENHEEARERT
BRTFREMEEEETFEMNERFELEE
REANHEREFTERRUTENERBARIR -
FERAE R FE O REREET - REENHK
i~ EREEHEEENITRALMA - REREE
ZERBBETMEZE T HEBRETFE %0
Riff - MAETERENELEERRAELENIRE
IR EELERE ) BB B PLAERSE
RIFBEREMmZERE  BABRENEPER - R
ERAZZEBEMNAECLEECENBMERRE
BRFERIOAIERE KAKEERERTE
MEB—ERES -

REBREBMEAEZHAMAERENX - D HIRREK
BEREEXEB(ODMER) - TEABRNIINAE R
REAER RS HEERTEREE UREES
MIBETS - EELA[SCUDRER | REHRBEANEER
BRLFHEEN - BRI SEA79%HEARE
ODMETS - XZERFEHRBININNE MRS 8L F i
R REMEER - EARTERNLmME - N EE
NEREFHEFREMTSAFORFELR - B
ODMEBR AL EB AWM ARG FE— PRS-
BEXAEBRKEERMBIERE S -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER RN

During the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (the
“Review Period”), the Group’s consolidated turnover amounted
to approximately RMB6,061.5 million (2015: RMB4,509.4 million),
representing a growth of approximately 34.4% from 2015. The loss
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately RMB119.0
million (2015: profit attributable to owners of the Company RMB38.2
million), dropped by approximately 411.7% from 2015. Basic and
diluted losses per share was approximately RMB10.91 cents (2015:
Basic and diluted earnings per share RMB3.50 cents). The ODM
business recorded a turnover of approximately RMB4,788.4 million
(2015: RMB3,518.4 million), accounting for approximately 79.0%
(2015: 78.0%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. The own-brand
business recorded a turnover of approximately RMB680.4 million
(2015: RMB620.0 million), accounting for approximately 11.2% (2015:
13.7%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover.

ODM Business

The Group’s ODM business mainly focuses on providing all-round
power supply solutions to manufacturers of renowned smartphone
and tablet brands at home and abroad. Capitalising on its experience
in manufacturing lithium-ion batteries and R&D on application
technology, the Group's experienced ODM product development team
is able to jointly develop, design and optimise battery solutions that
best align with customer needs. Backed by powerful manufacturing
capacity, reliable quality assurance system, premium bare battery
cells, state-of-the-art protection circuit design and precise production
process control, SCUD has secured a leading position in the industry.
The Group attaches great importance to the safety of batteries for
electronic products. In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance of
battery, it is required to conduct more rigorous review of the safety of
battery to ensure that all the batteries delivered meet the high safety
standards.

The Group is currently a supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for
well-known branded smartphone and tablet manufacturers including
Huawei, OPPO, vivo, Xiaomi, Lenovo, ZTE, TCL and Tian Power.
Fuelled by strong demands from the existing and new customers,
the ODM business maintained an upward trend in 2016. With a
view to fulfilling the current orders and the demand for continuous
expansion in production and operating scale, the Group has invested
more resources in its business, such as the introduction of additional
automated and semi-automated equipment to expedite the transition
from the labour-intensive production model to semi- and full-
automation. The transition is expected to enhance productivity and
further improve the quality management system.
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The lithium-ion battery products supplied by the ODM business
mainly consist of original smartphone batteries customised for
smartphone of various brands (“ODM mobile phone batteries”) and
original power banks customised for clients (“ODM power banks”).
The Company also supplies motive battery and lithium-ion battery
modules for tablets and medical devices. During the Review Period,
ODM mobile phone batteries recorded sales volume of approximately
187.0 million pieces (2015: 135.8 million pieces) and turnover of
approximately RMB4,540.5 million (2015: RMB3,344.9 million),
increased by approximately 37.7% and approximately 35.7% year-on-
year respectively, recorded a new high. In 2016, ODM mobile phone
batteries contributed approximately 94.8% (2015: 95.1%) of turnover
of the ODM business. During the Review Period, the ODM business
segment recorded net loss of approximately RMB118.9 million (2015:
net profit RMB121.5 million).

In 2016, the Group’'s ODM business is expected to continue to benefit
from the growth in sales volume of smartphones due to their surging
popularity in the PRC, whereas mid- to high-end smartphones are
in greater need of premium batteries with better performance in
safety, stability and endurance. “SCUD# E BR"” has been enjoying
high reputation in the lithium-ion battery module sector in terms of
safety standard and quality. Having thorough knowledge in lithium-
ion battery performance and extensive experience in battery module
design, the Group is able to supply high quality lithium-ion batteries
customised for different types of smartphones and tablets. Looking
ahead, the ODM business fuelled by strong demands from the existing
and new customers is well positioned to support the Group to
sharpen its edge in the smartphone and tablet battery market.
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Own-brand Business

The own-brand business mainly consists of domestic sale of power
banks (“own-brand power banks”) and other mobile phone
accessories under our “SCUDFRZERR" brand. Own-brand power banks
become the largest revenue contributor which accounted for
approximately 58.2% in sales revenue for our own-brand products.
During the Review Period, the own-brand business recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB680.4 million (2015:
RMB620.0 million), representing a growth of approximately 9.7%
year-on-year. Own-brand power banks recorded sales volume
of approximately 6.7 million pieces (2015: 5.2 million pieces),
representing a growth of approximately 28.8% year-on-year and
contributing turnover of approximately RMB396.0 million (2015:
RMB324.3 million).

sales volume of approximately 1.7 million pieces (2015: 3.7 million

Own-brand mobile phone batteries recorded

pieces), representing a decrease of approximately 54.1% year-on-year
and contributing turnover of approximately RMB31.5 million (2015:
RMB80.8 million). During the Review Period, revenue of approximately
RMB181.4 million (2015: RMB164.8 million) was derived from sales
of power management module manufactured by the Group. During
the Review Period, the own-brand business recorded net loss of
approximately RMB63.1 million (2015: RMB39.5 million).

The rapid growth and higher performance requirements of smart
electronic products promoted the development of power supply
technologies. In recent years, power banks have experienced rapid
development. “SCUDFREER" brand is renowned in the industry for its
years of experience in manufacturing mobile phone batteries and the
safety and quality of its battery products. Product quality and safety
remain the priorities for power banks under the “SCUDFRTERR"” brand.
The “SCUDRERE” branded power banks, which are well received
by customers, have secured a considerable market share in China at
present.
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The present smart electronics market has become saturated. To
achieve growth again in the 3C lithium-ion battery market in the
future requires concentration on opportunities for development of
emerging electronic products and tapping demands in the emerging
electronic products market. The Group will proactively examine
the trends of market development to fully tap the demands in the
emerging electronic products market. The Group will actively invest in
R&D of lithium-ion battery application technology, seeking to promote
application of various lithium-ion batteries in a wider range of
products. Extending the application of lithium-ion batteries from the
current focus of smart electronic products to other areas will not only
meet demands of different customer groups, but also lay a broader
market base for the Group’s future growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB6,061.5 million (2015: RMB4,509.4 million),
increased by approximately 34.4% as compared to that in 2015.
The reason of the turnover increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in sales under the ODM business segment. Gross profit for
the Group was approximately RMB557.8 million (2015: RMB522.6
million), increased by approximately 6.7% against 2015. The loss
for the year and loss attributable to owners of the Company were
approximately RMB124.8 million (profit the year 2015: RMB23.5
million) and approximately RMB119.0 million (2015: profit attributable
to owners of the Company RMB38.2 million) respectively, decreased
by approximately 630.4% and 411.7% respectively. The Group
recorded LBITDA of approximately RMB96.2 million (2015: EBITDA
RMB129.2 million) for the year. Basic and diluted losses per share was
approximately RMB10.91 cents (2015: Basic and diluted earnings per
share RMB3.50 cents).

Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB4,788.4
million (2015: RMB3,518.4 million) was generated from the ODM
business segment, which accounted for approximately 79.0%
(2015: 78.0%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. Turnover of
approximately RMB680.4 million (2015: RMB620.0 million) was
generated from the own-brand business segment, which accounted
for approximately 11.2% (2015: 13.7%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover. Turnover of approximately RMB286.1 million (2015:
RMB194.8 million) was contributed by the bare battery cell business
segment, which accounted for approximately 4.7% (2015: 4.3%) of
the Group’s consolidated turnover.
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Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB4,572.0 million
(2015: RMB3,425.7 million) came from mobile phone batteries
which accounted for approximately 75.4% (2015: 76.0%) of the
Group’s consolidated turnover. Sales of power banks and power
management module amounted to approximately RMB560.2 million
(2015: RMB416.0 million) and RMB181.4 million (2015: RMB164.8
million) respectively, which accounted for approximately 9.2%
(2015: 8.2%) and 3.0% (2015: 4.3%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover respectively. Sales of approximately RMB286.1 million (2015:
RMB194.8 million) came from bare battery cells, which accounted
for approximately 4.7% (2015: 4.3%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover.

Segment Results

For the ODM business segment, total revenue contributed to the
Group during the Review Period increased by approximately 36.1% to
approximately RMB4,788.4 million (2015: RMB3,518.4 million). The
net loss generated by the ODM business segment was approximately
RMB118.9 million (2015: net profit RMB121.5 million) as a result of
a decline in gross profit margin in 2016 and the significant increase
in impairment loss recognised on trade and other receivables during
the Review Period. During the Review Period, the sales volume of
ODM mobile phone batteries grew by approximately 37.8% to
approximately 187.1 million pieces (2015: 135.8 million pieces) and
the turnover of ODM mobile phone batteries increased significantly
by approximately 35.7% to approximately RMB4,540.5 million (2015:
RMB3,344.9 million), which accounted for approximately 94.8% (2015:
95.1%) of the Group’s ODM sales. Sales volume of ODM power
banks was approximately 2.5 million pieces (2015: 1.1 million pieces).
Sales of ODM power banks amounted to approximately RMB164.3
million (2015: RMB91.7 million). Sales volume of ODM motive
batteries increased by approximately 0.7 million pieces (2015: 0.2
million pieces) which contributed approximately RMB59.9 million (2015:
RMB34.1 million) to the Group’s consolidated revenue. Sales of ODM
motive batteries and ODM power banks accounted for approximately
1.3% (2015: 1.0%) and 3.4% (2015: 2.6%) of the Group’'s ODM
sales respectively.
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For the own-brand business segment, the total revenue contributing
to the Group during the Review Period increased by approximately
9.7% to approximately RMB680.4 million (2015: RMB620.0 million).
The own-brand business segment recorded net loss of approximately
RMB63.1 million in 2016 (2015: RMB39.5 million). During the
Review Period, sales volume of own-brand power banks increased
by approximately 28.8% to approximately 6.7 million pieces (2015:
5.2 million pieces). Sales of own-brand power banks amounted to
approximately RMB396.0 million (2015: RMB324.3 million), accounted
for approximately 58.2% (2015: 52.3%) of the Group’s own brand
sales. The sales volume of own-brand mobile phone batteries dropped
by approximately 54.1% to approximately 1.7 million pieces (2015: 3.7
million pieces) and the turnover of own-brand mobile phone batteries
decreased by approximately 61.0% to approximately RMB31.5
million (2015: RMB80.8 million), accounted for approximately 4.6%
(2015: 13.0%) of the Group’s own-brand sales. As for other own-
brand products, sales of power management module accounted for
approximately 26.7% (2015: 26.6%) of the Group’s own-brand sales,
contributed approximately RMB181.4 million (2015: RMB164.8 million)
to the Group’s own-brand sales.

For the bare battery cell business segment, approximately RMB286.1
million (2015: RMB194.8 million) was contributed to the Group's
consolidated turnover in 2016, which represents a drop by
approximately 46.8% as compared to that in 2015. The bare battery
cell business segment recorded net loss of approximately RMB17.7
million in 2016 (2015: RMB23.4 million).

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB5,503.6
million in 2016 (2015: RMB3,986.8 million), representing an increase
of approximately 38.0% as compared to 2015. The increase in cost
of sales was mainly due to the increase in materials cost during the
Review Period. Direct materials, direct labour and other production
costs accounted for approximately 88.1% (2015: 86.7%), 5.5% (2015:
6.8%) and 6.4% (2015: 6.5%) of the cost of sales.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2016 was decreased
to approximately 9.2% (2015: 11.6%) as a result of a decline in gross
profit margin for the ODM and own-brand business segment during
the Review Period.
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For the ODM business, the overall gross profit margin in 2016 was
approximately 9.8% (2015: 11.7%). For the own-brand business, the
overall gross profit margin in 2016 was approximately 13.4% (2015:
16.1%). For the bare battery cell business, the gross profit margin in
2016 was approximately 5.0% (2015: 5.3%).

Other revenue of approximately RMB63.1 million (2015: RMB42.0
million) in 2016 was mainly comprised of bank interest income,
government grants and net foreign exchange gain. The increase in
other revenue was mainly attributable to the net foreign exchange
gain recorded during the Review Period.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB72.5 million
(2015: RMB57.6 million) accounted for approximately 1.2% (2015:
1.3%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2016. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of entertainment expenses,
advertising and promotion, transportation expenses, office expenses
and staff salaries and welfare. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in travelling and
transportation expenses as well as the entertainment expenses during
the Review Period.

Administrative expenses of approximately RMB367.6 million (2015:
RMB294.0 million) accounted for approximately 6.1% (2015: 6.5%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2016. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff salaries and welfare, bank
charges, legal and professional fees, office supplies, depreciation and
rental expenses. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly
due to the increase in staff salaries and welfare, legal and professional
fees, training expenses and R&D expenses during the Review Period.

Other operating expenses of approximately RMB392.5 million (2015:
RMB144.1 million) mainly comprised of the impairment loss recognised
on trade and other receivables as well as the write off of inventories,
property, plant and equipment and trade and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade receivables due from
two customers, namely Lemobile Information Technology (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd. (“Lemobile”) in the amount of approximately RMB194.6 million
and Lesai Mobile HK Limited (“Lesai”) in the amount of approximately
RMB5.8 million (collectively “Leshi”). Subsequent settlements in
the amount of approximately RMB31.8 million were received from
Lemobile up to the date of this report. In April 2017, the Group
commenced two legal proceedings in the PRC court against Leshi
claiming for their settlement of these trade receivables. In June 2017,
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the Group applied to the PRC court for an order to freeze the assets
of Lemobile and Le Holdings (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Le Beijing”), the
guarantor of Lemobile. The PRC court made an order accordingly
on 14 June 2017. According to the PRC court’s notice dated 16
June 2017, the PRC court approved the freezing of certain assets
of Le Beijing (the “Frozen Assets”) which consisted of Le Beijing’s
investments in two companies (namely Le Vision Pictures (Beijing) Co,
Ltd. and Leshi Zhixin Electronic Technology (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.) in the
aggregate amount of approximately RMB240.0 million for 3 years
from 16 June 2017 to 15 June 2020 and the bank balance in a bank
account of Le Beijing of approximately RMBO0.7 million for 1 year
from 16 June 2017 to 15 June 2018. According to the PRC court’s
mediation paper dated 14 November 2017, Lemobile agreed to pay
its trade debts at the amount of approximately RMB156.0 million at
the Group by 30 November 2017 and Le Beijing agreed to fulfil its
obligation as the guarantor of Lemobile to guarantee such payment
by Lemobile. Subsequently, approximately RMB0.9 million was repaid
to the Group in March 2018. In addition, another legal proceeding in
the PRC court commenced by the Group against Lesai and Le Beijing,
which also guaranteed the trade debts due from Lesai to the Group,
is ongoing as at the date of this report.

As at the date of this report, the Company was unable to determine
the fair value of the Frozen Assets and hence the ability of Le Beijing
to settle the trade receivables due from Leshi. As such, a one-off
provision for impairment loss was made on the entire amount due
from Leshi of approximately RMB168.6 million. Such provision is
reflected in “Other operating expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

On 9 December, 2016, the Group announced the sale of 70% equity
interests in Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Nalon”) to
an independent third party at a consideration of RMB15.0 million.
A gain on disposal amounted to approximately RMB8.7 million was
recorded.

During the Review Period, the Group disposed of 100% of the
entire shareholding in interest in Scud Power (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“Scud Shenzhen”) to an independent third party at a consideration
of RMB1.0 million. A gain on disposal amounted to approximately
RMB55.4 million was recorded.

Finance costs of approximately RMB26.6 million (2015: RMB27.3
million) mainly represent interest on bank borrowings.
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(Loss)/profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2016, the Group recorded loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB119.0 million (2015: profit attributable
to owners of the Company RMB38.2 million). The decrease in profit
attributable to owners of the Company was mainly due to the decline
in gross profit margin for the ODM and own-brand business segment
as a result of the increase in materials and labour cost during the
Review Period. In addition, the impairment provision made for
trade and other receivables in 2016 was increased by approximately
RMB292.3 million as compared to 2015.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group’s funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain
a diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure.
The Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt
profile, and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives
by its centralized treasury function. In order to maintain financial
flexibility and adequate liquidity for the Group’s operations, potential
investments and growth plans, the Group has built a strong base
of funding resources and will keep exploring cost-efficient ways of
financing.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December
2016 was approximately RMB170.3 million, principally denominated
in Renminbi, decreased by approximately RMB79.1 million (at 31
December 2015: RMB249.4 million). The decrease in cash and cash
equivalents was mainly due to the decrease in net cash generated
from operating activities and the increase in net cash used in financing
activities. The Group recorded a net cash outflow from operating
activities of approximately RMB112.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: net cash inflow from operating activities
RMB370.9 million).

The Group’s borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi, which
were outstanding as at 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
RMB430.4 million (at 31 December 2015: RMB371.8 million) were
carried at floating interest rates. A total of RMB428.0 million of the
interest-bearing borrowings will fall due during the next 12 months
after the end of the Review Period. There was no particular seasonality
of the Group’s borrowing requirements. Please refer to Note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements for detail on the maturity profile
of the Group’s borrowings. The Group monitored capital using a
gearing ratio, which is total debt of the Group divided by total equity

KATEE AESL(BE),5F
REBR2016FHEAAREE ABEBEHOAR
#119,000,0007T (20155 AR A% A AR &R
AR #38,200,0007T) ° AR GHEH A &L FIR
ThE B RN BB AR 2 M R & 85 8) 1 A A 18 8
BODMEK BB Mm% e EFE TR o thoh -
20165  FEUE 5 308 K H i FE U FRIE 2 ok 1B 1
#E20155F 1 A9 A K #292,300,0007T ©

EREERME

AEBENRERBEHERRE EAFEBILRBE
REZTERFE - AREKBEZEERSTMR
FEBEHEA  YRASENEBBERAE AR R
BRBOKARE - AEEDRILEENE R
ERYHHAESKTARARENRERTCRALE
EeE BERERBRAE #FREMER
HIRBE SR

REBESRMKER
REBM2016F12A31BFENRE RS EER
B #4AARE170,300,00070(EBUARBRE) -
B #) A R #79,100,0007T (7220154612 A318 -
AR #249,400,0007T) - e KRS FEIEHEE D
DEEZHREEEFHAMELEZRSFERIEBE
EENFTAZ RS F R INATE - REZE20169F12A8
NAEFE  AEBSGERELEFHHRE AL
SFEEA) AR ®5112,900,0007T(2015%F « 2R &R
FHIR SR AFRELHARK370,900,0007T) ©

M20165F12A318 - AEERAREEER(EEUA
R¥sHE) # AR #430,400,0007T (72015412 A 31
H : ARM371,800,0007T) iF BN EEHE « 5HEfE
FKAEF A REA428,000,0007T # FA B B HARE 2 181213
AREIE - REBMERERWEFEE - BALRE
BEERINBFEEL2HREVBEREME28 - K&
ERAENBBELRETES  FEIRALEER
BERAGEER  AEEABEBEHERL RIRAE
R A kg zs 49 AR #910,600,0007T (742015412
A318 : AR¥1,054,600,00070) B D ELEHE - K

21



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBEERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEER RO

of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio of the Group expressed as
a percentage of interest bearing borrowings over the total equity of
approximately RMB910.6 million (at 31 December 2015: RMB1,054.6
million) was approximately 47.3% as at 31 December 2016 (at 31
December 2015: 35.3%). Bank deposits pledged for banking facilities
as at 31 December 2016 was approximately RMB553.0 million (at 31
December 2015: RMB596.1 million).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.2 times (at 31 December 2015: 1.2 times) based on current
assets of approximately RMB3,233.1 million (at 31 December
2015: RMB3,291.0 million) and current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,767.6 million (at 31 December 2015: RMB2,647.8 million).
Trade and notes receivables turnover days were approximately 87 days
for the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to approximately
98 days for the year ended 31 December 2015. Inventory turnover
days were approximately 37 days for the year ended 31 December
2016 as compared to approximately 46 days for the year ended
31 December 2015. Trade and notes payables turnover days were
approximately 145 days for the year ended 31 December 2016 as
compared to approximately 143 days for the year ended 31 December
2015.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2016 was
approximately RMB465.5 million, decreased by approximately 27.6%
from the balance of approximately RMB643.1 million recorded as
at 31 December 2015. Net assets as at 31 December 2016 was
approximately RMB910.6 million (at 31 December 2015: RMB1,054.6
million).

Change in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries

During the Review Period, the Group disposed of 70% equity interest
in Shenzhen Nalon, for a consideration of RMB15.0 million. The
principal activity of Shenzhen Nalon was research and development,
manufacture and sales of lithium-ion bare battery cells as a supplier
to the Group whereas the Group, after such disposals would continue
to source bare battery cells from independent third party suppliers as
well as Shenzhen Nalon (and/or each of their respective subsidiaries
and/or associates) as a component of their battery modules before
selling such battery modules.
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During the Review Period, the Group disposed of 100% of the entire
shareholding in interest in Scud Shenzhen at a consideration was
RMB1 million which was paid in cash. The principal activity of Scud
Shenzhen was manufacturing and sale of lithium-ion battery modules,
chargers and related accessories for mobile phones and digital
electrical appliances.

During the Review Period, the equity interest in Shenzhen Hondge
and Dongguan Hongde increased from 60% to 78.95% as a result of
the reduction of capital in Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan Hongde.

Save as disclosed above, the Group made no significant investment
nor did it make any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the Review Period.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, bank loans of approximately RMB163.4
million (at 31 December 2015: RMB128.7 million) were secured by
the Group's assets and bank loans of approximately RMB251.7 million
(2015: RMB211.2 million) were unsecured.

Commitments

The Group's capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December
2016 amounting to approximately RMB9.4 million (at 31 December
2015: RMB6,000) was mainly attributed to acquisition of equipment.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not provide any form of
guarantee for any company outside the Group and did not involve
in any material legal proceedings for which provision for contingent
liabilities was required.

Capital Structure

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share
capital of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

For the year 2016, the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has
certain bank balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese
Yen and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group’s total
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assets is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of
exchange risk is required and no financial instruments were used for
hedging purposes during 2016. Nevertheless, the management will
continue to monitor the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and will
take prudent measures against currency exchange risks as and when it
is appropriate.

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition and
Disposal

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant investment held
as at 31 December 2016, and there were no material acquisition and
disposals of subsidiary during the Review Period.

Material Investments or Capital Assets

The Group did not make any material investments or purchase any
material capital assets in the year after the end of the Review Period.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option
Scheme

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 4,197 full-time
employees (2015: 5,535). The salaries of the Directors and the
Group's employees were determined by reference to their personal
performance, professional qualification, industry experience of the
employee and relevant market trends. The Group ensures all levels
of employees are paid competitively within market standard and
employees are rewarded on a performance-related basis within the
framework of the Group’s salary, incentives and bonus scheme.
The management reviews the remuneration policy of the Group
on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance of the
employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. According to the
relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the related local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the
mandatory provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in
accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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The Company also adopted a share option scheme to reward eligible
participants (including directors and employees of the Group) for their
contributions to the Group. On 19 June 2014, the Company offered
to grant share options to a number of eligible participants to subscribe
for up to 80,000,000 shares with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in
the issued share capital of the Company pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 3 December 2006. Among the
80,000,000 share options, 21,200,000 share options were granted to
the executive Directors of the Company.

On 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
option had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Company’s share option scheme was 80,000,000, representing
approximately 7.34% of the shares of the Company in issue as at
31 December 2016. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or any of their respective associates, would result in the
securities issued or to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the Company’s share capital and (ii) with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company's shares at the date of each
grant) in excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of options must
be approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders.
A consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on the grant of option.

As at 31 December 2016, no share option has been exercised under
such scheme, 12,300,000 shares were forfeited during the Review
Period.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has
been suspended with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 26 March 2015.

Resignation of auditor

On 25 March 2015, the Company was informed by its former auditor
Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants (“Moore Stephens”) that
based on preliminary observations there were several inconsistencies
in the financial data of the Group while they were carrying out the
annual audit for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014,
and that since the investigation and verification of the inconsistencies
might go beyond the scope of work of general audit, it requested
the Company to perform other additional procedures, including
engaging an independent third party to undertake investigation of the
inconsistencies that it had observed.
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On 2 April 2015, Moore Stephens resigned as the independent auditor
of the Company. In the letter of resignation dated 2 April 2015 to
the Board and the audit committee of the Company, Moore Stephens
stated that during the performance of the audit of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014, it observed certain inconsistencies
(the “Matters”). Details of the Matters are as follows:

(@) Moore Stephens were unable to verify all value-added tax
invoices tested in their sales transaction test through the online
verification system;

(b) Moore Stephens were unable to verify a late adjustment debiting
accounts receivable and crediting bank balances. The bank
balances as at 31 December 2014 after putting through this
adjustment was inconsistent with the balances shown on the
bank confirmations Moore Stephens obtained from the banks
during the audit; and

() Moore Stephens were unable to verify a late adjustment
debiting sales, income tax payable, value-added-tax payable and
crediting bank balances and intercompany current account. This
adjustment was inconsistent with the tax returns, tax payment
advice and bank confirmations Moore Stephens obtained and the
sales ledger that was made available for their testing during the
audit.

Establishment of independent board committee and
appointment of independent third party investigator

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 29 May 2015,
the Board resolved to establish an independent board committee (“IBC")
comprising independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang, to investigate
the Matters. Dr. Loke Yu was appointed the chairman of the IBC.
Grant Thornton Advisory Services Limited (“Grant Thornton”), an
independent third party investigator, was engaged to investigate the
Matters.
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Key findings of independent investigation and
recommendation of the IBC

According to the report of the investigation by Grant Thornton, the
cause of the incident was mainly that Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Battery”), a subsidiary of the Group engaging in own-brand business
of the Group, had excess recall and incurred a significant loss in
connection with such excess recall when it implemented a plan to
recall those own-brand battery products of specified series purchased
from Scud Battery by 31 designated distributors.

It was discovered that the financial data of Scud Battery for the
financial year commencing from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2013 and the financial year commencing from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014 contained misstatements. Furthermore, it was found
in the investigation that Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
mainly engaging in ODM business of the Group, had omitted to
declare income tax in the financial year commencing from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2013 and the financial year commencing from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014.

After reviewing the findings of the investigation by Grant Thornton,
the IBC made a series of recommendations to the Board, including,
among other things, engaging an independent third party consultant
to review the internal control systems and procedures of the
Company.

For further details of the key findings of the investigation and the
recommendations of the IBC, please see the announcement of the
Company dated 14 June 2016.

Appointment of BDO Financial Services Limited as
internal control consultant

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2016,
the Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited (“Internal
Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant to conduct
a review of the internal control systems and procedures of the
Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").
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The Internal Control Review was completed. On 30 November 2017,
the Internal Control Consultant issued its report on the Internal
Control Review. The Internal Control Consultant was satisfied that the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
systems in relation to the companies within the Group that are the
subject of the Internal Control Review and all the business areas of
the Group as at 31 May 2017.

For further details of the report issued by the Internal Control
Consultant, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report and the announcement of the Company dated 30
November 2017.

BOARD’S VIEW ON AUDITOR’S QUALIFIED
OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Review
Period were audited by BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants (the
“Auditor”). The Auditor expressed qualified opinion (the “Qualified
Opinion”) on the Group's consolidated financial statements for the
Review Period, the details of which are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report in this annual report. The Board is of the view
that, on the following basis, the issues underlying the basis for the
Qualified Opinion have been addressed or resolved:

1. Opening inventories as at 1 January 2016

Given the Auditor was appointed in August 2016, the Auditor
did not attend the physical stock take of the opening inventory
balance of the Review Period conducted by the Group. The
Board considers that this was an ad hoc consequence to the
unusual audit delay for the Review Period. Subsequent to
their appointment in August 2016, the Auditor attended and
observed the physical stock take of the inventory balance as at
31 December 2016 conducted by the Group and the Auditor
raised no concern on such inventory balance. Please refer to the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report for further
details.
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In respect of the alternative audit procedure explored by the
Auditor in connection with the inventory roll-back procedures
from the inventory balance as at 31 December 2016 and the
Group’s ability to facilitate such procedures through providing or
linking all the information and supporting documents required
by the Auditor for all the sale and purchase transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2016, please refer to the Board's
view under the section headed “2. Certain sale and purchase
transactions” below.

Certain sale and purchase transactions

The Board considers that the issues relating to the Group’s
certain sale and purchase transactions underlying the basis for
the Qualified Opinion have been addressed on the following
basis:

(i)  the launch of the Group’s new enterprise resource planning
system in 2017, which computerised and centralised the
management and systematic recording of operational and
financial data;

(i) the strengthening of the Group’s internal control systems
and financial reporting procedures as a result of the
Group's implementation of the improvements and/or
remedial measures recommended by BDO Financial Services
Limited, which the Company engaged as its internal control
consultant in August 2016; and

(iii) the disposal of two subsidiaries of the Group, namely
Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd. and Scud Power (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd., (the “Disposed Subsidiaries”) at the end of 2016,
the sales and purchases amounts of which during the
Review Period had not been verified to the satisfaction of
the Auditor.
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The Board also considers such issues were ad hoc, in that:

@)

(i)

the non-return of confirmations from certain customers
and suppliers in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
during the Review Period as required by the Auditor was
mainly due to (a) their respective unwillingness to cooperate
on verifying and returning the confirmations given the
time lapse of nearly one year between the end date of the
Review Period and the date of sending requests for such
confirmations in 2017 by the Auditor for their audit for
the Review Period, or (b) their respective deregistration or
cessation of business relationship between them and the
Group over such period of time; and

there was time constraint on the Group spending
substantially more time on providing and linking all the
information and supporting documents in the audit trail
in relation to all the sales to (or purchases from, especially
given the large number of suppliers of the Group involved
in supplying the wide variety of raw materials for producing
the Group’s products) all non-top 10 customers (or
suppliers) of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics and all
customers (or suppliers) of the Disposed Subsidiaries (as
appropriate) as required by the Auditor, as opposed to
providing such information and supporting documents to
an auditor simply on a sample basis in the ordinary course
of a normal audit.

Set out below are the details of the proportions of the Group’s

sales and purchases amounts during the Review Period which

had or had not been verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor (as

the case may be):
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(ii)

In respect of the Group's sales during the Review Period, an
aggregate sales amount of approximately RMB5,431 million
to top 10 customers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics
and to all customers of Shenzhen Hongde and Dongguan
Hongde, representing approximately 89.6% of the Group's
total sales amount, had been verified to the satisfaction
of the Auditor. The Group had provided and linked all the
information and supporting documents in relation to such
sales amount and the Auditor had received confirmations
from such customers in relation to such sales amount.
The remaining approximately 10.4%, which had not been
verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor, comprises sales
amounts of approximately RMB255 million to all customers
of the Disposed Subsidiaries (representing approximately
4.2% of the Group's total sales amount) during the Review
Period and approximately RMB376 million to non-top 10
customers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics (representing
approximately 6.2% of the Group’s total sales amount)
during the Review Period.

In respect of the Group’s purchases during the Review
Period, an aggregate purchases amount of approximately
RMB3,872 million from top 10 suppliers of Scud Battery
and Scud Electronics and to all suppliers of Shenzhen
Hongde and Dongguan Hongde, representing approximately
77.1% of the Group’s total purchases amount, had been
verified to the satisfaction of the Auditor. The Group had
provided and linked all the information and supporting
documents in relation to such purchases amount and the
Auditor had received confirmations from such suppliers
in relation to such purchases amount. The remaining
approximately 22.9%, which had not been verified to the
satisfaction of the Auditor, comprises purchases amounts
of approximately RMB205 million from all suppliers of the
Disposed Subsidiaries (representing approximately 4.1%
of the Group’s total purchases amount) during the Review
Period and approximately RMB948 million from non-top 10
suppliers of Scud Battery and Scud Electronics (representing
approximately 18.8% of the Group's total purchases
amount) during the Review Period.

(ii)
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RESUMPTION OF TRADING CONDITIONS

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 13 July
2015, the Stock Exchange notified the Company that the following
conditions would apply before the grant of any request by the
Company for the resumption of trading of the shares in the Company:

(i) completion of the investigation of the Matters by Grant
Thornton, disclosure of the findings of such investigation,
the Company having addressed the issues identified in the
investigation and if necessary, further investigation with
appropriate scope;

(i) demonstration to the satisfaction of the Stock Exchange that
the Company has put in place adequate financial reporting
procedures and internal control systems to meet its obligations
under the Listing Rules;

(iii) publication of all outstanding financial results required by the
Listing Rules and the Company having addressed any audit
qualifications; and

(iv) informing the market of all material information.

For further details of the conditions of resumption of trading, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 July 2015.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fang Jin, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Group, and is a senior economist. Mr. Fang is a member of each of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a co-founder of the Group which was founded
in December 2006.

Mr. Fang is mainly responsible for the Group’s development planning,
operational and corporate investment decision-making and brand
strategy. Mr. Fang has been leading the Board for collective decision-
making for years and has set a very clear direction for SCUD’s product
management and branding. He commenced his career at the age
of 18, and has accumulated over thirty years of experience in the
mobile phone accessories industry and related operation management.
He has very keen discernment and vision on the exploration of
branding strategies and the marketability of new products. Prior to
the establishment of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited in
1997, Mr. Fang was engaged, as a sole proprietor, in the sale of
communication products and accessories in the PRC. In December
1996, he established Cai Hong Group (Hong Kong) Company Limited
in conjunction with partners including Mr. Lin Chao (and established
Scud Electronics in October 1997). Mr. Fang has received several
awards including:

2003  National Advanced Individual On Projects of End Users’
Satisfaction

2004  Excellent Runners of Technological Private Enterprises in
China

2004  Fujian Top Ten Venture Heroes in the Commercial Sector

2005  China Top Ten Excellent Entrepreneurs in Brand Construction

2005  The Mudell’s World Executive Awards for Achievement in
Business and Economy

2006  Annual Excellent Persons in Fujian Economy

2006  National Excellent Managers of Users' Satisfaction
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Mr. Fang is the Vice Chairman of the Joint Industrial and Commercial
Association of Mawei District in Fuzhou City Economic and
Technological Development Region.

Mr. Fang is the sole director and shareholder of each of Swift Joy
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
Right Grand Holdings Limited, a shareholder of the Company. As
at 31 December 2017, Mr. Fang was interested in an aggregate of
514,338,000 shares, representing approximately 47.19% of the issued
share capital of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO").

Guo Quan Zeng, aged 57, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, and is an engineer. He is responsible
for the management of the Group’s daily operations. He joined the
Group in July 1997. He had been the manager of the research and
development department, sales department, planning department,
production department and quality control departments of Scud
Electronics, and had been director, vice general manager and vice
president of Scud Electronics. He is very experienced in front-line
management in business development, brand promotion, product
research and development and quality control. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Guo was a lieutenant commander engineer of the PRC
navy mainly responsible for establishing and maintaining wireless
telecommunication systems. Mr. Guo has over thirty years of
experience in the research and development and quality management
in electronic products. Mr. Guo graduated from the Navy Senior
Electronic Engineering School with a bachelor’s degree in radio
telecommunication engineering in 1983.

Mr. Guo is the sole director and shareholder of Cheer View Holdings
Limited, which is a shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2017, Mr. Guo was interested in 18,000,000 shares,
approximately 1.65% of the issued share capital of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

representing
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Feng Ming Zhu, aged 54, is an executive Director and vice president
of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the development of
the Group's strategy. Mr. Feng holds a Bachelor degree from Anhui
University of Finance and Economics in China. He joined the Group in
March 2007 and served as the director of administration of the Group
until October 2011. He then served as the general manager of SCUD
SMT Business Unit before becoming the vice president of the Group
in April 2013. Mr. Feng is currently a Specialist of Fujian JingXin Think
Tank Industry Research. He was appointed as an executive Director on
25 August 2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Feng did not have any
equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Li, aged 57, was an executive Director since 31 December
2010 and has been redesignated as a non-executive Director since 25
August 2016. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in October 2003 and had
been the deputy general manager of Scud Electronics. Mr. Zhang then
served as the general manager of Scud Electronics until December
2017. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang had served as manager in
the industrial design department of Fujian Start Network, as manager
of the research and development department, of the accessories
department and of the sales department of Fujian Communications
and Broadcasting Industrial Company. He has more than thirty years of
experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Zhang graduated
from the Mechanical Engineering Faculty of Jiangxi University in 1978.
He was granted the qualification of practising as an engineer in 1992
and was granted the qualification of practising as a senior engineer in
1999. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Zhang did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Hou Li, aged 59, is a non-executive Director of the Company and a
member of the Resumption Committee of the Company. Mr. Hou is
a senior partner of Dentons Law Offices (Fuzhou). Mr. Hou holds a
Bachelor of Law degree from East China University of Political Science
and Law and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Xiamen University in China. He is a qualified lawyer in China and
has over 20 years of experience in legal and corporate governance
matters. Mr. Hou also engages in several community services and had
once served as member in Commission of Legislative Affairs of Fujian
Province Committee of the Chinese People’s political Consultative
Conference, director in Fujian Province joint-stock enterprises
Association and Fujian Province Securities Association, arbitrator
in Fuzhou Arbitration commission and chairman of Law Office of
Fujian Committee of the Revolutionary Committee of The Chinese
Kuomintang. He was appointed as an executive Director on 25 August
2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Hou did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Loke Yu, alias Loke Hoi Lam, aged 68, is an independent non-
executive Director and Chairman of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption
Committee of the Company, respectively. Dr. Loke has over 41 years
of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public
companies, financial consultancy and corporate management. He
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from the University of South Australia. Dr. Loke is a Fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants; The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr.
Heng Ja Wei Victor, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, is his nephew-in-law.
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Dr. Loke currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of the following companies whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”): Chiho-Tiande
Group Limited (Stock Code: 976), China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited (Stock Code: 445), China Household Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 692), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005), Tianhe
Chemicals Group Limited (Stock Code: 1619), Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 882), V1 Group Limited (Stock Code:
82), Forebase International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2310),
Lamtex Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1041), Hang Sang (Siu Po)
International Holding Limited (Stock Code: 3626), China Beidahuang
Industry Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 39), Hong Kong
Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:2882), Zhong
An Real Estate Limited (Stock Code: 672) and Zhenro Properties
Group Limited (Stock Code: 6158). He joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 May 2009. As at 31
December 2017, Dr. Loke did not have any equity interest in the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Wang Jing Zhong, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer and
graduated from East China University of Science & Technology with
a Bachelor’'s degree in chemistry. He has more than fifteen years
of management experience in the battery industry. He had served
as the engineer-in-charge of the household products division in the
Ministry of Light Industries, as deputy department head of the campus
department of the Education Bureau, as the deputy officer-in-charge
of the Household Products Office, and as the secretary general of
China Battery Industry Association. He is currently the executive vice-
president of China Battery Industry Association. Mr. Wang joined the
Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3 December
2006. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang did not have any equity
interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Wang Jian Zhang, aged 72, is an independent non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Wang is a senior engineer
and graduated from Xian Military Institute of Telecommunication
Engineering. He has more than twenty-five years of experience in
electronic technology and management. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang had served as deputy director of the Promotion Division
of Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry of Electronics
Industry, director of the Comprehensive Planning and the Investment
Division under Ministry of Mechanical and Electrical Industry, director-
general of the Comprehensive Planning Department under Ministry
of Electronics, and director-general of the Comprehensive Planning
Department under the Ministry of Information Industry. Mr. Wang
joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director on 3
December 2006. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Wang did not have
any equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 40, is an independent non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Resumption Committee
of the Company, respectively. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison
Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of
Engineering degree in Electronic Engineering from University of
Warwick in the United Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in
Computer Science from University of London — Imperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine. He is a member of and holds a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) certificate issued by The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is a nephew-in-
law of Dr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-
executive director of China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock
Code: 445), Best Food Holding Company Limited (Stock Code: 1488),
Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 746) and Matrix
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1005) and as company secretary of
China Life Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Heng
joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director on 1
September 2016. As at 31 December 2017, Mr. Heng did not have
any equity interest in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 41, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung worked as an auditor in an
international accounting firm. He has more than seventeen years of
experience in the accounting field. He has a Bachelor’'s degree in
Business Administration and Accounting. Mr. Yeung joined the Group
in September 2005.

Jiang Zhi Cheng, aged 41, is the human resources director of the
Group. Mr. Jiang is the person primarily in charge of the human
resources system of the Group and has over ten years of experience
in human resources management and operation management. He
is specialized in training, career development, talent management,
performance management, leadership development and organization
development. Mr. Jiang graduated from Xiamen University with
a degree in accounting in 1999 and from Central China Normal
University with a degree in business administration in 2016. Mr.
Jiang is an intermediate economist and grade 2 human resources
professional and currently pursues the executive MBA program
in Northwest University. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in 2002 and
successively served as the human resources supervisor and human
resources manager. In 2006, he was appointed as the human
resources director of the Group.

Zhou Xuan Xiang, aged 48, is the materials director of the Group.
Mr. Zhou is responsible for the Group's layout and development
of supply chain and materials system integration and management
and has nearly twenty years of experience in terms of materials
and management. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Department of
Business Administration of Chengdu University with a degree in
business administration in 1992. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in
2004 and successively served as the supervisor and deputy manager
of procurement department. In 2006, he was appointed as the
materials director of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Zhou served as the director of Chengdu Office of Sichuan Foguang
Pharmaceutical Factory and person in charge of materials division
of Top Victory Electronics (Fujian) Company Limited. Mr. Zhou has
successively accepted training of Material Requirement Planning (MRP),
ISO9000, I1ISO14000 and MBA remote education of Peking University;
Carnegie Motivational Leadership training and Carnegie Director of
Administration training, and has extensive experience in materials
management.
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Chen Yao Shu, aged 39, is the information management director
of the Group. He is responsible for the planning and integration of
the Group's internal information system and information resources
and has over ten years of experience in the field of information
system of manufacturing industry. Mr. Chen graduated from Hubei
Industry Technology Institute with a degree in architectural design
in 2000 and from Dalian University of Technology with a degree
in business administration in 2014. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
2002 and successively served as the network supervisor, deputy
manager of information management department and manager of
information management department. In 2008, he was appointed
as the information management director of the Group. A number of
informatization projects led by Mr. Chen were selected as excellent
cases by professional institutions. He was awarded the titles including
National Excellent Information Director by professional institutions in
2007, 2009 and 2014.

Xue Chun Mu, aged 49, is the risk management director of the
Group. He is responsible for design of internal control and risk
management procedures and systems and guidance and supervision
of the execution thereof, including monitoring and supervising
the effectiveness of procedures and systems and participating in
the development of risk countermeasures. Mr. Xue has over ten
years of experience in internal control and risk management. He
graduated from Jimei Finance and Economics College with a degree
in accounting education in 1990 and then pursued a MBA program
in European University of Ireland and graduated therefrom. Mr. Xue
is an accountant, International Certified Senior Public Accountant,
International Certified Management Accountant, Internal Control Risk
Manager, Senior International Finance Manager and Certified Senior
Enterprise Risk Manager. Mr. Xue successively served as the manager
of Management Accounting Department and manager of Investment
Management Department of the Group from 2002 to 2004. He re-
joined the Group in 2009 and served as the audit director. In 2016,
he was appointed as the risk management director of the Group.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Xue served as an audit executive in
the Education Bureau, head of Management Accounting Department,
manager of Cost Management Department, manager of Finance
Department and finance control director.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SCUD Group
Limited (the
“Group”) presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial

“Company” and, together with its subsidiaries, the
statements for the financial year from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016 (“Review Period”).

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections
of this annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’
report.

A discussion of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
can be found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
section of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 115 to 116.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to preserve cash for the working
capital requirement of the business.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during 2016 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during 2016 in the share capital are set out
in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Review
Period amounted to approximately RMB30,000.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2016 comprised the retained earnings, other
reserves and share premium of approximately RMB790.5 million (2015:
RMB918.2 million).

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the Review Period and up to the
date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Fang Jin (Chairman)

Guo Quan Zeng (Chief Executive Officer)

Feng Ming Zhu (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)
Huang Yan (resigned with effect from 25 August 2016)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Zhang Li (appointed as an Executive Director on 31 December 2010
and redesignated as a Non-executive Director with effect from 25
August 2016)

Hou Li (appointed with effect from 25 August 2016)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Loke Yu

Wang Jing Zhong

Wang Jian Zhang

Heng Ja Wei Victor (appointed with effect from 1 September 2016)

According to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo
Quan Zeng, Mr. Feng Meng Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr. Hou Li, Dr. Loke Yu,
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang lJian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng, Mr. Feng Meng Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li,
Mr. Hou Li, Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang lJing Zhong, Mr. Wang lJian Zhang
and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, all being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. There are no service contracts for any of the Directors who
are nominated for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
which are not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the relevant interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO"), which are required to be notified to the Company and The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or were required,
pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company):

EENBETRABZKRGER KX
B
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Percentage of

Name of Director

EEHR

Fang Jin
ok

Guo Quan Zeng
BRI

Huang Yan (Note 4)
=i (MEE4)

Zhang Li
RER

Capacity
=27

Corporate interest (Note 1)
AR (MHEE1)

Beneficial interest

B ML de N
B

Corporate interest (Note 2)
NEVE R (FE2)

Beneficial interest

RN RN
ey

Beneficial interest

ER AL dE N
ey

Beneficial interest

ML de N
ey

Number of the issued

ordinary shares share capital

Number of subject to of the Company
issued ordinary options granted (Note 3)
shares held FREER (AR ATERT
FEFERT REIRZIEER BRAE 2B
ZEREE #A (BF5E3)
514,338,000 47.19%
5,300,000 0.49%

18,000,000 1.65%
5,300,000 0.49%

5,300,000 0.49%

5,300,000 0.49%
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Note 1:  This figure represents (i) 403,770,000 shares directly held

by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and (ii) 110,568,000 shares
directly held by Right Grand Holdings Limited, both of
which are companies with their entire issued share capital
held by Mr. Fang Jin.

Note 2:  These shares are directly held by Cheer View Holdings

Limited, whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr.
Guo Quan Zeng.

Note 3:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

issue as at 31 December 2016, i.e. 1,090,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Note 4: Huang Yan resigned as an Executive Director of the

Company with effect from 25 August 2016.

Save as disclosed above and as set out in this section headed “Share
Options” below, none of the Directors or chief executives or their
close associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 3 December 2006
for the primary purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have
contributed to the Group and encouraging eligible participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
include directors and employees of the Group and any directors
and employees of the Group, advisors, consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint
venture business partners, promoters or service providers of the
Company whom the board of directors of the Group considers to
have contributed or will contribute to the Group. Under the Scheme,
the board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme was adopted
for a period of 10 years and expired on 2 December 2016 and the
Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of
directors of the Company may at any time terminate the Scheme without
prejudice to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and
which remain unexpired immediately prior to such termination. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 86,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7.89% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this annual report, without prior
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approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing in
aggregate over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such
grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must
be approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders
(voting by way of poll). Subject to the terms of the Scheme, an offer
of grant of an option will remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participant for 28 days from the date of the offer, Upon the grant of
an option a consideration of HK$1 is payable and the relevant option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during the exercise period to be determined by the Board, which
shall not exceed 10 years. The exercise price of the options shall be
determined by the board of directors of the Company in its absolute
discretion but will in any event not be less than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
an offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business
day);

(2) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 preceding business days of the day of the offer of an option;
and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

On 19 June 2014, the Company offered to grant share options to
a number of eligible participants to subscribe for up to 80,000,000
shares with nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital
of the Company pursuant to the Scheme. Among the 80,000,000
share options, 21,200,000 share options were granted to the
executive Directors of the Company.

ZEETERBTEIROEE  THEBRAFE
BREETRGHZ1% BERTERNEZERRRE
VIFMITEFHERMBF2BMEALRE 2 BRE
g kzBBEITRETETRNDEE NEHXBANR
ARRBHBEZBRARZ01%HTSEEA LBA
5,000,000 7T * MEBEARRNRIKRE(AKRERRA
HOTELBE o EFTEGERZHRRT - HEEREZ
SHORBHBER28A A HIEMAER2EEE
o ERERER  ARAAIMBITZRELD]
REEGMERT 21T RAERRZ T8 2 ERTT
ARG AR - BRAITEHTSEBIB105F - BRE
ZITFEEBRARFEFSLRNEET  EERU
ARTEERTIEER  RmE © —

(1) ARERORERRRZRDEREE B (BA
REXB)EBIAEEZERBERMIIZK
EEE

@ ARFARGRRLELHREE DA R
FER S FT B 2 5 B R ERF5 2 TR
"R

() ARFERMZEE -

MR20145F6 A198 - RARIBHEEE - RERETE
BR2HEERHBRE  URBAQRDETHRA
# 5 %:80,000,000/% & AR EI{E0. 108 T M AR 19 © 2
80,000,00017 f# A% # 7 - 21,200,00017 i f% 1 B %
FARRNBMITES ©
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The following table sets out the details of the share options under the — & FIN B ZET2E T 2 BARHESES ¢

Scheme during the Review Period:

Outstanding
as of
Exercise price 1.1.2016 Exercised Forfeited
HKS 720165 during the during the
Name Date of grant T8 1818 period period
#®E RHAH BT HATE  RAERTE RERRKR

Category I: Directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder and their respective associates

Bil— % ZRTBRARRIERRRRERAZHEAL

Fang Jin 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000 - -
ok

Guo Quan Zeng 19.6.2014 0.94 5,300,000 - -
EEE

Feng Ming Zhu N/A N/A - - -
BT NER NER

Zhang Li 19.6.2014 094 5,300,000 - -
KRB

Huang Yan (Note 1) 19.6.2014 094 5,300,000 - 5,300,000
AR (M)

Total directors 21,200,000 - 5,300,000
EESoH)

Category Il Employees working under continuous contracts (as defined in the Employment Ordinance) other than directors

BRI REEN  BEERENIAE MEBREANTEES

Senior management 19.6.2014 0.94 58,800,000 - 11,000,000
RRERE

Total of all categories 80,000,000 - 16,300,000
FRBERRIEST

Note: PEE -

Outstanding
as of
31.12.2016
20165
124318
HRATE
5,300,000

5,300,000

5,300,000

15,900,000

47,800,000

63,700,000

Percentage of
the total
issued share
capital of the
Company as at
31.12.2016
AR
720165
12A31H
BRTRA
BECzASY

0.49%

0.49%

0.49%

1.46%

4.39%

5.84%

(1) Huang Yan resigned as an executive Director of the Company (1) EHEEAQTHITEERT - H201658H

with effect from 25 August 2016. 258 4%k o
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All share options granted can be exercised from 19 June 2014 to
18 June 2017 (both dates inclusive), and are not subject to any
vesting period. The exercise price is determined by the Directors of
the Company and is fixed at HK$0.94 per share. The closing price of
the shares on the date immediately before the grant of these share
options, i.e. 18 June 2014, was HK$0.95. 16,300,000 shares of the
share options was cancelled or lapsed during the Review Period. The
Company recognised the total expense of RMB Nil (2015: RMB Nil)
for the Review Period in relation to options granted by the Company.
Please refer to Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements for
detail.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sub-sections headed “Directors and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares” and “Share
Options”, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

FTE R R2014F6 A198 #£E2017F6 A 18H
(BEERMB)RNITE - BOTZEREB GG
R ATEEBRARREFET  YETAERR
190.94787C - B ZESHEAE R BAT(B12014F
67188 )M DM (E A0.95%8 T - I IEEHAR -
16,300,000/ B A% 4 48 7 S Sk AR 3 » AR RIAEIEE
HEEREAAARRE ZEREZBAIAAR
WZL(20154F 1 Z) - BEHE  B2MReVH%
HRERMITE34 o

ESWBRONES 2ER

BRIEEREETRABZRMDER KR | RIER
VNPT BEE SN - AR R SKEA MM B A RNE
22016512 A3 1A L FE AT R L8 - Bk
RABEFEA B BRE AR R M EAERZ R
MREFNERF = NEER HEZRBHT
N T 2 FLHB EA ] RE AR R FEH 2 EF
AT A BRER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than directors 720165128318 * L FA (W FEAR QAT E S 5L
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions H&E/THAS)RAAEZR7M RABBRG R ESR
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be  1EFES RHIEEHIEXVIBE2 X3 B 2 (& AR AN
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of AFHHE @ KBLARRAIRIEES REAEENE
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to 3361178 Z 08kt Z R SOA R -

be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company): HE(

Name of shareholder Capacity

IRER A 237

Swift Joy Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

AR IZEIRB R AR Emfa A

Right Grand Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

ERERBRRF BEmEAA

Value Partners China Greenchip Fund Limited Beneficial owner
BHERA

Value Partners Group Limited Corporate Interest

BIREEAR AT NEER

Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in izt 1:

issue as at 31 December 2016, i.e. 1,090,001,246 Shares,
when calculating this percentage.
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AARBREEICETZEER):

Percentage of

the issued share

capital of the

Company as at

Number of 31 December 2016

issued ordinary (Note 1)
shares/underlying 720165F12H31H
shares held HARATFE BT

e RTEER BEABS K
HERGEE (FFzET)
403,770,000 37.04%
110,568,000 10.14%
63,106,000 5.79%
63,990,000 5.87%

AKRABREEZA DR  SAARRFRN
2016F12A31H 2 B &7 MHE B (A
1,090,001,246/% )51 & -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 63 to 85 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION
COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
AND RESUMPTION COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”),
a remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a
resumption committee (“Resumption Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
considering how the Board should apply financial reporting and
internal control principles and for maintaining an appropriate
relationship with the Company’s independent auditor. As at 31
December 2016, the Audit Committee consisted of four members
who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang
Jian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.

BRoA AR EEE SN - FR20165F12A31H » AR FIE
BEAMAT(LERARRAEETIERTRAEIR
RATRD KAB R AD B RIBE S REBAE GO
EXVEE 2R3N G BMA ARG HE - HBR
ARRRIRIBEE S RS 5053361817 & 2 e
N2 HERBRE o

TEER
EEARRFMRMZ CEEAERZIBEZHNA
FIRFEEIAEFESSH ©

EERAUESHFMES2ME

REZE2016F12A31HLFE  EFNAMNERSH
Bl 8 2 Bl & LEEE R A BRI FE10 ©

BEREES  REZERE
EREREES

FHES

ARRERUERZEG([ERZES)) REZ
Ee((R2%EBg)) ¥HZBZE

kEEZEg([EREZEE]) -

BEREES

BRUEEZEZEEZH m%fﬁ%%%ﬁ*%§$ﬁr
QAT ER PR BA TS SR e R S 1R JR AILA e B AR A
SZEERN R B MR o 72016512 H318 - %*2
ZEGHWEKB (DR BBEGMEL(ERF) - T
B TEEEERIRERE)EK -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen
and recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as
Directors of the Company, to oversee the process for evaluating
the performance of the Board and to develop, recommend to the
Board and monitor nomination guidelines for the Company. As at
31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee consisted of four
members who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Wang
Jing Zhong and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board
in determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
executive Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors,
reviewing incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing
the remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
As at 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
four members who were Dr. Loke Yu (Chairman), Mr. Fang Jin, Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.

RESUMPTION COMMITTEE

The Resumption Committee is responsible for leading the process
to facilitate resumption of trading in the shares of the Company as
soon as possible. The Company has appointed Gram Capital Limited
as the financial adviser in relation to the resumption of trading in the
shares of the Company. As at 31 December 2016, the Resumption
Committee comprised the four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and
Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor and the non-executive Director Mr. Hou Li.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Although there are no restrictions over the grant of pre-emptive rights
under the laws of Cayman Islands, no pre-emptive rights have been
granted under the articles of association of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 58% and approximately 29% of the
Group's total sales of the Review Period, respectively. The top
five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represented
approximately 56% and approximately 34% of the Group’s total
purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate
of a Director or (to the knowledge of the Directors) a shareholder of
the Company which owns 5% or more of the issued share capital of
the Company has any interest in the top five customers and suppliers
of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 167 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of his/her duties in his/her offices or trusts
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect
of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the relevant Director.
Such permitted indemnity provision was in force during the Review
Period and remained in force as at the date of this report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following continuing
connected transactions, certain details of which are set out below
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
relation to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

FERFRHER

RAFEAEEEEREY  AEERLAEP LK
REBEFE D RIE#958% K #129% - 7 [0l BEER R A 52 (&)
ZHEREET  AEERAAHRERREAMERD
A5 4956% K 4934% o

CIEEHE  MEEENEETBMBATHRESEN
HARLDE B BEITIRAS% IA - 2 E AR R T
REAAKBEORER MMHER 2 (E#x -

BEFRERX

REANREMERZARE67E  BREFEUES
EREBUBTERBAERAMRIRELNME
- B KE - BX BERHAX BTBEA
RRAMBERGNESRE  BEReHELZIE  F
ARERETEHETMEAABESERFRTDH
EHzEE  RSREFNBEGRXEREESA
ERMABEARREARIDBER -

HEBEXRS

REERE AEEQETTIRERERS &
THECER EMRAUFVIATHREIELHE - &
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ARRERIE EMRVUFBVAZETZER SR E
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The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with

the Company are as follows:

Name Relationship
=L A&

Fang Jin (“Mr. Fang”)
Fa([F%E]D

BEERANREBRARER

Guo Quan Zeng (“Mr. Guo”) Director
SRRIG([EF5EAE]) 5%

Scud Electronics
RERE T

Scud Stock
RERRMRD

Scud Battery

with Mr. Fang being common director

HEARBBREN AR MARREERNT

Director and controlling shareholder of the Company

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company

RER(BR)EFARAR  ITAERHAEENARFARELZEWBLRR]

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company with Mr. Fang and Mr. Guo being common directors,
and who has shareholding interest in this company as to 67% and 3%, respectively

BERERBROBRAR - FEERBEERARNEENHRF]

s B BIEB Z R 5167 % N3 %M

Scud Battery Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by the Company with Mr. Fang

RERREM being common director
REBBHWARAT - HREAERESNAQBIEELEH B AT
(A) Lease agreements with Scud Stock (A) EERERKRMTZINEERZ
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Lease Agreements in 2013

On 10 December 2013, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud
Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease
Agreement”) in respect of the lease of the premises (the “First
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai
An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area
of approximately 23,156 square metres; (ii) 1 office building
with a construction area of approximately 12,852.26 square
metres, rental area of approximately 6,847 square metres; and
(iii) 1 staff dormitory with construction area of approximately
19,601.76 square metres, rental area of approximately 9,120
square metres. The First Premises were leased for use as factory,
office for administration use for the Group and staff dormitory
for the employees of the Group. The term of the lease was from
1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB8,543,928 and payable in cash on a monthly basis.

2013 ERZE

201356128108 - REREF(HEAEREAN)
HRERBRG(EAERARURTEEES
BN S R I R % I 1 [ 2839-25% K 55 44-25%
BRI MERS((GtmE DT —BHRE
mE(E—HHEEHRE])  BFEOEERE -
BEEELA40,627.68F HK  HEBHEY
A23,156F oK s (i) —EM A KE - BEE
MEA1/12,852.26F 75 0K - HE E R4 /56,847
FhHAK: R(iV-EETIRES BEMENA
19,601.76F 772K - HH EE & 4 &9,120F 7
Ko BHRMECHEREREB Z TR - 17T
MAERAEERERENEIRES - HEIE2014
F1AVAE20165F12A31H - FHEARARE
8,543,928 T * Wi AR ST ©
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On 10 December 2013, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease
Agreement”) in respect of the lease of the premises (the “Second
Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai
An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area of
approximately 17,471 square metres; (ii) 1 office building with
a construction area of approximately 12,852.26 square metres,
rental area of approximately 3,805 square metres; and (iii) 1 staff
dormitory with construction area of approximately 19,601.76
square metres, rental area of approximately 6,680 square metres.
The Second Premises were leased for use as factory, office for
administration use for the Group and staff dormitory for the
employees of the Group. The term of the lease was from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016. The annual rental was
RMB5,908,128 and payable in cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First Lease Agreement and the Second
Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 10 December 2013.

The table below sets out the annual caps for the aggregate
rental payable by Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud
Stock under the First Lease Agreement and the Second Lease
Agreement.

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31BIEFE2FE LR

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2015
HZ2015F12A31HIEFEZFE R

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2016
BZE2016F12A31ALFEZFE LR

72013128108 - RERS M (EAEEA)
HRERBG(EALBAARURPRERE
BN TS R R R TR $39-25% &k $£44-2
SEEMEBR A MERE(E _HtmE )T —18
HEBZ(E_MmEEHHE] - B25E0)0ER
B BEMmEL AB40,627.68F HK  EE
BRIRNTATVE TR (i)— @R D8 - BEE
TE# 712,852,226 F 7oK - HHEEE 4 43,805
EHK R(N—EEIBESE  REEBELY
7$19,601.76F 75 K - 1 & ™ 18 %) /36,680
FKe BEZUMECHERIERAEE 2 T -
TBERAERAEEEENETIRS - HEB
201451 H1H £20165F12A31H - §HE& B
AR®5,908,1287C Wik AR E X -

E—NHEERARE_HEERR

SENAAGI BEA2013F12H10B 2 A% -

TREIIRERE T RREBEBRES — 7
MEWHHE LS — D BAE %R RERKNDE
NHESEBEIFELR

RMB
ARETT

14,452,056

14,452,056

14,452,056
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The actual amounts incurred for the above continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RM14,452,056.

Lease Agreements in 2016

On 30 December 2016, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud
Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease
(2017-2019) Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises
owned by Scud Stock.

Under the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First (2017-
2019) Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2,
Kuai An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area of
approximately 31,155 square metres; (ii) 1 office building with
a construction area of approximately 13,268.80 square metres,
rental area of approximately 7,826 square metres; (iii) 1 staff
dormitory with construction area of approximately 25,973.92
square metres with a total of 435 dormitory rooms, rental area
of approximately 19,704 square metres with a total of 330
dormitory rooms; and (iv) 1 warehouse building with construction
area and rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres. The
First (2017-2019) Premises were leased for use as factory, office
for administration use for the Group, staff dormitory for the
employees of the Group and warehouse for storage of stocks.

T EREL S REZE2016F12831HIEF
EMER&EAEARBE14,452,0567T °

2016 FHEWE

2016512 A30H - REMREF(HEREEA)
HERERBG(EAHEBEATL—HHEE R
(TE—mAEQO17FE2019F ) B ) AEH
REBBRNDETESS THEZRLY -

B E — 17 EQ017F 20194 ) h & -
RERBORAZMAERERETFTMNRFHE
ZEBMNMERRREZIEMEFE39- 2K LE
44-25R MO Mb ER 2 W 2 ([ 85— #E(20179F 22019
F)mE])  BREONERE 2EEREOA
40,627.68F 5K - MME®EL A31,155F 75
Ko (—ERAE - BEEIELA13,268.80
SRR HEmMELYA7,826F 75K 5 (ii)—E
BTEEE  BEEMELNAF25,973.92F 5K -
HEBEASHER HEBBEL A19,704F 7
Ko HBE3BMES Rivv—EEEXNE &
SEMBELAEmMBELNAE11,250F 5K - £t
(2017F 22019F ) WEC R HAREAEBE 2T
B ITBHAR  AEBEEBENEIBEERE
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For the factories, office building and staff dormitory, the term of
lease is from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019, and for the
warehouse building, the term of lease is from 1 July 2017 to 31
December 2019. Under the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement,
the annual rental for the year ended 31 December 2017 will be
RMB13,245,120, and the annual rental for the two years ending
31 December 2019 will be RMB14,325,120. The rentals are
payable in cash on a monthly basis.

On 30 December 2016, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease
(2017-2019) Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises
owned by Scud Stock.

Under the Second Lease (2017-2019) Agreement, Scud Stock
agreed to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second
(2017-2019) Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2
and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou,
Fujian Province, PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a
construction area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres,
rental area of approximately 9,472 square metres; (i) 1 office
building with a construction area of approximately 13,268.80
square metres, rental area of approximately 5,443 square metres;
and (iii) 1 staff dormitory with construction area of approximately
25,973.92 square metres with a total of 435 dormitory rooms,
rental area of approximately 6,270 square metres with a total of
105 dormitory rooms. The Second (2017 — 2019) Premises were
leased for use as factory, office for administration use for the
Group and staff dormitory for the employees of the Group.

The term of lease is from from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. The annual rental under the Second Lease (2017-2019)
Agreement will be RMB4,786,104. The rentals are payable in
cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement and
the Second Lease (2017-2019) Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2016.

I MAEREBIBREZHEERARB2017F
1TATEE2019F12A31H elE A 2HE
HIBR B2017F7H1H £2019F12A31H 1R
BE—HEEQ07FE2019F ) H# - &2
017FNAMBILEFEEZ2FHEHAARE
13,245,1207T » B E2019%F12 4318 It M E4E
ErzFEHEEAAR14,325,1207T TS A
ReBAZN -

2016512 A30H - REMRSM(ERAEBEA)
HERERBEGEALEBRA)TLT —HEER
FZ(EZMHBEEQO7TFEZR2019F ) HaEl) - K
BHNRERRMDERSE TWEZBEL -

RIEFE _MHHEEQOI7FE2019F ) - RE
BEORZEAREREOAEMCATHREES
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By M ER 2 W3 ([ 58 Z #E(2017F E2019%F ) ¥
*1) BEOMERE - EEMIELL0,627.68
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As at 10 December 2013 and 30 December 2016, Scud Stock
was owned as to 67% by Mr. Fang and 3% by Mr. Guo,
respectively. Both Mr. Fang and Mr. Guo are executive Directors
of the Company and Mr. Fang is a controlling shareholder
of the Company. Scud Stock is an associate of Mr. Fang and
thus a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Therefore, the above transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

The table below sets out the annual caps for the aggregate
rental payable by Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud
Stock under the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement and the
Second Lease (2017-2019) Agreement.

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12A31BIEFE LR

Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2018
BE2018F12A31HILEFE LR

Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2019
BE2019F12A31HLEFE LR

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out herein,
and have confirmed that, during the year ended 31 December
2016, such transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2) on normal commercial terms or better to the Group than

terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed

that in relation to the First Lease Agreement and the Second

Lease Agreement:

(1)

@)

(€)

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
its attention that causes it to believe that the continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set
by the Company.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the

connected parties are also set out in Note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

ARBNBILZBE T ERABREEE 0
HEWERE —HHERZ
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable
accounting principles. Details of the related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements. The related party transactions
which are also non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
"Continuing Connected Transactions” above.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above and in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries and no other contracts of significance for the provision
of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or existed
during the Review Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review Period.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’' INFORMATION EENEREE
Set out below are changes in information of Directors of the Company  TXRIEBIE FM iR BIE13.51B(EE I AN AR EEH
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules: ERE

Name of director

EEHR

Dr. Loke Yu
sy N

Mr. Wang Jing Zhong
FARARSTAE

Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor
TR FE

Details of change

SEFE

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1619) on 31 May 2014
R2014F5 A3 ARZERRBILITEERR AR MR : 1619) 2 BUIERITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 876) on 20 June 2014 and resigned with effect from 11 January 2017

R2014F6 A20 A ZEREIREREEEERBR QR (MR - 876) ZBIIFHNTEE - B
%2 BHER2017F1 B11BARK

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1041) on 28 July 2015
7201557 A28 AR ER/MEERABR AR (RMASE : 1041) 2B FFRTEE

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Forebase International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2310) on 18 April 2016
R20165F4 F 18R Z EAREBBIERAER AR (RO : 2310) ZBUIFNTES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding
Company Limited (Stock Code: 3626) on 26 April 2016
M20165F4 26 AEZEAEE KR ENEBR 2R (BRMORE - 3626) ZBIIFRTES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2882) on 31 May 2017
R2017F5 A3V AR ZEATBERIERER AR (RS - 2882) 2 WU IFHNITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Zhenro Properties Group Limited (Stock
Code: 6158) on 15 December 2017
R2017F 12 AR EZERTERMESEER AR (MDA - 6158) ZBIIFNTES

Resigned as the company secretary and authorised representative of Minth Group Limited (Stock
Code: 425) on 8 February 2018
R20185F2 A8 ABHEHEERBE AR AR (RN : 425) 2 ARAIME REERE

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Winfair Investment Company Limited (Stock
Code: 287) on 3 April 2018
R20185F4 A3ABHEXRBEEZBR AR (RMNRI : 287) 2 BUINITES

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Tianneng Power International Limited (Stock
Code: 819) on 6 June 2015
72201556 B6 RBHEREEE) IR AR AR (RS - 819) 2 BIIFNITES

Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Daohe Global Group Limited (Stock Code:
915) on 11 January 2017
7201751 B 11 BEHEBMIRIREB AR AR (RO - 915) 2 BIIFMITES
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions referred to in the section “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above and in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or an entity connected with a
Director (within the meaning of section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) had any direct or
indirect material interests in any transaction, arrangement or contracts
of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
company or its fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which was registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees
in Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is
funded by contributions from employer and employees in accordance
with the provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contribution
may be used by the employer to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of the
payroll under the rules of the schemes.
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Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in Note 4(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Review Period.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive
remuneration package to attract and motivate its employees. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of its employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to market standard. The
Group also provides regular training to its employees for their career
development.

The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and
regularly communicate with them in order to obtain feedback and
opinions and understand their business needs and demands.

The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with
its suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely
together to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an
open, fair and just manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as otherwise disclosed
in this annual report, during the Review Period, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
which had a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed interest in any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Review Period.

BRAAEBEEZ2016F12A318LEFEZR
BT 2 FHEERN R A BTSRRI 7E4(n) -

K&t

EEEH

IO - & 2 R IRAT L SR 7 5
BREBEW L ERRIHA DLELES D
.

BES - EFRHEH2EE

AEEEREEARFEABRF INFHMGTE - AR
SIXEEREE - AEEERBRRE ZFHMFE -
WHERVEZHE  UNEMSRE - REETTA
HBREBEERE 2 ERE -

SEERHEFMEARER  UFEHRFEER
% SREFRER YA THRESZEBERR

3 ctf"}

%‘_

%4}

SEAM‘EREY T RERFOEE - REERE
MARZAE - UEREAR  AFRAENT
NETRBER ©

&P AR ERRA

N E)ER
BE

%%%Fﬁ*ﬂ CBRAFRZAREEN
CAREYEBREEREAKEXBENLEE
%%E’Ji@ﬁ%iﬁ&&%ﬁ% °

BE - HEIEEES

ApmgEEMMBARMENDEMEEE - b
EHBOARR UL LR REFAER

61



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBEERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Company considers such directors to be independent in accordance
with each and every guideline set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 2 April 2015 and BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants was appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 25 August 2016.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and to the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

By the order of the Board

)

FANG JIN
Chairman

30 April 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries,
(the “Group”) is committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level
of corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves the Group’s corporate governance and internal controls
practices. Save as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles
of corporate governance as adopted by the Company during the
financial year from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (the “Review
Period”). The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”)
in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). Save
as disclosed in the section headed “Compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules” below, the Company complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEQ")

During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin served as the Chairman of
the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the Company and
was responsible for leading the Board in establishing and monitoring
the implementation of strategies and plans to create values for
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”). Mr. Guo Quan
Zeng served as the President of the Group and was responsible for
managing the overall business operations of the Group, proposing
strategies to the Board and the effective implementation of the
strategies and policies adopted by the Board, effectively carrying out
the role of a Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ").

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions and shareholding interests in the Company
and Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between the
Chairman and the CEO.
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THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2016, there were nine members on the Board,
which were the Chairman, two other executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors (“NEDs”) and four independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"”), whose names are shown in the table on page
71. The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of
the management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board
considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise
to the Board and its deliberations. The term of appointment of Dr.
Loke Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong and Mr. Wang Jian Zhang is one year
from 14 May 2016 and the term of appointment of Mr. Heng Ja
Wei Victor is two years from 1 September 2016. All service contracts
of the INEDs can be terminated by the Company or the INED with
at least 3 months written notice. Each of the INEDs confirmed their
respective independence to the Group. The term of appointment of
the two NEDs, Mr. Zhang Li and Mr. Hou Li, are two year from 25
August 2016. All service contracts of the NEDs can be terminated by
the Company or the NED with at least 3 months written notice. Save
for the Directors’ business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships in the Company and save as disclosed in this annual
report, there are no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships among members of the Board and they are
independent from each other.

The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc
basis as required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose
is to set and review the overall strategic development of the Group
and to oversee the achievement of its business plans to enhance
Shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to
the Executive Directors and the senior management. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors.
During the Review Period, the Board met 7 times and the Directors’
attendance record is shown in the table on page 71. In advance
of the Board meetings, appropriate notices, meeting agenda and
other relevant information were given to all Directors. All Directors
are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda for Board
meetings. Draft and final versions of the Board meeting minutes
were sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively.
The original minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company and such minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any Director. The
Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect of
Directors’ liability.
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The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board which
accepts that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the
performance and affairs of the Group. The Board’s role is to provide
entrepreneurial leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the
Company’s values and standards, and to ensure that its obligations
to its stakeholders and others are understood and met. To facilitate
the operations, the Board has established a schedule of matters
reserved for its approval. The specific responsibilities reserved for the
Board include (1) setting the Group's strategies and dividend policy;
(2) reviewing operational and financial performance; (3) approving
major investments and divestments; (4) reviewing risk management
and internal control system of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate
management development and succession plans in place; (6)
approving appointments of Directors and other senior executives; (7)
approving corporate social responsibility policies; (8) ensuring effective
communication with shareholders and (9) other significant operational
and financial matters. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group are delegated to the management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Directors are continually updated with regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development courses and seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills including updated laws and
regulations applicable to the Company and its Directors as well as
any amendments thereto. During the Review Period, the Company
provided regular updates to the Directors on material changes to
regulatory requirements applicable to the Directors and the Company
on a timely basis and on the latest business development of the
Company. The Directors confirmed that they have complied with
code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code on directors’
training. During the Review Period, Mr. Fang Jin, Mr. Guo Quan Zeng,
Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, Mr. Zhang Li, Mr. Hou Li, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong
and Mr. Wang lJian Zhang participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in areas related
to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as corporate
governance and regulatory updates. Dr. Loke Yu and Mr. Heng Ja Wei
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Victor, as independent directors of other listed issuers, have attended
various directors’ training seminars arranged by various organisations
including the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Hong Kong Institute of Directors during the Review Period. On a
continuing basis, Directors are encouraged to keep up to date on all
matters relevant to the Group and attend briefings and seminars as
appropriate.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee ("Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under
the code and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December
2016, the Audit Committee comprised four INEDs who were Dr. Loke
Yu, Mr. Wang Jing Zhong, Mr. Wang Jian Zhang and Mr. Heng Ja Wei
Victor. Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor was appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee with effect from 1 September 2016. The chairman
of the Audit Committee was Dr. Loke Yu. Each committee member
can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in reviewing
financial statements and evaluating significant control and financial
issues of the Group who among themselves possess a wealth of
management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006
and held 3 meetings during the Review Period and the relevant
Director’s attendance is shown on page 71.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i)  to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence

and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;
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(iv) to review the Group's financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems and assess the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control system;

(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) to review the arrangements which the employees of the
Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters; and

(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out the
following work:

The Audit Committee reviewed certain financial information of the
Group and discussed with BDO Financial Services Limited in relation to
the internal control systems of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the
Review Period and the relevant Director’'s attendance is shown on
page 71. As at 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
comprised Dr. Loke Yu (an INED), Mr. Fang Jin (an Executive Director),
Mr. Wang Jing Zhong (an INED) and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an
INED). Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 September 2016. The
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee was Dr. Loke Yu. Its main
duties are summarised as follows:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Group's
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing such remuneration policies;
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(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration (i) REBREETSNITEER SR EIEE

packages of all individual Executive Directors and senior #He
management;
(iii) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of (i) FIEMTEEMEMAZTES/ELHESR

Non-executive Directors;

(iv) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved  (iv) HERIEF (A ESKEFAHEATRERT
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and EARGSEB : &

(v) to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any service  (v) FtARIE _F T30 AZE L BR B2 #E 4 7 (E {1 5 SR TE
contract of Directors that requires Shareholders’ approval in ANINETIRE R IR IR i -
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the year HMEEE@RNERNMIIEBRIENTSEIE
included the following:

(i) determining the policy for the remuneration of Executive () EEHITESHEIIE

Directors;
(ii)  assessing performance of Executive Directors; and (i) FHERITEFEHNRR K
(iii) approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts. (i) HERITEFREE HAIER -

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in Note 10 BAEEEMES AENFIEHN LGS BEHREKMT10
to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, 1RIED B ATEIEB.1 55| - HE2016%F
the remuneration payable to members of the senior management by 12A31HIFFEE @ 8MREEBXKE ZHMNF AT

band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below: 4R

In the band of Number of individual(s)

Frf4a Bl A

Nil to RMB894,510 (equivalent to Nil to TE ARER94,510T(FHERESRE 4
HK$1,000,000) 1,000,000/ 7C)

RMB894,511 to RMB1,789,020 (equivalent A R#894,51170& ARK1,789,0207T 1
to HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000) (#8E 71,000,001 7% 2,000,000/ 7T)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the
Review Period and the relevant Director’s attendance is shown on page
71. As at 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee comprised
Dr. Loke Yu (an INED), Mr. Fang Jin (an Executive Director), Mr. Wang
Jing Zhong (an INED) and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an INED). Mr.
Heng Ja Wei Victor was appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 1 September 2016. The Chairman of the
Nomination Committee was Dr. Loke Yu. The Nomination Committee
selects and recommends appropriate candidates based on the
candidates’ prior experience and qualifications to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and the senior management of the Group.
The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a
Board member and to select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships
having regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective
criteria and the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors to determine their eligibility;

(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
board members, and make appropriate disclosure of the policy
or a summary of the policy.
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The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review
Period included determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting
out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The Company
recognizes the benefits of diversity in Board members and believes
that Board diversity can be achieved through consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and/or length of service. In forming the perspective on
diversity, the Company will also consider its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. All Board appointments will be
based on merits and each candidate is considered against objective
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually, if
considered appropriate, measurable objectives for implementing
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board for
adoption. The Board will from time to time review one or more
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly. Having
reviewed the Group’s business model and operation needs and the
current composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee has not
set any measurable objective during the Review Period.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual

Director and committee member in the respective Board, committee
and general meetings held during the Review Period.
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MEETINGS ATTENDANCE RECORD HESRCE
Meetings attended/held in 2016
2016 F HE " BITHER
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Exg EREER REZE® FHEEE RRBFEARE
Number of meetings  F[EIEEEARIERTTH)
held during the EELG
Review Period 7 3 1 1 N/AT 3
Executive Directors: #[{T=%E :
Fang Jin Pk 717 N/AZ 3 F 71 1”1 N/ATNE
Guo Quan Zeng SR 717 N/AT 3 N/AZ 3 R N/AZ 3 N/AT 3
Feng Ming Zhu SRR
(appointed as an (H2016F8H25H
Executive Director FEEZ(TBHNTT
with effect from EF)
25 August 2016) 3/3 N/AZ 3 N/AZ 3 R N/AZ3E N/ATE A
Huang Yan (resigned & #t
with effect from (B2016%E8H25H
25 August 2016) AEFFE) 4/4 N/ATNE A N/AZNE A N/A“NE A N/ANE A
Non-Executive FHITES
Directors:
Zhang Li (redesignated 3R2R
as a Non-executive (B2016F8AH
Director with effect — 25H#EHES
from 25 August IEHTEE)
2016) 717 N/AT~NE N/ATNE F N/ATNE A N/ATiE A
Hou Li (appointed as a & 1
Non-executive (B2016F8H25H
Director with effect — FEEZ(FAIFHTT
from 25 August EF)
2016) 3/3 N/A~E N/ATNE F N/ATNE A N/AT3E R
Independent Non-  BIUEHITES :
executive
Directors:
Loke Yu =N 77 33 11 11 N/AZ 3 F
Wang Jing Zhong TR 717 3/3 11 11 N/ATiE A
Wang Jian Zhang TFrE 5/7 3/3 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A N/ATNE A
Heng Ja Wei Victor TR 4
(appointed as an (B2016F9A1H
Independent Non- HEZERE T
executive Director HHITEE)
with effect from
1 September 2016) 212 N/ATR 8 N/ATR i F N/ATR i F N/ATR i F
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GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary
actions to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code introduced by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Stock Exchange").

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his/her independence, and the Company considers
such Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. The following corporate governance functions
form part of the terms of reference of the Board:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

During the Review Period, the Board reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed below, the
Company complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code pursuant to Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

throughout the Review Period.

(i) According to paragraph A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment. Every director, including those appointed for
a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Ms. Huang Yan had not retired by rotation since her re-election
as director at the annual general meeting held on 9 May 2012.
She resigned as an executive Director of the Company with
effect from 25 August 2016.

Mr. Zhang Li has not retired by rotation since his re-election as
director at the annual general meeting held on 6 May 2013;
Dr. Loke Yu has not retired by rotation since his re-election as
director at the annual general meeting held on 6 May 2013; Mr.
Wang Jing Zhong has not retired by rotation since his re-election
as director at the annual general meeting held on 6 May 2013.

The said Directors did not retire by rotation in accordance with
paragraph A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules because no
annual general meeting has been held by the Company since 14
May 2014.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management Structure of the Group

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 25 August 2016,
the Company engaged BDO Financial Services Limited (“Internal
Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant to conduct
a review of the internal control systems and procedures of the
Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").

The scope of work of the Internal Control Consultant included
an independent assessment of the internal control systems of the
major subsidiaries of the Group which addressed, among others, the
recommendations of the independent board committee as set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 14 June 2016, covering financial
reporting procedures, receivables recording and collection procedures,
recording procedures on the return of goods in the sales process,
bank statements reconciliation procedures, distribution of goods and
tax declaration procedures.

During the period from September 2016 to April 2017, the Internal
Control Consultant performed reviews on the internal control systems
of the major subsidiaries of the Group (including the new enterprise
resource planning (“ERP”) systems for certain companies within the
Group) which involved collecting relevant information, conducting site
visits and interviews and conducting walkthrough tests. Through this
process, a list of issues had been identified and the Internal Control
Consultant recommended certain improvements and/or remedial
measures to address such issues for the Company’s consideration.
The Company has considered and implemented such recommended
improvements and/or remedial measures, and thereafter the Internal
Control Consultant performed a follow-up review which involved
substantially the same procedures as above to come up with further
recommendations on improvements and/or remedial measures for
the Company’s consideration. After the Company has considered
and implemented such further recommended improvements and/or
remedial measures, the new ERP systems were formally launched by
the Group for the major subsidiaries of the Group.

Sample walk-through documents in respect of the enhanced internal
control systems of the Group (including the new ERP systems) and
the operation processes of the Group within the scope of the Internal
Control Review for the period of review from 1 May 2017 to 31
May 2017 were provided by the Group for the Internal Control
Consultant’s follow-up review, checking and testing during July to
September 2017 to assess whether the improvements and/or remedial
measures recommended by the Internal Control Consultant have been
implemented and whether there was any material internal control
deficiency.
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On 30 November 2017, the Internal Control Consultant issued its
report on the Internal Control Review. The Internal Control Consultant
was satisfied that the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control systems in relation to the companies within
the Group that are the subject of the Internal Control Review and all
the business areas of the Group as at 31 May 2017.

Having reviewed the findings and results of the report on the Internal
Control Review prepared by the Internal Control Consultant, and
having taken into consideration the improvements and/or remedial
measures implemented in accordance with the Internal Control
Consultant’s recommendations, the Board is of the view that the
Company has put in place adequate internal control system and
financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under the Listing
Rules and that the Board considers that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group to be effective and adequate.

We set out below the current risk management structure of the
Group:

Risk Management Department

The Group has set up a risk management department which is
responsible for the design and implementation of a risk management
system and assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the
implementation and effectiveness of enterprise risk management
framework and procedures and reviewing risk response measures. The
risk management department performs an internal audit function and
is responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Group assists the Board in monitoring
the risk level of the Group and the design and operational efficiency
of the relevant risk management and internal control systems. The
Audit Committee oversees the following procedures on behalf of the
Board:

e examination of the Group’s risk management system, internal
control system (including corporate strategy, finance, operations
and compliance monitoring) and internal audit functions to
ensure the establishment and maintenance of effective and
appropriate risk management and internal control systems and
adequate resources to perform the internal functions of the
Group;
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e regular review of work reports submitted by the risk management
department, including action plans to address any weaknesses
of the risk management and internal control systems which
have been identified and updates on the implementation of
recommendations to address the weaknesses;

o external auditors regularly submit reports on the internal control
matters identified in the course of their work to the Company’s
management. They also meet with the Audit Committee to
discuss the scope and results of their review.

The Audit Committee will report to the Board after review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Audit Committee, the Board will form its view on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The board of directors will ensure that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group will
be conducted annually.

Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties. Some of
the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation
measures have been devised to manage such risks.

(A) OPERATIONAL, STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS

The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous
pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’s main
product, is mostly used in smartphones, laptops, tablets and
wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may
change rapidly in response to consumer demand or taste. As the
supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number of domestic
smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in customers’ sales
of smartphones will have significant effect on the sales of the
Group's lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Investment of resources in development of new products
and application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and
new fields in response to changes in market demands;

(i) Diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the
Group’s overall business;
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(iii) Proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced
technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability.

For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached
to their quality and safety. The performance and safety of
lithium-ion battery is very sensitive to ambient environment.
The safety of lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external
circuit design to ensure battery’s operation is normal and safe.
However, the efficiency and reliability of these safety devices
are closely connected with good and consistent manufacturing
quality. Various different circumstances or causes may also lead
to short circuit and other risks.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) In the pursuit of higher efficiency and endurance for
batteries, the Group conducted more rigorous review of the
safety of batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered
by the Group meet high safety standards;

(i)  The Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers
the liability arising from a defective product that causes
personal injury, property damage or other losses;

(iii) The raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality control department shall conduct inspection at each
stage throughout the whole production process to ensure
the Company’s product quality and safeguard the interests
of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2016, approximately 79% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from its ODM business. Over 62% of sales of ODM business was
derived from three domestic smartphone brand manufacturers. If
the Group loses one of these top customers, it may have adverse
effects on the operation and financial results of the Group’s
ODM business.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  The Group will look for more potential customers to reduce
its dependence on top customers;
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(i) The Group will strengthen after-sales services for customers,
pay regular visits to customers and conduct customer
satisfaction survey, to continuously improve the quality
of products and services and consolidate the Group’s
competitiveness in the industry and increase customer
loyalty;

(i) The Group will develop more new products to meet
customer needs.

The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from domestic
operating units. Adverse events in the domestic operation and
political environment may result in material adverse effects on
the Group’s business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Development of overseas markets to increase revenue from
overseas operations;

(i) Continuous monitoring of domestic operations and political
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and
establish quick strategic response to changing business
environment.

Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the
Group will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the
Group's financial performance and operating cash flow.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  Regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from
key customers to control it at an appropriate level;

(i) Implementation of strict internal control measures and
increase collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery module (the
Group’s main product) is lithium-ion battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, laptops and tablets,
wearable devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage
and other fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply
of lithium-ion battery cell will have a material impact on the
profitability and production costs of the Group.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Regular research and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials;

(i)  Through automation upgrade of production lines, the
Group solves the problem with human resources and
effectively controls production costs, which have positive
effects on improvement of the Group’s profitability and
control of production costs.

ACCIDENT RISKS

Major accidents including fires, natural disasters or serious
infectious diseases will affect the Group’s assets and operations,
thus affecting the Group’s operational capacity and reducing
profitability

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i)  Ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group's
properties and business is purchased;

(i) Provision of regular education and training sessions on
safety for all staff to strengthen staff's awareness of
production safety;

(iii) Training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and
fire drill at workplace are organized at least twice a year
to let staff have a solid understanding of the significance
and necessity of production safety and improve their own
awareness of safety protection;

(iv) The Company organizes physical examination for the
benefit of its staff to help in assessing possible occupational
and serious infectious diseases.

INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of Chinese economy in the near future,
commencement of drop in global shipment of smartphones and
the possible substantial decrease in consumers’ demands for
replacement of smartphones will have material adverse effects
on the Group’s business, financial position and operation results.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues:

(i) Proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-
ion batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp
opportunities for access to the market and adjust the
development strategy in response to changes in the market;

(i)  Proactively build a platform for communication with
consumers, pay close attention to consumers’ demands, timely
listen to consumers’ opinions, and provide good products and
after-sales services to increase customer loyalty.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules;

o conduct its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant
guidelines and policies relating to inside information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange
from time to time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and

o has implemented policy regarding prohibition on the unauthorised
use of confidential or inside information.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”).
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied

Having made specific enquiries of all

with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse
effect on the Company. Moore Stephens Certified Public Accountants
resigned as the external auditor of the Company with effect from
2 April 2015. BDO Limited Certified Public Accountants (“BDO
Limited”) has been appointed as the Company’s external auditor with
effect from 25 August 2016. During the Review Period, the amount
payable by the Group to BDO Limited and the PRC auditor for their
audit services was approximately RMB1,543,000 and RMB455,000
respectively. During the Review Period, the amount payable to BDO
Limited for their non-audit services in respect of review of the interim
financial information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2016 was approximately RMB214,000.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and their
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on pages 111 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed matter and engage actively with
the Company.
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Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s corporate communications including interim
and annual reports, annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened, as well as by making available all
the disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the Company’s
website. Shareholders may direct enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Share Registrars. To the extent the requisite
information of the Company is publicly available, Shareholders and
the investment community may at any time make enquiry in respect
of the Company in writing at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via the numbers and email address provided on the
Company's website.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at our head office in Hong Kong by post,
facsimile or email via a number and email address provided on the
Company’s website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition. The written requisition may be deposited at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton
Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary. If within 21 days
of such deposit of the written requisition, the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

82

BAIZ2BEBARRIZEEEN  BRETEMRFE
BE BRRBFAGREMAEEFANBRERRER
BREE UEAAZRXTHIMHREEAR
HEOZRALEMEETYMESRN AR R - Kk
RABZAARARBNDBFELBEALTRE -
RABAREHNZHER  RRRARKEL A
BB BN AR R RHE 2R R EHut - A
T BEREBSAMNARRZERENERER
EHRAHEER -

PR Z R

RIBARRR 2 BHMERMAE - EA— G ERIE
SERAMBEIPRARTHERAHBERAR
AIRE ARG FIREE) +5 2 —HREMNERRIRE
TEFE BN R R UL IR 4 2 SRS R E B sthak - LAE
T BENEBARAMURARRZEABRER
NESEAWERLERER  ERFEGLHR
RERIRE  WERBEMERTIERANEMEIE-
AREAZFRERNRTNNEBAPER - LA
B RBEEEBT7REEFRLI10ZI017E - ME
EGHANAMERER - WMRNERXBBEE2FZ AL
21BN E=eRAARABARE BIZBAFRK
HRAFZABREE  MARFERNZFEEARELRA
EFeRBEEHAEMEENMEAEME

AEEREXH

REZE2016F12A831HIEFE AR R ZEHER
XA B o



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN A 5 3
1E E/D%&%

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also seeking to maximise the interest and return for all
parties so as to enhance a harmonious development and a victorious
collaboration in the long run.

1. INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication
and interaction with investors, and continued to improve
communication channels with shareholders and investors, so as
to enhance governance transparency. The Group’s management
regularly meets with investors, and proactively announces the
latest information and business development plans.

2. CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products,
especially on mobile phone batteries and has implemented
strict quality control like I1SO so as to meet safety requirements.
With our product testing centres, we administer stages of
tests including crash, high-temperature, dampen and long
period recharging on our battery products. We also invest
resources in product R&D to develop more reliable products. The
battery products of the Group have also passed the stringent
requirements on quality control and safety set by the relevant
government authorities.

3. EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived
to enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and
increased factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols,
so as to ensure unobstructed fire passages and the availability
of water in case of fire. In addition, the Group has regularly
held fire drills, increased investments in fire prevention facilities
in factories, so as to ensure the sufficiency of fire prevention
equipment and facilities.
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The Group has proactively taken and implemented various
measures, including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner, ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in
case of fire;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’
hazard prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks and fire drills on such days;

(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops, with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact in such flammables.

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed
emphasis on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group
started a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied
to the establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents will
be cultivated at the skill training institute and available in the
pipeline to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry
participants. After a period of training, the Group will allocate
labour resources directly to various departments, which will
shorten the time of staff replacement and reduce labour cost.
Automated production will also be implemented at different
phases. Moreover, in the training process, participating staff
can understand the practical operation issues arising from the
course of production, which will effectively enhance production
efficiencies and qualities. The Group invites talents from society
and selects personnel with the required management and
technical expertise through professional and rigorous training
processes. At the same time, this also brings to society a new
generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the Company’s
social responsibilities.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis
and employment contracts were signed based on principles of
fairness and on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions
on contractual terms such as scope of work, remuneration,
social insurance, and working hours, among others. The legal
rights and obligations of the employer and employee are
clearly defined. We also strictly comply with the relevant laws
and regulations in relation to national social insurance to set
up insurance scheme for basic pension, medical, work-related
injuries, unemployment and maternity for employees and cover
the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to further protect
the interests of individual employees, the Company has taken
out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all employees.
The Group complied with the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China since 1 January 2008 and established a labor
union. We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in
support of construction and development of a harmonious and
stable employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of them are delivered to qualified recycling plants
for treatment.

For environmental, social and governance report of the Group,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance
report” on pages 86 to 106 of this report.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance report (the
"ESG Report”) of the Group, highlighting the environmental, social
and governance performance of the Group, which is prepared with
reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Main Board Listing Rules”).

The Group is principally engaged in the development, manufacture
and sale of lithium-ion battery modules for smartphones, tablets and
other smart electronic products as well as the provision of all-round
power supply solutions for various consumer electronic products. The
key business operations of the Group (the “Key Operations”) are
mainly operated in Mainland China through two subsidiaries of SCUD
both incorporated in the PRC, namely SCUD (Fujian) Electronics Co,.
Ltd. and SCUD Battery Co., Ltd.. The Key Operations account for
approximately 96% of the Group’s total revenue and approximately
73% of the Group’s total headcount for the year ended 31 December
2016. Total floor area coverage of office and production areas of the
Key Operations was 23,251 m?.

The ESG Report mainly covers the Group's overall performance in the
environmental and social aspects of the Key Operations for the period
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (the “Reporting Period”),
unless otherwise stated.

For corporate governance of the Group, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 63 to 85 of this report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

The ESG Report was prepared based on the four reporting principles
as stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide (i.e. materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency). In order to identify the most significant
aspects for the Group to report on for the ESG Report, key
stakeholders (including investors, shareholders and employees) have
been involved in regular meetings and engagement sessions to discuss
and to review areas of attention which will help the Group meet its
potential growth targets and be prepared for future challenges.
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STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please give your
suggestions or share your views with us via email: coso@scud.cn or
phone: 0591-63159773.

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION OF
THE GROUP

The Group is dedicated to continuously research and develop
innovative production methods, optimizing its business model, and
enhancing production efficiency and quality. At the same time,
the Group is committed to strictly comply with national laws and
regulations, protect legal rights and occupational health and safety
of employees, provide good working and living environment for the
employees, and attend to their job satisfaction. The Group also keeps
pace with the current market trend, ensures satisfaction of the needs
of stakeholders, and continuously makes improvement to maintain the
Group'’s image of integrity, honesty, fairness and justice, as well as
cutting down energy consumption. The Group emphasises corporate
social responsibility as one of the core requirements in every business
activity, with an aim to achieve a common goal and develop together
with customers, employees, shareholders and the society.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

In order to comply with the national “Environmental Protection

"

Law”, “Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution Law”,
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law”, “Production
Safety Law” and other relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
the Key Operations have established the following environmental
protection goals to reduce pollution and greenhouse gas

emissions:

1. promoting awareness of environmental protection by
requiring newly joined staff to attend at least 5 hours
of training on environmental protection and the training
attendance rate should be 100%

2. enhancing the emergency response plan and organization
by holding fire drills twice a year covering a variety of
scenarios and all production areas of the Group

3. ensuring all waste is properly treated on-site via effective
centralized collection
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4. managing all electrical appliances and ensuring they are
switched off during non-working hours

5. reducing product failure rate and recycle failed products

We are aware of the potential environmental impacts and
energy consumption caused by the Key Operation. Therefore,
we continue to strive to maximize the way we utilize resources,
ensure strict assessment and monitoring of safe production
and product safety, and strengthen the internal management
systems and preventive measures such as the establishment
and maintenance of the Group’s Environmental Protection
Management System and Material Management Policy, for the
purpose of better environmental quality control. Through the
identification of significant environmental and safety factors, the
Key Operations carry out continuous review and evaluation of
various control, monitoring and measuring procedures related
to operation, environmental protection, and occupational health
and safety management.

The Key Operations are also certified with 1SO14001
Environmental Management System. Responsibility and
production targets have been assigned to employees according
to their job duties and their performance is regularly evaluated,
which significantly minimize the wastage of human resources
and emission of pollutants.

Environmental Protection Management System

The Key Operations have established an Environmental Protection
Management System to clearly communicate to the employees
the expectations from the Group, the standard practices and
rules, and the responsibility and liability of the employees on
daily environmental protection works. For example, employees
are expected to integrate environmental protection works
from planning to implementation of daily production activities.
Environmental monitoring on wastewater discharge, gas emission
and noise control must be performed at least annually in order
to keep track of the Key Operations’ environmental performance
as well as to continuously minimize the Key Operations’
environmental impacts towards the surrounding community. The
Environmental Protection Management System also clearly states
that environmental discharge and emission standards must be
met and strictly complied with at all times.
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Material Management Policy

The Key Operations’ Material Management Policy prescribes the
environmental management responsibility of each department
of the Group. For example, the Human Resources and
Administrative Department of the Key Operations is responsible
for engaging companies which are approved and licensed by
municipal government on handling recyclable, non-recyclable and
hazardous waste. This department is also in charge of collecting
all solid waste from the Key Operations and continuously
monitoring the implementation of waste sorting and separation.

Controlling Noise Level

According to the Key Operations’ environmental monitoring
result, the current noise level at the surrounding area of the Key
Operations’ factories meets the “Emission Standard for Industrial
Enterprises Noise At Boundary” (GB12348-2008), in which the
noise levels for daytime and night time maintained at about
65dB and 55dB respectively, and accordingly having low impact
to the surrounding environment.

Promoting Green Offices

The Key Operations actively provide opportunities for employees
to learn and understand more about environmental protection
and encourage employees to carry out measures on reducing
water and electricity consumption in the office. Energy efficient
office appliances and lighting are installed and all lights are
required to be switched off when rooms are vacant. We also
aim to become a paperless office by encouraging the use of
electronic documents as much as possible and use of recycled
paper to further reduce our reliance on paper.
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1.

Emissions

(M

Air Pollutant Emission

Most production lines make use of resistance welding
and laser welding, and have been modified to be
carried out in a semi-enclosed environment with
automated machinery. Therefore, no welding fumes
are generated as compared to traditional methods.
Only a few production lines require traditional hand
weld, of which small amount of welding fumes
are generated. The fumes are then collected and
exhausted through designated exhaust pipe after
meeting the emission standards and its impact towards
the surrounding environment is insignificant. The Key
Operations also engaged with external professionals,
on an annual basis, to conduct monitoring on waste
gas emission, and monitoring results have been
satisfactory.

Annual data collection is carried out in accordance
with the Energy and Resource Management Procedure
of the Key Operations, which helps to identify the
actual environmental factors and activities from
business operation which could potentially contribute
to ozone depletion and greenhouse gas effect, as
well as analysing the major contributing factors,
environmental pollution sources and relevant control
measures.

Gaseous Fuel Consumption

During the Reporting Period, approximately 3,981.6
kg of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") was used for
canteen and residence purposes, contributing to
approximately 0.74 kg of nitrogen oxides (“NOx")
emission and approximately 0.004 kg of sulphur
oxides (“SOx") emission. Consumption of LPG also
contributed to approximately 11.51 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent emissions within Scope 1 (direct
emissions from the Key Operations).

The Key Operations have reduced the usage of LPG in
their canteens by approximately 35 kg as compared
to 2015, which equals to a reduction of emission
of approximately 0.10 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent within Scope 1.
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(i)

Vehicle Operation

Vehicles were used for staff and visitors commuting
during the Reporting Period, contributing to
approximately 96.74 kg of NOx emission, approximately
0.61 kg of SOx emission and approximately 8.80 kg
of respiratory suspended particles (“PM"”). Employees
are encouraged to use public transport if they are
attending to non-urgent matters. When the Group
needs to purchase commercial vehicles, vehicles of
low-consumption and low-fuel-emission are preferred
on the condition that the Group’s needs can be
satisfied at the same time.

BIIRIE
RIREEME - BWMEANEXET L
TH - REBEAE - EED96.74F
RAATINOY « £90.61F =i A
1E¥1(S0) K £98.80F 72 Al L A S8 2 B8
Ky((PM]) - REEBEIREEIHE
Z2HBERTERRAERE - R -
EXSETHRENARBIAR &
BB BE T RAEMBBER A 2
BIE  AIRRAEEZFRED
W

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions (i) BEREHEK
tonnes of
carbon
dioxide
equivalent
(tCO2e) Percentage of Total Emission
Scope giE M-S BREE (HEAPERE LA
Scope 1 Direct Emission SENEER 120.02 1%
Scope 2 Indirect Emission & E 2 P 10,913.97 97%
Scope 3 Other Indirect Emission HESEHMEIELER  182.66 2%
Notel:  Emission factors were made reference to Kizt1 0 B RBRAFTIEN 0 BEMEAE
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules Ty i _F 38 B B 6%
and their referred documentation as set 27 E Aol i & R T B
out by The Stock Exchanges of Hong Kong BMAXZHERANTZX
Limited, unless stated otherwise. 15 o
Note 2:  Combined margin emission factor (average) Kz © AfHEREEREEH(HE)
of 0.70285 t-CO2/MWh was used for the & Jk FL B50.70285MF — &
measurement of the emission amount of (b %% BB FA B 2 7F /b B Fr i
electricity purchased in the PRC. ANBEEHHEE o
Note 3:  Figures above are approximations only. KiaE3 : DA SR E ALY -

There were approximately 11,216.65 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (mainly carbon dioxide,
methane and nitrous oxide) emitted during the
Reporting Period. With the Key Operations’ efforts in
reducing LPG consumption in canteens and upgrading
the production lines with technology of higher
energy efficiency, there was an emission reduction
of approximately 154.63 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent as compared to 2015.

REREHRE - AEEEBEBK LK
#4911,216.65 G/t IE 2 (X EA
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FEE MR EE RN REERFTIEL
% F - E2015F M WA T4
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a. Scope 1 GHG Emission — Direct Emissions a. HENEERERBHK
tCO2e Percentage of Total Emission
Details in Scope 1 #HE1FHS WS L EE (AR LA
LPG consumption for canteen R E®&(LAHEREE 11.51 10%
Petrol consumption for mobile BB T HEFE  53.06 44%
equipment
Diesel consumption for mobile &)k #ELEmEFE  55.45 46%
equipment
Note : Figures above are approximations only. MfaE - LA EBURERIRL -
b. Scope 2 GHG Emission — Energy Indirect b. #ER2EREEREREHK
Emissions
tCO2e Percentage of Total Emission
Details in Scope 2 HE2FE M_SE{tmEE (HEBERLLF
Purchased electricity HEEN 10,913.97 100%
Note : Figures above are approximations only. BtaE - A EBUREABEA -
c.  Scope 3 GHG Emission — Other Indirect Emissions . HEBHMEEREREIR
tCO2e Percentage of Total Emission
Details in Scope 3 HE3FE MBSt EE (AR E
Electricity consumed for KKINTFES 99.35 54%
processing fresh water
Electricity consumed for EEXINTHEE 45.50 25%
processing wastewater
Business air travel B ZERTT 37.81 21%

Note : Figures above are approximations only.
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Business Air Travel

During the Reporting Period, business air travel
to various cities of the employees of the Key
Operations for potential business opportunities
contributed to a total emission of approximately
37.81 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent. The
Key Operations have established a “Business
Travel Management Regulation” on 1 March
2008, with a focus on cost saving and reduction

P TS M ZE BT T
RIREEHE - TEXBHES AR
VETE R T A7 T R T R R A A e
BRIT © A HFERA37. 81 Z ALK
B8 FEXEKLMN2008F3H1H
BRBEETIEEZEERT] BEH
BRAR  FRR B TR R R - 12
XHBRE T SERRITE L 2= RE A
ZBIEMIZE: AEENEEET

BIEERLNHBIT AN NEIA
BRILRM - EREHBN201645
FA3REHRTIREERAE ] HiF
HEEIT T AR - PlanEB e BleK
with public transport such as train instead of BRBFRENERIZERRR=F
plane, the Key Operations have amended the PEFHHR B — KL ©

“Business Travel Management Regulation” on 3

May 2016 and adjusted the standard guidelines,

such as amending the standard seating grade of

on staff air travel frequency. Standard guidelines
on using transportation during business trip
for different categories of employees are listed
therein. To encourage employees to commute

train for Director/Deputy General Manager level
from second-class seat to first-class seat.

(iii) Hazardous Waste (i) BEEEEY
Percentage of
Tonne Total Generation
Items HE g B RBERLEH
Waste containers with organic solvent &% & #A 7| §) 57 3% 48 0.21 11.78%
Waste cloth with lubricant oil e E B A EEM 0.1 6.28%
Waste ink and paint B MR 0.16 9.12%
Waste organic solvent from cleaning JEIEERKEFEIGRHEZAMEE 0.07 4.06%

the product surface
Waste battery REE 0.01 0.39%

Waste cloth with organic solvent hE A AT R EE R 1.23 68.37%

Hiat : A EBURIERBEA -

Note : Figures above are approximations only.
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(iv)

A total amount of approximately 1.79 tonnes of
hazardous waste was generated during the Reporting
Period. Hazardous waste is sorted on-site, labelled
and handled in accordance with the requirements
set out in the “Standard for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Waste Storage” (GB 18597-2001), in which
designated warehouse is provided for proper storage
and separation of chemical and dangerous goods, and

off

HARS - HELEH1. 790 F FRE
o BEEREMIZB(EREDET
F5AEHIE2%E) (GB 18597-2001)
WEHE - ZLREE - WiRHETE
BERARZERELIREERER
o ERERNEEREEREERER
BT REIE o KQB"EET@W&“ x1
BRENEBENEEGRA

P o

H
)

its installation is carefully designed and constructed BIERRIE o
by qualified specialists. Most hazardous waste is
transferred to Fujian Luzhou Solid Waste Treatment
Co., Ltd for further processing.
Non-hazardous Waste WMEREY
Tonne Percentage of Total Generation
Items BH A R E MBI
Domestic waste HIRRIR 459.2 44%
Commercial waste [SE3YEY 345.26 56%

Note : Figures above are approximations only.

During the Reporting Period, a total amount of
approximately 804.46 tonnes of non-hazardous
waste was generated, mainly in the categories of
domestic waste and commercial waste. Waste paper
and cardboard are sold, waste plastic is collected by
suppliers, waste components and circuit boards are
handled by qualified hazardous waste organizations;
while the domestic waste is collected daily and handled
by environmental and hygienic department. In general,
solid waste generated from the Key Operations has
been handled effectively and with proper treatment,
which greatly minimizes the potential impact to the
environment.

Measures taken for reducing generation of non-
hazardous waste and diverting waste from landfill
include:

- Source reduction: reduce consumption from the
source of non-hazardous waste, generate no
food wastage, use simple packaging and promote
paperless office
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- Reuse: reuse the cardboard boxes for partner
companies, reuse packaging for purchased
batteries, reuse paper as much as possible

- Green environment: reduce the use of disposable
cutlery, plastic bags, and encourage employees
to dine at canteens, in order to lower the
consumption of take-away food containers

Use of Resources

()

Energy Consumption

The Key Operations have established standard Energy
and Resource Management Procedure for overseeing
the supply and proper use and control of resources
used for production and domestic uses, either self-
produced or outsourced, such as water, electricity,
fuels, LPG, paper, and other raw materials. The Energy
and Resource Management Procedure also provides
detailed guidelines on how to keep track of usage
data, saving practices, preventive measures on leakage
or wastage. This procedure helps setting and reviewing
the annual energy saving emission reduction plan for
the Key Operations. Target has been set to achieve
reduction of energy consumption by 3% as compared
to the previous year and ensure 100% reuse of waste
cardboard boxes.

In terms of energy consumption, the Key Operations
have adopted new energy saving technique during
production processes, which resulted in lower
production costs, elevated the economic efficiency
and reduced electricity consumption by approximately
219,860 kWh as compared to 2015 (in which its
emission equals to approximately 154.53 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent). Conveyor belt for collecting
waste materials during production has been optimized
to become an automatic system, which greatly reduces
energy consumption from the usage of high pressure
air, resulting in a better and energy saving production
environment.
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Electricity

During the Reporting Period, the electricity
consumption by the Key Operations was
approximately 15,528,170 kWh, contributing
to approximately 10,913.97 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent emissions. The Group supports
“Earth Hour” by encouraging employees to
switch off all lights and appliances before leaving
work and the last one leaving the office has the
responsibility to check if all lights, air conditioners,
fans, printers and other electrical appliances are
turned off. Employees at production areas have
to shut down machines before leaving work or
after finished using them; computer monitors and
location based fans shall also be turned off if the
office employees leave the desk for 30 minutes
or longer; the air conditioning at the office area
shall only be turned on when the temperature
reaches 28°C or more; lights (under the condition
of sufficient lighting for safe production) at
corridors in between production operation areas,
meeting rooms which are not used for conference
purpose (include cleaning), washrooms, pantries,
receptions and corridors in between production
operation areas shall be switched off during day
time and when no one is in use; when occupancy
rate is low, use of daylight shall be maximized
and excessive lights shall be switched off;
utilization rate of equipment (such as improving
the loading rate of transformer and motor) shall
be increased; and regular checking on wire
connection shall be conducted and if there is any
leakage, it shall be repaired immediately in order
to minimize the heat loss due to leakage or bad
connection.
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b. Diesel, Petrol and LPG
During the Reporting Period, approximately
19,999.97 litres of diesel were used for product
loading and shipping, approximately 19,521.95
litres of petrol were used for staff commuting
and visitors pick-ups, and approximately 3,981.6
kg of LPG were used for cooking at the canteen.

(ii) Water Consumption

During the Reporting Period, water consumption by
the Key Operations was approximately 244,281.76 m?
contributing to an emission of approximately 99.35
tonne of carbon dioxide equivalent. Water is supplied
by the industrial park. The Key Operation itself does
not involve water consumption, therefore the only
wastewater discharge was generated from domestic
use. After on-site treatment through septic tanks,
sewage is discharged to nearby wastewater treatment
plant for further centralized processing, where its
discharge to Minjiang River meets the “Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard” (GN8978-96). During
the Reporting Period, approximately 45.50 tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent were emitted due to
electricity used for sewage processing.

The Key Operations have established water
conservation measures, which include:

—  water saving promotional materials shall be
displayed at notice board, office area, production
area, residence area, to promote production
methodology and activities that are water saving

- enforcement on education on water conservation
practices, establish a sense of ownership, so
that all employees will develop good habits
of “turn off the tap as you go”, “people go
water off” and avoid the occurrence of “non-
stop running water”. Ensure good maintenance
works for water facilities, warning and penalty
may be applied to anyone who violate relevant
regulation or damage any water facilities or cause
unnecessary water wastage

b. 48 - UHRR{EAMR
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- investment in water saving technology and
develop water saving equipment

—  effective water use control during production and
cleaning processes

—  regular replacement of faucet to prevent the
occurrence of running, dropping, dripping and
leakage of water

(iii) Packaging Materials

During the Reporting Period, packaging materials
consumed by the Key Operations mainly involved
paper and plastic for the protection, storage,
internal transfer and delivery of components and
finished products and for labelling. A total amount
of approximately 714 tonnes of packaging materials
were consumed during the Reporting Period. The Key
Operations shall communicate with customers, simplify
the packaging material in terms of quantity and type
while ensuring quality of product protection during
distribution. Plastic bags, carton knife card and carton
packaging are used for manufactured goods, while
electrostatic tray and internal reusable transfer box are
used for component products.

SOCIAL

The Key Operations were audited in accordance with the
“Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition” (“EICC") program, a
common code of conduct for the electronics and information
and communications technology industry. Compliance with
the EICC standards ensures that working conditions in the
Key Operations’ supply chain are safe, workers are treated
with respect and dignity and manufacturing processes are
environmentally responsible. The Key Operations are also certified
with the I1SO 14001:2004, OHSAS18001:2007 and ISO9001:2008
management systems.
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Employment and Labour Practices

(@

Employment
Compensation and Benefits Package

The Key Operations are in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC regarding
employment, which include minimum wages, legally
mandated breaks, holidays, leave and benefits (such as
social insurance and dismissal). Employees are entitled
to leave of absence, annual leave, sick leave, marriage
leave, compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave, voluntary leave, injury leave, compensation leave
and breastfeeding breaks. Wages are not deducted
for leave with proper reasons and overtime wages are
paid to employees. All employees have signed labour
contracts as required by law and are free to leave their
employment after giving reasonable notice. They are
also provided with clean toilet facilities, safe and well-
maintained dormitories, and canteens at dormitories.

A non-compliance incident regarding overtime work
was found in the EICC audit during the Reporting
Period. The Key Operations have published “Overtime
Work Management Regulation” on 28 August 2015,
setting standard management procedures for overtime
work. Moreover, automatic notification system has
been set up for any non-compliant overtime work.
By using advanced automatic production equipment
and assigning employees to work on production of
similar components or products, employee efficiency is
enhanced and overtime work is effectively minimized.
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Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect
of recruitment, training and development, job
advancement, and compensation and benefits. The
Key Operations established policy on prohibition of
discrimination. Employees are not discriminated against
or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of race,
colour, age, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity
and expression, ethnic background or nationality,
disability, academic background, pregnancy, religion,
political stance, community background, military
background, genetic information, marital status or any
other discrimination prohibited by applicable law. Any
sexual harassment at workplace, in the community or
public area is also prohibited.

Employee Communication

Internal communication channels include notice boards,
intranet, website, and social media communication
platform. The Key Operations also conduct annual
surveys to collect employees’ feedback regarding its
operation, management and training etc. and organize
forum to discuss the Key Operations’ performances,
feedback and suggestions with employees. Collection
boxes for suggestions are available at the workshops
and dormitory.
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(i)

Employee Welfare and Benefits

The Group understands the importance of employee
welfare and benefits, thus meals, accommodation and
medical benefits are provided to employees free of
charge. The Key Operations also invested approximately
RMB5 million on building the Employee Life Centre,
which offers employees free access to teaching halls,
karaoke entertainment rooms, pool tables, badminton
courts and other function rooms. During traditional
festivals, the Key Operations organize events and
activities for employees and offer them gifts such as
scarves to female employees on International Women's
Day, traditional sticky rice dumplings at Dragon Boat
Festival and mooncakes at Mid-Autumn Festival, and
birthday gifts. “Mummy’s Nutrition Food Counter”
has been set up for offering healthy and nutritious
food services for female employees, especially for new
mums and mums-to-be. In addition, professionals are
stationed at the Employee Caring Centre to handle
any employee’s concerns that require consulting or if
they would like to file a complaint, at the same time,
Human Resources and Administrative Department
conducts interviews and satisfaction surveys with
employees on a monthly basis to understand their
concerns and opinions and the Key Operations ensure
issues or problems are solved as early as possible.
The Key Operations also assist employees on the
application of personal honour, professional/technical
assessment, vocational qualifications, as well as
offering training courses for upgrading their academic
qualifications and supporting 70% of individual
employee’s tuition fees.

Employee Health and Safety

Employees’ exposure to potential safety hazards
(including electrical, fire, vehicles and fall hazards) are
controlled through proper design of equipment and
machines, engineering and administrative controls,
preventative maintenance and safe production
procedures, and ongoing safety trainings. The Key
Operations established effective fire detection, alarm
and suppression systems, implemented emergency
programs and provided adequate first-aiders.
Appropriate personal protective equipment (“PPE")
such as insulative gloves and shoes are also provided
to employees with instructions posted at workshops.

(i)
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(iii)

The Key Operations ensure that their operations are
in compliance with all applicable standards, laws and
regulations regarding occupational health and safety.
Inspections on indoor air quality and noise have been
conducted by independent inspectors during the
Reporting Period. According to the 2016 monitoring
data on noise, air, exhaust from production and
canteen, and operation performance on occupational
health and safety factors, the Key Operations’ business
is in line with and meets the “Occupational Exposure
Limits for Hazardous Agents in the Workplace”
(GBZ2.1-2007), "Integrated Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants” (GB 16297-1996) and “Emission
Standard of Cooking Fume” (GB 18483-2001), and
other relevant laws and regulations. This leads to a
good employee’s working and living environment
which meets the occupational health and safety
requirements.

The Key Operations will also enhance their capability
in detection and supervision of major risk factors, and
implement effective control and governance measures
to further reduce the operational risk level year by
year, lowering public safety concerns.

Development and Training

The Key Operations have established effective training
process for all new and existing employees. Training
topics cover induction, policy, the EICC program, gift,
hospitality or promises, safety (including fire safety,
chemical and machine safety), hazardous substances
handling and use of PPE.

The Group has published a “Training Management
Regulation” on 3 May 2016 in which it has addressed
various issues regarding training. To identify training
need of individual employees, the Key Operations carry
out the measures below:

-  Human Resources and Administrative Department
conducts training need survey on an annual basis
for establishing training plan for the coming year,
and implements strictly according to annual plan

—  Employees can register for training when new
courses are promoted through internal emails

(iii)
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- The Key Operations welcome suggestions of
new training topics from employees. Employees
can submit their suggestions through a standard
application process to the management of the
Group and if approved, the Human Resources
and Administrative Department will organize the
relevant training

(iv) Labour Standards

Pursuant to the “Labour Law of the PRC”, there is
no child nor forced labour in the Key Operations.
Policies on prohibition of child and forced labour have
been established to ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations relating to preventing child and
forced labour. Only workers who are over 16 years
old can be recruited. Employees are not unreasonably
restricted with their movements and their access to
basic liberties. Young and inexperienced employees are
arranged at suitable positions, avoiding work that is
likely to jeopardize their health or safety.

The Key Operations check job candidates’ identity
cards and relevant certificates in the recruitment
process. Candidates who submit untruthful information
can be dismissed. Employees being coerced to work
through the use of violence or intimidation, or being
discriminated or harassed, can lodge complaints to the
management of the Group. Such cases will be handled
cautiously with strict confidence and will be reported
to the Public Security if necessary.

2. Operating Practices

(@

Supply Chain Management

The Key Operations established purchasing policy
to avoid purchasing of tantalum, tin, tungsten and
gold (“3TG") minerals, since it is considered as
direct or indirect financing of armed groups who are
perpetrators of serious human rights abuses in the
Democratic Republic of Congo or nearby countries.
Based on the principles of openness, fairness and
honesty, suppliers are selected with consideration of
their legitimacy, cost, production and management
system, production and supply capacity, technology
and quality.
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(i)

Suppliers and contractors shall undertake to operate
their businesses with social responsibilities, minimize
environmental and social risks of their operation. The
Key Operations rate corporate social responsibility
("CSR") performances of suppliers and give
preferences to suppliers with high CSR ratings. CSR
performance of key suppliers are reviewed regularly.

Product Responsibility
Quality Assurance

The Key Operations’ Material Management
Policy provides an organizational framework and
detailed guidelines and instructions on individual’s
responsibility, so as to maintain the highest product
standards and quality, fulfil customers’ needs,
comply with regulations of the importing country/
regions and ensure the consistency of product
order, inspection, sampling and delivery processes.
For instance, Quality Assurance Department makes
sure materials are supplied and products are
produced with third party environmental testings
and supervises the products’ environmental labelling
(such as Restriction of Hazardous Substances,”RoHS”
or Halogen Free,”HF") and identification during
production process. This department also follows
standard procedures on handling failed or missing
testing reports from suppliers, and follows up with
any contaminated components, semi-finished products
with representative authorities. The Key Operations
has established a complaint handling policy to handle
complaints from our customers regarding the quality
of our products.

Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property protection procedure is established
for the protection of the Key Operations’ patent,
technology secret, trademarks, trade secret, copyrights
and other intellectual property rights under national
laws. Employees are required to sign confidentiality
agreements when joining the Group, and to attend
training regarding the intellectual property protection
procedure on an annual basis. Moreover, rules and
conditions regarding intellectual property protection
are also written in all technical contracts with
partnering companies in the areas of commissioned or
cooperative technology research and development.

(i)
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(iii)

Consumer Data Protection

Effective procedure is established and the Human
Resources and Administrative Department of the Key
Operations has the sole responsibility and is fully
committed to the privacy protection of employees,
suppliers, customers and consumers. Regular training
has also been provided to employees in Human
Resources and Administrative Department on this
subject on a regular basis.

Anti-corruption

Policy has been established for prevention of
corruption and bribery. Financial activities and
potential risk areas of different departments within the
business operation of the Group are identified in early
stage. All new employees are required to sign the
Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery undertaking letter
before joining the Group, as well as all suppliers and
contractors which engaged in business relationship
with the Group. They are also required to strictly
comply with “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC”, “Criminal Law of the PRC"”, and other laws,
regulations and regulatory documents related to
commercial bribery. Employees shall not engage in
any activities that would harm the interests of the
Key Operations and shall strictly follow the “SCUD
Business Code of Ethics”, “Anti-Corruption and Anti-
Bribery Management Regulation” and related guidance
and documents. Any reported case of suspicious issues
will be followed up and the concerned employee will
be subject to disciplinary action including, but not
limited to, progressive discipline and record, demotion,
suspension or dismissal.

The Key Operations have established the Whistle-
blower Protection Management Procedure to ensure
the confidentiality and protection of whistle-blowers
who may be the clients, suppliers, contractors and/or
employees of the Group. Grievance boxes are available
throughout the premises and Human Resources hotline
is provided, and confidentially report channel and
communication method have been stated in business
contracts, so that clients, suppliers, contractors and
employee can report suspected ethical misconduct
confidentially.

(iii)
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There was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Key Operations or its
employees during the Reporting Period.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Since 2005, the Key Operations have been fully committed
to social responsibility with long-term investment in helping
vulnerable groups in the society. Donations to the society
and schools are the major focus areas of the Key Operations’
community engagement. During the Reporting Period, in
response to the campaign of “Hundreds Enterprises with
Hundreds Villages, Build New Farms Together” which is
organized by municipal departments and non-public enterprises
working committee, the Key Operations have proactively reached
out to Beiyang Village of Donggiao town, Minging county, to
donate computers, notebooks and other office supplies, as
well as sports equipment to the villagers. RMB30,000 was also
donated to the local school for buying teaching equipment,
stationaries and books. Home visits have also been arranged for
underprivileged households. In 2016, SCUD has signed a three-
year agreement with Paizha Village of Zhongxin town, Pucheng
county, for supporting them with basic necessities of life and
clothing according to actual needs of the village. The Key
Operations, together with the stakeholders, will continue their
active participation in promoting social harmony and economic
prosperity in the coming years.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 115 to 230, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2016, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for

Our responsibilities under those

the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Opening inventories as at 1 January 2016

We were engaged to perform the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 in August 2016, and we were therefore not able
to attend the physical inventory count conducted by the Group
for its inventories as at 31 December 2015. As the directors of
the Company were unable to provide or match the required
information and supporting documents for/to certain sale and
purchase transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016, we
were unable to perform inventory roll-back procedures from the
inventory balances as at 31 December 2016 of which we have
attended and observed the physical inventory count conducted
by the Group. Our audit report on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
was modified accordingly. Since opening inventories affect the
determination of the financial performance and cash flows
for the current year, we are unable to determine whether any
adjustment might have been necessary in respect of the financial
performance reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and the net cash flows
from operating activities reported in the consolidated statement
of cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Certain sale and purchase transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were sales of
approximately RMB631 million to customers and purchases of
approximately RMB1,153 million from suppliers that we were
not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on the
completeness, existence and accuracy of these transactions as
the directors of the Company were unable to provide or match
the required information and supporting documents for/to these
sale and purchase transactions for the year ended 31 December
2016.

We were unable to satisfy ourselves with any alternative audit
procedure on the completeness, existence, and accuracy of these
sale and purchase transactions, and hence unable to determine
whether these amounts were fairly stated in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

(Refer to notes 5(v), 5(vi), 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets with carrying amount of
approximately RMB288 million and RMB3 million respectively.
As the Group incurred a loss for the year, this has increased the
risk that the carrying amounts of these assets may be impaired.
The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the cash generating units in which these assets
belonged to in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies
and concluded that, except for the written off of property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB2 million, there was no
impairment loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
units required the exercise of significant management judgement.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment
assessment included:

e Assessing the appropriateness of methodology used for
assessing the recoverable amounts; and

e Assessing the reasonableness of the underlying key
assumptions used.
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Impairment assessment of trade and notes
receivables

(Refer to notes 4(h), 5(iii) and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade and notes
receivables with carrying amount of approximately RMB1,650
million and an impairment loss of approximately RMB319 million
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the trade and notes receivables in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies which required the exercise
of significant management judgement in considering factors
such as the credit history including default or delay in payments,
ageing analysis, settlement records during the year and
subsequent settlements after the year end.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment
assessment included:

° Understanding the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the customers;

e  Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade and notes
receivables;

o Reviewing payment patterns during the year and amount
of subsequent settlements after the year end made by the
customers;

e Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s estimation of
recoverability of trade and notes receivables with reference
to factors considered by the directors.
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OTHER
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The audit committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

Ay E A &

BERAEFAHEMENEE - HENBRERER
AFEHRAMBEN  BEXRBREEAVBHRERLK
PR BB RS

BPSGEAMBHRRNBEAL MREELMEN R
PITATHZEEMERBEREMTANERER -

EARMEEETBRRNES  RMNEETRH
EEMER - FURET  EREMENRST HER
EUBRRIBMERTEBRPATHENERLFE
EREBAEUFFEERBERBANER - ER

BPERTHOIE HEMARAEMLENFEEX
R RMFEREZFE - EE57@E > 3

W BAEATIRE -

ESHREUMBBRRARENEE

BERREFARERBERRYBRELNREE(A
T1%1J>E’J?&E§ﬁmkﬁ1ﬁﬁgfﬁ NP EERA R
#H %T/\m?%ﬁﬁi BUBRRNRETFE
=) B M ERERBLE A

ERBEAVBHRRY  EFAETHEEENGE
BREEN YHEERBATRERRELZEH
MER URERFELERSTER  KRIFES
BEEHRERERRIELLE  RPELMERD
BRI

EENEEEBELEENUBRERE - BHRES
CHEERTHEEEEENT KRS BRENRE
EMELE ©

111



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBEERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
18 BT S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

s HEERMBBELLSTERNREEERS
i WIRBENNESRE  BETOHFHES
HEEERBELZENEIBRERRBN =M
HEREERTHEERAR - HERPIRR/EFE
BATHERR  RMIBEREBE RS FIRE
EREIEGAMBRRTNEERE - &
EHRERETR  RIRMEEERIFEREER
R B EREENZEEHE A LER
HERHRE © AT - RIRFHIIT I A LB B
BEEBETRHEKRE -

o HESAMBHERNEBEIGRSA  BBERA
R BREREE URGAMBHRRERTHTER
YR IV E

s HEXERNERIEBIDHNIBERESR
B EEMEEE  AMSAPBHmRESR
BER-RMAAARKSE BEBERHTESEN
BT TE - RPIBERBIHERAER2HEE -

BREMEBRIN RARBEALREGBBTENTE
METEIEE  BRZERERBRITERS  BER
PIRERFT P BRI L PO R 42 I e (2 ] B K ERPE -

113



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBEERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB ET RS

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Tsui Ka Che, Norman
Practising Certificate no. PO5057

Hong Kong, 30 April 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 220161231 H 1 F/Z

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARBTT ARBFT
Turnover EE L 6 6,061,477 4,509,441
Cost of sales FHER A (5,503,647) (3,986,817)
Gross profit EAH 557,830 522,624
Other revenue LRl 7 63,074 42,012
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAS (72,533) (57,618)
Administrative expenses THAX (367,566) (294,017)
Other operating expenses HEgE e (392,507) (144,148)
Finance costs BVERAK 1M (26,564) (27,317)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENTE R R EER S 37 64,145 -
(Loss)/profit before income tax M ERAT(EBR) 8 8 (174,121) 41,536
Income tax P 12 49,288 (18,000)
(Loss)/profit for the year RNEE (BE) /% F| (124,833) 23,536
Other comprehensive income AEEBAHMEERE !
for the year, net of tax:
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently REERRRENREZE
to profit or loss #IEH
— Exchange differences on translating — BEBINEREREE
foreign operations (10,712) (4,929)
Other comprehensive income for the year, AEERBEMPEWE
net of tax (10,712) (4,929)
Total comprehensive income rEEXHEREAE
for the year (135,545) 18,607
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z20164 12531 H 1 F/Z

2016 2015
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B AR% T AREFT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: THATEIEARFEE(E1B),HEF:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE ZEDN (118,951) 38,168
Non-controlling interests SEE IR R (5,882) (14,632)
(124,833) 23,536
Total comprehensive income THIATREEEESE
attributable to: e
Owners of the Company VIN/NGTE ¥ =N (129,663) 33,239
Non-controlling interests FEE IR R (5.882) (14,632)
(135,545) 18,607
(Losses)/earnings per share Sk (EE)BF
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARED) 14 (10.91) 3.50
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At 31 December 2016 #2016 12/31H

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR®TRT ARETET

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR M 15 288,377 299,717
Intangible assets W AE 16 3,124 3,589
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMBEE 17 - 1,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfTFRIE « &5 M E b fE Y ZIE 21 21,310 26,280
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 30 141,451 101,742
Total non-current assets SEmEEEMATE 454,262 432,328
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 18 462,644 645,609
Financial assets at fair value through profit  @i@BIZATEIEY WK EE
or loss 19 - 60,000
Trade and notes receivables FEWEB SHENEREZE 20 1,650,416 1,235,503
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — JE{IIE - R4 & H i fE U 7k 21 244,493 307,610
Amounts due from related parties JEUL BB A T F08 22 146,817 56,714
Current tax recoverable AT Uy =] B EARR IE 5,443 -
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITIFR 23 552,962 596,121
Time deposits TFHIER 24 - 140,000
Bank balances and cash RITHBREIRE 24 170,305 249,430
Total current assets BN A R 3,233,080 3,290,987
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and notes payables ENEB ST IE&FEHZJF 25 2,114,370 1,878,050
Other payables, receipts in advance and EMpEFRIA - ARG
accrued charges KIEstE A 26 207,731 189,552
Provision for warranty EmREEES 27 1,943 1,870
Bank loans — current portion RITER—MEE S 28 415,094 339,956
Other loans — current portion Hib B —mgspn 28 7,466 11,369
Obligations under finance lease — MEHRSEE - RBHSD
current portion 28 5,455 5,202
Amount due to a director EREEHIA 29 5,839 105,520
Amounts due to related parties FEfTRAEA LR 22 9,653 73,847
Current tax payable FESTRNERRRIE = 42,476
Total current liabilities mE B E AR 2,767,551 2,647,842
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At 31 December 2016 #2016 12/31H

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BfaE AR¥T T ARBFT
Net current assets RBEEFRE 465,529 643,145
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRABEE 919,791 1,075,473
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Other loans — non-current portion Hi B —3EmEstn 28 - 7,465
Obligations under finance lease — HEHERE RIS
non-current portion 28 2,350 7,805
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 30 6,854 5,590
Total non-current liabilities ERHAaEAsE 9,204 20,860
Net assets BEE 910,587 1,054,613
Capital and reserves EAXRH#E
Share capital [N 31 107,590 107,590
Reserves 1 32 790,504 918,160
Equity attributable to owners of the RATEE ARMLES
Company 898,094 1,025,750
Non-controlling interests FEIER S 33 12,493 28,863
Total equity R 910,587 1,054,613

FANG JIN
g
DIRECTOR

B=
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GEMEBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 220161231 H 1 F/Z

Attributable
Statutory ~ Enterprise Share to owners Non-
Share Share Capital reserve  expansion  Translation option  Accumulated of the  Controlling Total
capital  premium reserve fund fund fleserve  resenve losses ~ Company ~ Interests equity
L9
iy i BhiE EEA

B RhEE EAEE DRt RRER NGk BE  HIER RIS HBER  gER
RVBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RVB'O00  RMBOOD  RWBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RWBI000
ARETRL ARBTL ARRTTL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETL ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R015E1A1A 107590 619288 186,215 101,907 51,791 (59,805) 14,811 (29.286) 992,511 43495 1,036,006
Profit{loss) for the year TEEEH/ (BE) - - - - - - - 38,168 38,168 (1463)  23,53%
Other comprehensive income £k 2ENE - - - - - 49 - - 4o -9
Total comprehensive income FERRENGEE

for the year - - - - - (4.929) - 38,168 3,239 (14,632) 18,607
Appropriations Al - - - 1269 6,345 - - (1903 - - -
At 31 December 2015 0155128318 107590 619288 186,215 114,597 58,136 (64,734) 14811 (10,153) 1,025,750 28,863 1,054,613
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z20164 12531 H 1 F/Z

Attributable
Statutory ~ Enterprise Share to owners Non-
Share Share  Capital  reserve expansion Translation option  Acumuiated  of the controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve fund fund  reserve  reserve losses Company interests equity
L%
HE iz 4 BhE FEA  HER
Bx  RiEE EARE  ARE  BREE  EXER fife EiBE  EEHD Bx  4Es
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTr ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETZ ARETn ARETz
At 1 January 2016 201651818 10759 619288 186215 114507 58136  (64734) 14811  (10153) 1,005750 28863 1,054,613
Loss for the year TEER - - - - - - - (118951) (118951)  (5882)  (124:833)
Other comprehensive income Ef2EhE - - - - - (10712) - - (1o - (1)
Total comprehensive income FEERANRER
for the year - - - - - (10712) - (118,951)  (129,663) (5,882)  (135,545)
Capital reduction of a FREMBARRAIE
non-wholly-owned subsidiary - - - - - - - 2,007 2000 (15927)  (13,920)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37)  HEHBAR([337) - - - - - - - - - 5439 5439
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 10759 619288 186215 114507 58136  (75446) 14811 (127,007 898,094 12493 910587
Notes: PEE
Share premium A% s (2

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company.
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and

B 45 3 (BB B 17 (B (IR (T T B 77 B9 ) B A
BTROEES B oA RAD R
- BRRGEREALE 280 Bl
Bl -
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FEENES NPEERES

REEBEARBIRECEZPEARKNE
(TR B ) AR ROER KA R AR F BN ERQAA

the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company, 4=fZ400 ZZAhHEWE A A BL%IEWIEETEH
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, {& - BEE AR S ROEBREE S (B AT DK E

namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 220161231 H 1 F/Z

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. ("Scud Battery”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Hongde"”), Fujian Green Energy Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Green
Energy”), Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde"),
Scud Power System Co., Ltd. (“Scud Power System”) (together the “PRC
Subsidiaries”) are required to transfer 10% of their respective profit
after income tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements
to the statutory reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of their
respective registered capital. Pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, they are also required to make appropriation
from their respective profit after income tax as reported in the PRC
statutory financial statements to the enterprise expansion fund at
rates determined by their respective boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/losses arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Share option reserve

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to
the employees over the vesting period.

Accumulated losses
No dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December 2016 and

2015. As at 31 December 2016, the balance of accumulated losses of
the Group was RMB127,097,000 (2015: RMB10,153,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 22016412531 H 1F F/Z

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBRBERERE
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSR AT (EE), & F (174,121) 41,536
Adjustments for: HEIEE
Interest income FEHA (15,073) (13,920)
Finance costs BB A 26,564 27,317
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 1,563 1,536
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERYAEER - 18
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BELRERE 50,391 60,015
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERREHE 8,146 10,565
Write off of property, plant and equipment YE - R KR EMEE 1,951 26,221
Impairment loss recognised on trade and notes TR 5 708 M B N E IR R 2R
receivables BEEE 319,083 25,062
Impairment loss recognised on prepayment, deposits ~ BETET B - 24 R E M EWHKIBHR
and other receivables HEBE 57,520 59,202
Reversal of write down of inventories o FEE R (284,200) (52,856)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE TR A (64,145) -
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in working LEESEPHINEL(BR),/ R
capital (72,321) 184,696
Sales proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair BB X AFEFARBER ZHBEE
value through profit or loss FT850A 60,000 -
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through BBERBRATERENBEE
profit or loss - (60,000)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFERD,/(38hn) 377,368 (223,822)
Increase in trade and notes receivables W B 55008 & FE MR E 4RI 0 (764,990) (75,906)
Decrease/ (increase) in prepayments, deposits and FANFE - Be REAMEYRGIE
other receivables E,/(32h0) 519 (53,987)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from related parties FEUEEE A TZIE(E M), HD (90,103) 1,261
Increase in trade and notes payables [ERT B 55008 & e E &L 0 403,200 661,235
Increase/(decrease) in other payables, receipts in Hib e F0E - BRFIERETEH
advance and accrued charges 20/ CFid) 32,432 (19,200)
Increase in provision for warranty EmRIEEESIE 73 -

122



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

G;EeRE

i

For the year ended 31 December 2016 220161231 H 1 F/Z

2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Cash (used in)/generated from operations CE(FR),/ FELRE (53,822) 414,277
Interest paid 2RME (26,564) (27,317)
Income tax paid BAPTEH (32,515) (16,016)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating TeEE (TR ELERSFE
activities (112,901) 370,944
Investing activities RETH
Interest received 2UF B 15,073 13,920
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BEBEITFERORD, () 37,456 (174,017)
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets W HEEMBEE = (1,000)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial &AL EKEE Y FBZIE
assets 1,000 -
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment BEVE  WE&RETRE (58,330) (56,175)
Payments to acquire intangible assets BEEFEENR (1,738) (2,497)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits TEEEFEZRD /(M) 140,000 (80,000)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of an associate ~ HEMAATEE 2RSSR AERE - 1,421
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBATREEZESRAFE 3,306 -
Capital reduction of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary FE2EWBARESHD (13,920) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing REZBHRELS/ (FR)HEELBE
activities 122,847 (298,348)
Financing activities METH
Bank loans raised EERTEH 970,678 726,424
Repayment of bank loans BERFETER (885,087) (774,908)
Repayment of other loans BEEMER (11,368) (10,658)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases EBEnEHERE (5,202) (2,981)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a director FENEZERECRD) /B (99,681) 62,837
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related parties  JEfTREE A FUIBCRIA) /10 (56,028) 52,168
Decrease in amount due to an associate JEE 1< B 8 B SRIEIRL D = 3)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BMETH (A ELRSFE
activities (86,688) 52,879
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2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash RERBLEEEEFHECGED), M
equivalents (76,742) 125,475
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year EPELRHAELEEER 249,430 122,229
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgHTE (2,383) 1,726
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREGRESEEER 170,305 249,430
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash BeRBEEEABLERINT
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEHB MRS 170,305 249,430
Non-cash transaction FERERH

During the year ended 31 December 2016. There is no non-cash REZE2016F12A31BILFE - HEIERETH -

transaction. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group & E2015F12A31HIFFE

CAEEWEREH

acquired property, plant and equipment of RMB15,988,000 under EIE ¥ « HE RE#E A AR 15,988,0007 ©

finance leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 220161231 H 1 F/Z

GENERAL

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones, tablets and digital electronic appliances, while also
engaging in manufacture and sale of lithium-ion bare battery
cells.

ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs - effective 1

—RE#
REREEMERA (AR ])H200647
20REMSHEEMALARRE Y EHER
AR HBRAR2006% 1221 BEBEBBA R
S AR AR ([ 2FT ) ER L -

ARBMEBEBR/REZR - REKBE QA
TENFRUTE  PREBMLRBERETE
MRz BB FERRENBEE ZEER
HE  MMEFRBETFEC L EERBHE o

B A0 B PR B 75 3R o 2 B ([ B R B
B EEL )

(a) BRANHRE] /RAEFT B BR B 75 3R o5 %

January 2016

IFRSs (Amendments)
B[R B 75 R 5 22 A (18 RT A )

Amendments to IAS 1
B2t R E 1R (BRI A)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38
BBt R E 165 K EBR &R ERIF38%
(BETA)

Amendments to IAS 27
B ERIE 275 (185 A%)

Amendments to IFRS 16,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28
RIS E R 165% « BRI S HE %
AISE125% R EIR & st 2RI 2857 (1B R] AR)

IFRS 14
BP0 5 ¥ 5 RIS 1457

Bl-B20165F181B4EX
Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
2012F 2 20144F B HY S R iU

Disclosure Initiative

KEDZ

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

BIBYTE M2 IR TR

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

B BHRER P ERAERE

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
RERRE - [ERiGRA ZIMER

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
EERLERP
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BR4WEER Bt 73R4 % 8| ([ BB Bt
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued) XA |) 2

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs - effective 1 (a) BRMHsT RBITBERTBREE

126

January 2016 (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities to use
judgement in the application of IAS 1 when considering the
layout and content of their financial statements.

Included in the clarifications is that an entity’s share
of other comprehensive income from equity accounted
interests in associates and joint ventures is split between
those items that will and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss, and presented in aggregate as a single line item within
those two groups.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant
and equipment. The amendments to IAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that amortisation based on revenue
is not appropriate for intangible assets. This presumption
can be rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed
as a measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated. The amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not previously used
revenue-based depreciation methods.

Bl—BH2016F1B1BEX (&)
BBt ERIE 155 (17T A) — BB %
HEFTAE ARBEREZRREVHR
RzMBREAREREABR G E]FE
5% BAZ AP B A AU -

BERE  BREGRENBZARRS
BEENEREMAARNERNEMS
R REE RS TEER S EERR
BIEE P - WHEZE MW ERR R ER
ERE—HEEY -

RNZET AU ZERBRRLBRE -

Bl E 7RI 1695 R BIBF 2 71 2E R %38
WEETA) — BB ER B Z T ENS
P
BIfR & 5t RIS 165% OB AT 25 I ST 5 1)
% BERZEEBEARBEASERN
WETE - BB ERFERAER]
SIAT — A HEBORER - MAKRERE
MREETERNELEE - ZBRRAE
TORH TS - B EERAREE
B SRARETEELEN RN ERER
EREBBIE - ZIEFTABRARKRER -

RNZERTAHREVBRRLEZE
T R AN 55 (B PA 1 BRI A0 PR DA s R A
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fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 220161231 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BB SRS £ ([ BERRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued) LR | 2)

(a) Adoption of new/revised IFRSs - effective 1 (@) BRMFsBBITERMBREE

January 2016 (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 27 — Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity
method in accounting for its investments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements. The amendments are applied retrospectively in
accordance with IAS 8.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 -
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements for an intermediate
parent entity is available to a subsidiary of an investment
entity (including investment entities that account for their
subsidiaries at fair value rather than consolidating them).
An investment entity parent will consolidate a subsidiary
only when the subsidiary is not itself an investment entity
and the subsidiary’s main purpose is to provide services
that relate to the investment entity’s investment activities.
A non-investment entity applying the equity method to an
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity may
retain the fair value measurements that associate or joint
venture used for its subsidiaries. An investment entity that
prepares financial statements in which all its subsidiaries are
measured at fair value through profit or loss should provide
the disclosures related to investment entities as required by
IFRS 12. The amendments are applied prospectively.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on these
financial statements as the Group has not acquired or
formed a joint operation.

Bl—BH2016F1B1BER(#)

EIRE & BRI 2755 (16574 ) — BB
B P E A%
EREAMEREEEBMBHRRPR
REZEZEEAEMBAR  AZEEERE
ERRPMREETZE - ZIEFTAER
BRI et ERESI B WIEER -

BB BT 7S 3R Ar 2B 56 1095 - BIRRAT 3R &
ERE 1255 R BB E 5t E R £ 2855 (155T
) -REER : BAGEARIIBISNGEE
ZEER AT AR ERER AR
FAMBRRMEANREERME AR
(BREERAFEEBZIIME R RIS
HZa NRNREER) - EENME QA
AEIREER  AEMBARTI2REMEA
MREERZREEFHOREE  KEE
B QRN HHE QRS AR - JFRE
ERUBRETBIBMENRIRAEDLE
ERESAAREBEARHALRE]
HBARMAZ ATEE - WiREE
EMREVBHRRTAMENBARRAF
Bt ABHFE  REERAREEEY
BimEERF12FRREHERBREEROT
BEHR - ZIEFTTABRARKER
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BR4WEER Bt 73R4 % 8| ([ BB Bt
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued) XA |) 2

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) CRITEHMARERZHT KETR

128

not yet effective

The following new/revised IFRSs, potentially relevant to

the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but

are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by

the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these

changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
Based Payment Transactions?

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)?

IFRS 16 Leases®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

Amendments to IAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to IAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations,
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to
debt instruments measured of fair value.

B Bt 75 e o 22 A
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! R2017F1AMBA 2 MR FE
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2 A2018F1ANBERC ERBCEE
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HARS A 4K

BB E 5t ERIE 75 (15T ) — BB
BRERTSIA—REEIMRE @ BEM KR
RIEMERAFTEREZDELNRER
o

BB E T 2R 1295 (155TF) —BAREE
R IEA Y HEE
BRETIRAEEHAEENEFET
VREER - BRENAELRFHEFEN
BT EMABNETEHRREEAR



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 220161231 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BB SRS £ ([ BERRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued) LR | 2)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BERITEMKRERZHT,LIETE

not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and
Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled.

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at FVTPL.

IFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing
the incurred loss model in IAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

BREA RS R (F)

B[R 75 35 & R R 235 (15T ) — LUK
RERZNIFX G20 BRTE
REERI AR ERELIFRB IR EHIAR
EREARNDAER 2N HFENSFE
2 EHREEAR FREERERIAR
MBERZNRRS  MERXSEHHER
CHREBERREEZARNAER
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BIFR M B s R EOR A B EEN D
BNMFTESEFRER - IRFBEEB LA
MEREANE N R AEEERNKES 4
Ren(AEELAR)  ROREBTA
HERNGARMEELEZEIHAS RH
AMEBRENFENZNNRASR(ALH
RenfFaas)  WEMESITA K
WEEK AT E - ARBBANRSRE
BAEMNEB TR  WEERBEEAN
BEARAERMBENRS R L L EN
BE AZEBIAAATFEBESEAEE
gEt AR MEEKE - BEENVIARER
B R LA N AT R R 2 - AR FEE
A2 BEEEHH AR M E2mKER TG
ETERRHMBENEETA - FIEH
EB EEE TAHRATEERERER
FIGR

BIFR U 75 s 5 A EOSRB AT B LW IFIE 12
FEENBSRIRNMBEEEHANN
EHEERERAREER S LR
3EAM B HABEBER - WHEHH—
REHGFTER  BERFRHEVHRE
ARRERBRERES -

129



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREBEERAE

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z20164 12531 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BR4WEER Bt 73R4 % 8| ([ BB Bt
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(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) CRITEHMARERZHT KETR

130

not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
IAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS 9 retains the
requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016, directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of the expected
credit loss model of IFRS 9 may result in earlier recognition
of credit losses on the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised cost taking into account the estimated credit
risk of customers and other debtors the Group has business
with and the actual impairment of receivables experienced.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 until the Group performs
a detailed review. On the other hand, the management
will assess the business model in relation to the Group’s
investment portfolio at initial application of IFRS 9.

BREA R RS R (F)

BB R 3R 2RI E 9% — I T A ()
BIFR  7s 3 5 R B O5R B MBI IR & 5t 2
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BB SRS £ ([ BERRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued) LR | 2)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BERITEMKRERZHT,LIETE

not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that
an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts
and related interpretations.

IFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

BREA RS R (F)

BRI R 2RI 1555 — B P & el 2%
N T8 37 4 Q1) 3R 37— {8 B2 98 O W a5 R SRR
R ERNZLRANAE BRERER S
DNReBERIEEAERRIRBTE
P ZeBRREMZEREELIRZ
E@m MR RE - BRI ER
FERNFISFEIMAR TR R ER G (2
EEREFHERIE 185 s | - BIREE
EAFNRIRES N IRAERE) -

BB RS LR FE SR ESEBAEY

RETWA

o FE1H: BREREFIIUNEH

o E2X: BAAHNANENERE

o E3N EBEXRHER
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(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) CRITEEMARERZHT KETR
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not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers
(Continued)

IFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under IFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS
15 will have an impact on the pattern of revenue and
profit recognition as there is only one performance
obligation identified in the contracts with customers and
the performance obligation is satisfied at point of time.
The impact to the Group is expected to include more
comprehensive disclosure as required by the new standard.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until the Group has
performed a detailed review.

Amendments IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to IFRS 15)

The amendments to IFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and
transition requirements.

BREA R RS R (E)
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 2. BB SRS £ ([ BERRE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued) LR | 2)

(b) New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BERITEMKRERZHT,LIETE

not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
IAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a
single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under IFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion
and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the
lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, IAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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2. ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New/revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

Application of IFRS 16 will result in the Group’s recognition
of right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities in respect
of many of the Group’s lease arrangements. These assets
and liabilities are currently not required to be recognised
but certain relevant information is disclosed as commitments
in Note 39. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of IFRS 16 in the future will have an impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements; however,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these
new pronouncements will result in substantial changes to
the Group's accounting policies and financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

134

(a)

(b)

()

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("IASs"”) issued by the IASB and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee of the IASB (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB™), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

4. EXETHE
(a) EBEHRGBEHE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

136

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

(0

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share
of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from
these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value
of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost. Any premium
paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less impairment
losses, if any. The results of associates are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable during the year.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Goodwill (Continued)

(e)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

140

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings held for Over the

own use under finance leases lease term
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Electronic equipment, furniture and fixtures 20%
Moulds 20%-33.33%
Leasehold improvements 10%

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

Intangible assets
(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.

Software 3-5 years
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(g9) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

— it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

— adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

-  there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

—  the Group is able to sell the product;

—  sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments or
financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available-for-sale or are not included
in other categories of financial assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these assets are carried at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and
directly reduces the carrying amount of financial asset
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

For Available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss
if an increase in the fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.
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(h) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv) Effective interest method

(v)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent short-term,
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances, as
follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed, which means
that all the following conditions are satisfied:

e The Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

e The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Sales of goods (Continued)

e The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

e The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

(iii) Processing income

Processing income is recognised when processing
services are provided.

(I) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXE:EHFE »®)
(Continued)

(m) Foreign currency (m) shE&

150

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Foreign currency (Continued)

(n)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets

acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation

on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and

liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the

rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.

Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign

exchange reserve.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2

(Continued)

(o) Impairment of other assets (o) HMEERE
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews AREBNREHERARER T EENER
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine B BEERAEMNBERBATRZEEE
whether there is any indication that those assets have ERHIRESESCRE D AN RES
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously BREAETMFEXE D :

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

e property, plant and equipment; e WE - BERERE:

e interests in leasehold land held for own use under e KREMEBTTEIEAHEE TR
operating leases; and o &

e investments in subsidiaries and an associate. o HAWEBAR KEHE N RIAER -

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value WEEzZAEWSEE(BNAE RN FERHE

less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated EXNAERFEFREEMENESE)ERE

to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount EEE AZELEEZ2EREERESR

of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An HEr R - BEBEESERASH

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, Y R RRIERELER - HBEE

unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount EJVREMEEAR - QIR EBEBEERE SR

under another IFRS, in which case the impairment loss is AR ERRERBESEAEGREE -

treated as a revaluation decrease under that IFRS.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2
(Continued)

(p) Share-based payments (p) URGABEFEZNAR

Where share options are awarded to employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services
received is measured by reference to the fair value of the
options at the date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve within equity. Non-
market vesting conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to
vest at the end of each reporting period so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period
is based on the number of options that eventually vest.
Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value
of the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

The Group also operates a phantom share option scheme
which is determined to be a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction with employees. An option pricing
model is used to measure the Group's liability at grant
date and subsequently at the end of each reporting period,
taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
bonus is awarded and the extent to which employees have
rendered service. Movements in the liability (other than cash
payments) are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(q) Borrowing costs

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2

(Continued)
(t) Related parties (t) BEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) fMEBUATAL @ BIZALTZHZATH

related to the Group if that person: TR BERK B B [E B B

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () ¥k EEEHAEE

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBBERFZEN 3k

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of (i) BAEBHIAQRARFAFMHE
the Group or the Company’s parent. EEEEKS -

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) HFTE TFHNEMEYE - BlszE LR

following conditions apply: SEEREE

() The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEREAEEBER-—SEH
same group (which means that each parent, KERR(ANE/AF - MEBA
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AIMRARWBARREILEER
others). &) o

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il —REBAZ HEMNBER
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AHEERE(KE—EBARK
member of a group of which the other entity is a ENRIMEERE N A A
member). RNAKEEDRE) -

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREBHERA—F=FTME
party. B o

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (ivy " RERBAFE=-FBEMNEE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. ¥ - mME—BEBRA-—%=

FEBNEE AT -

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) BEAAEBENEAEEERH
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an B E B2t 1B B B 25 M &% MY B
entity related to the Group. Biis A&l o

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) EEZ@ETE A LT 5
person identified in (a). R o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. This assessment is based on the credit
history of the customers and other debtors and the current
market condition. The directors reassess the allowance at
the end of the reporting period.

Warranty claims

The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information may
differ from future claims. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the
Group's productivity and quality initiatives, as well as parts
and labour costs.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether an intangible asset is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
Details of the impairment testing are provided in Note 16.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5 EESHYHUEERELGHFABEEEZE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ZEERR )
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(vi) Impairment of property, plant and equipment (vi) 1% - BERRERE

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, the
directors estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

(vii) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB85,057,000 (2015: RMB74,134,000)
which relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses
and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere
in the Group. These subsidiaries have no temporary taxable
differences which could partly support the recognition
of deferred tax assets. Also, there are no tax planning
opportunities available that would further provide a basis
for recognition.

AEEEREHREPIRFEDE  BER
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(vii) SEEBRE E
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IAAS

5.

6.

160

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vii) Deferred tax assets (Continued)

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, profits would increase by approximately
RMB19,041,000 (2015: profits would increase by
approximately RMB12,986,000).

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 30.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Turnover

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

(b) Reportable segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of the Group’s own
brand “SCUDF E BE” (“Own-brand business”), original
design manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as bare
battery cells (“Bare battery cells business”). The chief
operating decision makers (i.e. the Company’s directors)
review the segment information of these businesses and
based on it to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. The Group’s reportable segments are set
out below:

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium-ion
battery modules, power banks, motive battery and related
accessories for branded mobile phone, tablets and EV
manufacturers within and outside China.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIE|DE(E)
Own-brand business — Manufacture and sale of “SCUD7 BEEmMBRER - 2EREEISCUDRE
FEH" brand lithium-ion battery modules, power banks, BRI M EE TEMEML  BHER F
power management module, motive battery, smart REERA BNEM  TEFHIESE
wearable devices battery and related accessories for mobile st LA R FHER RS B Xm0 MR RABC 1 -

phones and digital electronic appliances.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of BENFEH - HERBESEAN TR - TR
lithium-ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and B RZEEEROIEBETEL -
power banks.

Others — Sales of raw materials and work-in-progress and HAth — $HE RME R AR RN TWA o

processing income.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

follows:

(b) F¥EDER(4E)

ERZEXBNOHBERZIT

Segment revenue and results el R FE
2016
ODM Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Others Total
ODM#EX BEREXK ERNER Hith @st
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR%Tn AR¥Trn AR%Tn ARETx
Total Turnover B 4,836,010 681,025 379,496 504,396 6,400,927
Less: Intersegment sales B AEPHE (47,612) (624) (93,362) (197,852) (339,450)
Turnover L 4,788,398 680,401 286,134 306,544 6,061,477
Segment loss HEEE (118,872) (63,144) (17,672) (15,160) (214,848)
Unallocated income RHEWA
- Bank interest income —RITF BN 15,068
— Rental income -l A 928
— Gain on disposal of —HEMBARRA
subsidiaries 64,145
- Others —Hft 1,854
Unallocated expenses AAEHE
- Auditor’s remuneration —ZHmNE (1,329)
~ Legal and professional fees —FERELBH (7,572)
— Staff costs —BIMAK (3,929)
- Others —Efh (1,874)
- Finance costs —BERA (26,564)
Loss before income tax BT SR ER (174,121)
Income tax PSRt 49,288
Loss for the year NEEER (124,833)
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(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

(b) H¥RDER(E)

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) T ERM R EAE ()
2015
ODM  Own-brand Bare battery

business business  cell business Others Total

ODM %7 BEmIBEH BIEK Hity wast

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR

Total Turnover BEER 3,533,568 620,068 234,274 341,855 4,729,765

Less: Intersegment sales B AEPEHE (15,205) (29) (39,426) (165,664) (220,324)

Turnover = 3,518,363 620,039 194,848 176,191 4,509,441

Segment profit/(loss) DEHEF, (EE) 121,508 (39,450) (23,385) 658 59,331
Unallocated income KABUA

- Bank interest income —iRITR B HA 13,920

- Rental income - A 2,193

- Others —Hh 5,028
Unallocated expenses RAOBEFRZ

- Auditor’s remuneration — A% (1,650)

- Legal and professional fees ~ —/AERHEEH (3.894)

— Staff costs —BIMAK (4,049)

— Others —Hith (2,026)

- Finance costs —RhERK R (27,317)

Profit before income tax BRETIS B ADER 41,536

Income tax Fri5% (18,000)

Profit for the year REF 23,536
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) IR EB(E)
Assets and liabilities BEREBE
2016
Bare
ODM Own-brand battery cell
business business business Total
ODM¥¥ HERBEEK ERER st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®Trt AR¥ETR AR®Tx
Segment assets DEEE 2,868,228 534,113 283,122 3,685,463
Unallocated corporate assets ROWAREE
— Bank balances and cash —RITEBR KRR S 643
— Prepayments, deposits and ~ —FEfIRIE - wE K
other receivables HAb U FRIE 1,236
Consolidated total assets A BER 3,687,342
Segment liabilities NI aE 2,236,541 300,303 219,299 2,756,143

Unallocated corporate liabilities RO B AR B &

— Other payables, receipts —H M pEIFRIE -
in advance and TEUGRIE &
accrued charges EEtER 14,623
— Amount due to a director —ENEERE 629
— Deferred tax liabilities —EERIEEE 5,360
Consolidated total liabilities BABREGE 2,776,755
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6.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. B K 9IPER @)

(Continued)
(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIFDE(E)
Assets and liabilities (Continued) BEREBE(E)
2015
Bare
ODM  Own-brand  battery cell
business business business Total
ODM %7 BAmEES EINERS 5T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFIT AREFT AREBTT ARETT
Segment assets DEPEE 2,345,643 1,132,062 242,234 3,719,939
Unallocated corporate assets RO AREE
— Bank balances and cash —IRITEHRRIES 236
— Prepayments, deposits and ~ —FEfTRIE - RE K
other receivables HAb U FRIA 3,140
Consolidated total assets GEBERE 3,723,315
Segment liabilities DI aE 1,853,586 519,007 176,614 2,549,207

Unallocated corporate liabilities RO B AR BE

— Other payables, receipts —HibEAFUE - FaUK
in advance and FRIE I FERT B
accrued charges 13,825
- Amount due to a director —ENESFE 100,310
— Deferred tax liabilities —EERIEEE 5,360
Consolidated total liabilities mABBERR 2,668,702
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(c) Other information () HapER
2016
Bare
ODM Own-brand battery cell
business business business Others Total
ODM¥H BHERMER EREK Hith @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETr ARETR AR®TR AR%Tx
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BENKENE
equipment 22,512 17,908 8,557 1,414 50,391
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE - - 13 1,550 1,563
Impairment loss recognised on trade  StEWNE S HIA R EWERE
and notes receivables BAZ REERE 281,011 31,488 2,116 4,468 319,083
Impairment loss recognised on FEMNFUE e REMEK
prepayments, deposits and other HEBR 2R EEE
receivables 34,301 10,980 5,100 7,139 57,520
Reversal of write down of inventories il F £ @ - (284,200) - - (284,200)
Research and development costs HEER 171,193 24,558 10,752 2,265 208,768
Income tax g (35,989)  (12,765) (1,025) 491 (49,288)
Additions to property, plant and ME - BEMRERNE
equipment 52,787 4,790 2,952 2,771 63,300
Additions to intangible assets BREENE - 397 - 1,341 1,738
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HEME - BEREEE
equipment 2,583 5,295 268 - 8,146
Write off of property, plant and WE - BERREME
equipment 979 103 869 - 1,951
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) () HavERE)
2015
Bare
ODM  Own-brand  battery cell
business business business Others Total
ODME® BEMEES EHEB Hith FoE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT AREFT AR®ETR
Depreciation of property, mE - BEREENE
plant and equipment 29,329 18,380 9,448 2,858 60,015
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH - - 22 1,514 1,536

Impairment loss recognition on trade  StEWNE 57UE RN EHE

and notes receivables WA ZHESR 354 23,518 379 811 25,062
Impairment loss recognised on RIERFE - REREMEK

prepayments, deposits and other FERRAEER

receivables 27,912 22,763 5,200 3,327 59,202

Write down/(reversal of write down) of  TZ &,/ (HF &)
inventories - (59,905) 7,049 - (52,856)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE « FiE k& E 2 EE
equipment 419 10,134 12 - 10,565

Write down/(reversal of write down) of  #1% « = Rk e,/ (#

property, plant and equipment ) 20,976 5,264 (19) - 26,221
Research and development costs &R 137,239 25,785 7,868 4,463 175,355
Income tax S 8,128 6,794 3,078 - 18,000
Additions to property, 0% BERRERE

plant and equipment 56,539 14,453 3,169 2,440 76,601
Additions to intangible assets BEFEERNE - - - 2,497 2,497
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

EEBRIER B

(d) FEERZEERH
KEREETRERZEERNT

(d) Turnover from major products

The Group's turnover from its major products were as

168

follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEF T
ODM business: ODME# :
Mobile phone battery FHEM 4,540,473 3,344,891
Power bank BEER 164,276 91,712
Motive battery B HEM 59,914 34,128
Tablets and notebook computer FIREMMEELAENE A
battery - 24,332
Others HAith 23,735 23,300
ODM business ODMEET% 4,788,398 3,518,363
Own-brand business: BEEmEEL:
Power bank BEEIR 395,973 324,320
Power management module EREERMA 181,424 164,802
Motive battery EHEM 46,667 15,542
Mobile phone battery FHEE 31,514 80,803
Smart wearable devices battery HREFEHREEMN 6,006 10,647
Others Hi 18,817 23,925
Own-brand business BB mEER 680,401 620,039
Bare battery cell business: BEER:
Lithium-ion bare battery cells EEETER 286,134 194,848
Others Hit 306,544 176,191
Total turnover PR E 6,061,477 4,509,441
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e) Geographical information

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as
analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market
have not been presented as they are substantially generated
from or situated in the PRC.

(f) Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

6. EXBERITER )

(e) HEER
REFEWEZY| R RTHEE DA EE
EEBREESMUARNEBGED FH
HEEERAEYME  BERRERER
BEEMNREES N REAREXKLIRF
BlE A AR -

(f) EXEFEHR

REFBEEFZRZ(FESMAEE K
F10% A L) T ¢

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Customer A ZEA
Customer B ZFB

1,679,156 1,436,590
862,479 N/AT N A

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

7. OTHER REVENUE

TOEERSEYREAEERSAR
10% A E ©

7. Hibzs

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARET T

Government grants B2, 19,345 14,191
Interest income FEMA 15,073 13,920
Net foreign exchange gain P W 2 55 11,890 3,231
Sale of scrap materials HEER 4,110 885
Compensation from suppliers HIEmwEE 1,658 5,404
Sundry income B 10,998 4,381

63,074 42,012
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8. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRFTBHAI(EE) RF

170

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Bk (GTA)TFIEE ¢

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREFT

Auditor’s remuneration ZEETB & 2,212 2,035
Depreciation of property, M - BB MREETE

plant and equipment (BREAZRERTONE

(including depreciation recorded in AR#7,273,0007T

research and development costs of (20154 : AR#¥10,314,0007T))

RMB7,273,000 (2015: RMB10,314,000)) 50,391 60,015
Amortisation of intangible assets MG R 1,563 1,536
Impairment loss recognised on trade and TEKE FRTE M EREIEER

notes receivables RIEE R 319,083 25,062
Impairment loss recognised on prepayment, FLTERITFUIE - 154 K H i fE U 2B

deposits and other receivables R 2 REEE 57,520 59,202
Reversal of write down of inventories WU F &80 (284,200) (52,856)
Loss on disposals of property, HEYE  BEREEBE

plant and equipment 8,146 10,565
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEERIE = 18
Write off of property, plant and equipment &Y% - M= K& 1,951 26,221
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR > 2 FERA 5,421,220 3,948,299
Cost of processing income IMTYAZ B 82,427 38,518
Operating lease rentals for office premises W AZLLHERS 28,457 27,397
Research and development costs =g 208,768 175,355
Staff costs (Note 9) B TR (HEE9) 362,172 341,118
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR EAN KRG (64,145) -
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STAFF COSTS 9. EIRKA&
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREEF T
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EE=He(MFE10) 3,537 2,228
Other staff costs Hibh B TRAS 409,744 355,930
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRIEFIGT &R 19,165 18,648

Less: Staff costs included in research and S FF AR EBRRE TRA

development costs (70,274) (35,688)

362,172 341,118

.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.EEREESHFM

REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 (a) MREBBRAMEN(F622E ) FE3831& (15
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the PRAB(HBESNRER)RO(E
Ordinance) and the Companies (Disclosure of Information 622GE ) (&P EENEZME T

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the
Regulation) is as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Salaries, housing allowances, other o - EEEEL - HEabiEEL

allowances and benefits in kind LEER 2,394 960
Fees we 1,099 1,227
Other emoluments: HeMe :
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R RIEFIET 2tk 44 41

3,537 2,228
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10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.EE=REEFHFMe
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRZBSLMMSHFBEOT -
are as follows:

2016
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
in kind Fees contributions emoluments
HE
EEEE
HAtR R, RIRER
RENEA wne B Ak
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥BTR AR%TRT AR®TZR

Fang Jin ik - - 10 10
Guo Quan Zeng SRR 1,300 - 14 1,314
Feng Ming Zhu (Note ii) SRR (RT3 200 72 3 275
Huang Yan (Note i) B (D 67 134 7 208
Zhang Li R 800 189 10 999
Hou Li (Note ii) Rz (Ff L) 27 55 - 82
Loke Yu PR - 446 - 446
Wang Jing Zhong TR - 70 - 70
Wang Jian Zhang TEE - 70 - 70
Heng Ja Wei, Victor (Note iii) TBR 4 (KT =iii) - 63 = 63

2,394 1,099 44 3,537

172



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REREBBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fra MR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2016 220161231 H 1 F/Z

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 10.EEREEFM o
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIAMBMESFBOT (&)
are as follows: (Continued)

2015
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
in kind Fees  contributions  emoluments
-
FERE -
Hfth 2 8h RKAER
LEDEF kD AR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETL ARBTT ARETRT AR%TR

Fang Jin ik - 302 9 311

Guo Quan Zeng SfR 600 48 14 662

Huang Yan R 100 193 9 302

Zhang Li RHR 260 193 9 462

Loke Yu BEE A - 351 - 351

Wang Jing Zhong T - 70 - 70

Wang Jian Zhang TE=E - 70 - 70
960 1,227 41 2,228

During both years, none of the director has received any RREEERN  HEESRWIAEES A

bonus payments paid by the Group. TS o

Notes: MHsE -

(i)  Huang Yan resigned with effect from 25 August 2016. () =HE2016F8H25HBEHT -

(i) Feng Ming Zhu and Hou Li appointed with effect from (iy BB REIE20165E8 250 (B

25 August 2016. =T o
(ili) Heng Ja Wei, Victor appointed with effect from 1 (i) TBR#4EE2016F9 81 HABES(T o

September 2016.
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10.DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(c) The five highest paid individuals include three directors for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: three), details of
whose emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2015: two) non-
director highest paid individuals are as follows:

10.EEREEFHFMN 2

(0

HE2016F12831BILFE AEZBS
HFMALBIE=2(2015F : =£)8% -
BEM D FBERRN 3 -

Hipm & (20155 - MAB)FER RS HH
ATMET

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARETT

Salaries, bonus, allowance and other  Bi& - #8% - B R HMEF]

benefits 2,421 2,199

Retirement benefits scheme R FIET B HERN
contributions 30 28
2,451 2,227

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest
paid individuals are within the following brands:

HEBRFEERSFMA LMD FIAT
#HE

2016 2015
Nil to RMB857,100 (equivalent to Nil ~ ZTZE AR®857,100c(HHERZE
to HK$1,000,000) 1,000,000 7T) 1 1
RMB857,101 to RMB1,714,200 AR#857,101 T ARY1,714,2007T
(equivalent to HK$1,000,001 to (F8& 71,000,001 752,000,000
HK$2,000,000) L) 1 1

(d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including both
directors and employees) or any directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during both years except that Mr.
Fang Jin has voluntarily waived his salaries for both years.
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(d)

RAEFER  AREHBEALZRZSH
AL(BRESENER)AARAERNES
SERME - FRBRSIIMAREE SN
AR B 2R - RFRRERAOME -
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11.

12.

FINANCE COSTS 1. ME R
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
Interest on bank borrowings RITRE KA E 19,422 17,823
Interest on discounted notes receivable BLIR R =BT S 6,531 8,298
Other finance costs H b gh & Bk AN 611 1,196
26,564 27,317

INCOME TAX 12. B8

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other

jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal

business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong incurred tax losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

On 2 July 2013, Dongguan Hongde was recognised as
ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number
is GR201344000058.
accordingly. On 24 July 2014, Shenzhen Hongde was approved

It is subject to income tax at 15%

to continue as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate
number is GR201444200634. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly. On 30 November 2016, Dongguan Hongde was
approved to continue as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the
certificate number is GR201644000083. It is subject to income
tax at 15% accordingly.

On 14 August 2014, Scud Electronics was approved to continue
as an ANTE for a period of 3-year and the certificate number
is GR201435000040.
accordingly.

It is subject to income tax at 15%

HRBERABEETEZRBELI - ARrE
ﬁ%&%%ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁkﬁfmmﬂgﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ L EN
RANEAE S HEE o

HREMFAREENEMRIERBAESE -
TRIERAEE - MAH R EE ML AM B
REAYRAFENBAEFEERSHERE - &
S A E B RIS LB o

hEIRRMASHRBETRIER A BEEERN
RAER BN IE MG A ERTERA M E -

201357 A28 - R iEEmR ARk
¥ BHI=F - BEREYAGR201344000058 ©
HIZ15% K B RSN B EFTSHE - R20145F7
B248 5“ﬂl\ﬁ%%ﬁ%)&%ﬁ%%‘%&ﬁm% :
BE=F  FZEZHE AGR201444200634 °
Z15% BT R BNAEEFTIS R © mmeinﬂ
300 REBEEABERSTRMNCE A
H=%F  FEH%AGR201644000083 ° Hiz
15% B B8 B AN AR IEPRS T5E ©

201458 A148 - IREME TR EEE B FHI
1% BE=F FZE4H5 AGR201435000040
HIR15% 0T R BN E PSR
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12.
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INCOME TAX (Continued)

On 30 September 2014, Scud Power (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Scud
Shenzhen”) was approved to continue as an ANTE for a period
of 3-year and the certificate number is GR201444201487. It is
subject to income tax at 15% accordingly.

On 21 November 2016, Shenzhen Nalon Battery Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Nalon”) was approved as an ANTE for a period of
3-year and the certificate number is GR201644201656. It is
subject to income tax at 15%.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the remaining
subsidiaries of the Group that established in the PRC are subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%.

Details of the income tax (credit)/charge in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
as follows:

12. Fi8 8

2014569 H30H - REBEIRCORID AR A
AIDRIIRER D EEEBE SRR
ABE=F  BFEZHREY AGR201444201487 - &
R15% M B RENAREFTS L

2016511 A218 - RN TEAGEE M BR A
BIRYIBARE ) B Am Rt - BHI=
F o EEREY AGR201644201656 © Ei215%
O SR SR AN R FEFT IS A

RIBPBEDERSIE - AEBEHBEKIZH
HM B AR ARTREEMEHRE25%H
i o

FFAGABRRMEAMEEKREROAFHROE
%)/ ZHFEWT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Current tax — PRC BIVERTHIE —
Enterprise Income Tax: HR B ZEPRISAR
— Tax for the year —ARFEEBIE (11,488) 29,908
— Underprovision in prior years —BAFEREBETR 645 146
Deferred tax — current year (Note 30) RIEFIIE — A FE (M7E30) (38,445) (12,054)
Income tax (credit)/charge Fris# (&%), H (49,288) 18,000
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12. INCOME TAX (Continued) 12. i858
The reconciliation between (loss)/profit before income tax and SCEBRELEMEWERTRAESR (S
income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and 18) @A BT SR 2 HEEMT ¢

other comprehensive income is as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

(Loss)/profit before income tax M Er SR AT (E51E) A (174,121) 41,536

Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant BRI R A EER R ENHIE

jurisdictions (38,964) 11,700
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A~A]F0FH 2 HEV TR 7S 2 &

purposes 103,411 35,328
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBIRA R 2

purposes (113,124) (27,514)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIBEENT ST E 8,774 5,418
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR 645 146
Effect of concessionary rate granted to the % FHEMEAGEERNZE

PRC subsidiaries (10,030) (7,078)
Income tax FrigHt (49,288) 18,000

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

No dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December H E20165F M2015F12A31B L EW &S
2016 and 2015. i s
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14. (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SR (EE) BF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per RATIEBEANEEEREARES(EBE) &
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the FBIBATEIEE -

following data:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

(Losses)/earnings for the purposes of basic ~ sTEGFIERNNEE(EIE) BRI

and diluted (losses)/earnings per share (E518),/ BF (KA BHEE AEEA
((Loss)/profit for the year attributable to FE(EE), 5 H)
the owners of the Company) (118,951) 38,168
Number of ordinary shares
EZERHAE
2016 2015
‘000 ‘000
BAF5 AT 5T
Weighted average number of ordinary SEEREAREE(ER) BRKYE
shares for the purpose of basic and B INRE 8
diluted (losses)/earnings per share 1,090,001 1,090,001
The computation of diluted (losses)/earnings per share for the SHEE 220165 &2015F12A831BIEFE 2
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 does not assume the FREE(EE) /B TERECHEE
conversion of potential ordinary shares in relation to certain AR TERLNEREZ BELTER  BAAH
share options granted as they are anti-dilutive. EEREHEZE -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 9% - RERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Land under Plant and Motor ~ furniture  Construction Leasehold
finance lease Building  machinery vehicles ~ and fixtures  in progress Moulds improvements Total
REHE B3k
il B® BERER RE BAREE FRIR BE REMEEE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
Cost L
1 January 2015 01581518 12904 106,797 297,425 16,110 104,671 50 21351 70,535 635,883
Addtions pi s - - 35,662 9% 18,548 21,180 - 11 76,601
Transfer from/{to) construction in progress &t /(A AETR - - 17,080 - - (17,080) - - -
Disposals ik - - (8,139 (119 (3426) - (13,189) - (39873)
Writen off s - - (47,374 [N g6 - (12810) - (106259
31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 WHENA3NAR
061718 12,904 106,797 279,654 15,678 74129 4,150 1352 71,65 566,316
Additions e - - 41,881 ni 16934 3,600 B 145 63,300
Transfer from/{to) construction in progress &t /(A AETR - - 5,09 - 676 (5,774) - - -
De-tecogniton from disposalof subsidaries B L EMBATNER L - - (21,329 (872) (1,591) - (60) (934 Q878
Dispodls it - - (15 s (10189 - (1315 - e
Written off B - - (2,19) (265) (6,469) (103) - (146) (9,179)
31 December 2016 016128318 12,904 106,797 290,576 15,007 73,494 1813 - 66,717 567,368
Depreciation il
1 January 2015 01581718 2209 20,29 129,144 8490 69,294 - 22,186 64,311 315,926
Charge for the year RERRY 2% 5013 3910 1779 14,544 - 134 30 60,015
Disposals ik - - (13431) (107) (3283 - (1252) - (29308
Written off i - - (20438) (387) (39,838) - (10,371) - (80,034)
31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 WHENA3NAR
W6E1A1H 2467 25,365 120,185 9,775 40,757 - 629 67401 266,599
Charge for the year TEERY 21 5,080 28,665 1276 158 - 13 2438 50,391
De-tecogniton from disposal of subsiiaries K& HERBAT L LED - - (8,507) (352) (890) - (A7) (4834 (14,630)
Disposals ik - - (6.871) (189) (8.361) - (720) - (16,141)
Writen off s - - (1,209) (250) (5,621) - - (146) (129
31 December 2016 0165128318 2118 30,445 132,263 10,258 38,428 - - 64,879 278,991
Net hook value REFE
31 December 2016 016128318 10,186 76,352 158,313 4,149 35,066 1813 - 1838 2883717
31 December 2015 015128318 10437 81432 159,469 5903 3372 4,150 m 431 199,717
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IAAS

15.

180

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB19,127,000 (2015: RMB Nil), land under finance
lease with a carrying amount of RMB77,089,000 (2015: RMB
Nil) and motor vehicle with carrying amount of RMB Nil (2015:
RMB542,000) have been pledged by the Group in favour of a
bank to secure a bank loan granted by a bank to the Group (Note
23).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged property, plant
and equipment carried at approximately RMB26,057,000 (2015:
RMB35,106,000) for other loans (Note 23).

As at 31 December 2016, plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of RMB2,263,000 (2015: RMB2,600,000) has been
pledged to a landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses
payable.

15. 9% - BERRE®)

720165 12A318 - BREEBEARM 19,127,000
TL(20154F « ARBZIT)MME K5 - BRE
BEARY77,089,0007T(20154 : ARBZIT)
FREHE T RIEmEAREZIT(20155
AR#542,0007T) 8998 LA B AR R BT TR
7 AERRITETAEE ZRITER(ME
23) °

M2016F12A31H - AEBEEHREEE
A4 N R #26,057,0007T (20154 : A R
35,106,0007T) M2 « E R ARG H it
B (MEE23) -

MR2016F12A31H SR M E A A R ¥
2,263,00070(2015%F « A R#2,600,0007T) 5
B RS EIERRNEBNIEMBYIERTE
EE °
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. B EE

Software
B4
RMB’000
ARBEFT
Cost A
1 January 2015 20151 R1H 8,528
Additions NE 2,497
Disposal HeE (356)
31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 2015%12H31HK20165F1H1H 10,669
Additions INE 1,738
De-recognition from disposal of subsidiaries KEHEHBRRNLRIERER (1,971)
31 December 2016 20165%F12H31H 10,436
Amortisation and impairment BERRE
1 January 2015 201551318 5,882
Charge for the year REERXZ 1,536
Disposals HeE (338)
31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 20155F12H31HKX20165F141H 7,080
Charge for the year REERZ 1,563
De-recognition from disposal of subsidiaries KEHEHBRARNKRIEER (1,331)
31 December 2016 2016%12H31H 7,312
Net book value BREFHE
31 December 2016 2016%12H31H 3,124
31 December 2015 2015%12H31H 3,589
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 16. BLEE )
Note: MiEE -
i) The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included N AFEERRANEBERT T AGEEEN
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement HE2mERERITTHAS AT -

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 17. It EZMBEE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETTT

Unlisted equity investment, at cost AT IR 2R EERRE = 1,000
18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTFT

Raw materials R 285,140 470,580

Work in progress FPK 60,729 7,786

Finished goods A R 115,363 155,973

Goods in transit EEEm 1,412 11,270

462,644 645,609

During the year, a reversal of write down of inventories of RAFE - #URFER R AR284,200,0007T

RMB284,200,000 (2015: RMB52,856,000) was recognised in cost (20154 : AR®52,856,0007T) B R & KA
of sales. PR o
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19.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. B AFEMSAEBZNHEEE

20.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Fund investment, at fair value BAFEFARZESRE

At the beginning of the year REH) 60,000 -
Disposal k= (60,000) 60,000
At the end of the year RER - 60,000

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 20. EWE S REREWRE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AREEFTT
Trade receivables FEWE FFRIE 1,941,182 1,242,420
Notes receivables e 116,355 91,507
2,057,537 1,333,927
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts i : RIZERE (407,121) (98,424)
1,650,416 1,235,503
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of

20 EWESZREREWRER#)

REBEHZR  EHRBEEERNEEARER
S PR NEREBROREANIT

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

184

allowance, is as follows:

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTT

0 to 60 days 0260H 1,507,237 1,083,406
61 to 180 days 61£2180H 104,138 68,609
181 to 365 days 1812365H 2,700 31,864
1 to 2 years —EmMF 5,071 46,950
2 to 3 years ME=F 31,270 4,674
1,650,416 1,235,503

The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from

60 to 90 days.

RTHEERNFHEERAN F60E90R -

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FRAREERENESHOT :
year were as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
1 January 1H18 98,424 73,436
Written off sy - (74)
Impairment losses recognised ERERREEE 319,083 25,062
De-recognition upon disposal of subsidiaries HE&EKEB A REKR FER (10,386) -
31 December 12A31H 407,121 98,424
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continved) 20. EWWB ZHEREWELE %)

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are 380 BR B 0 SRR B FE B 5 5RIE I e IR 13 Y
past due but not impaired is as follows: BREC T -

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBET T

Less than 6 months past due B ERN 2 7 A 39,449 17,646
Over 6 months past due wHA7SE A A £ 36,239 76,681

75,688 94,327
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a BEEYWRBRENERE S FBEZ LB IR
number of independent customers that have a good track record FEW MESERAEEBERIFMAEGELI -
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the BEAAEER  ARAREEREEAEEZHE
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment WORABEANNE  MESRREINEN 2 kM -
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been WAE B SIS TR ERE -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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21.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21.FE{‘Zk1E - R R EAbfEUN B

RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREBTIT
Advance to suppliers [ FE R B R 321,232 378,133
VAT recoverable 7] 3R [B] 3 {E T 10,331 14,317
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEWE  BELSEOENZRS
plant and equipment 14,535 19,505
Deposits paid for finance lease arrangement FEEMELHZ N2 iES 6,775 6,775
Refundable deposits AR EES 10,149 16,402
Consideration receivable on disposal of JEWHEWBARNE
subsidiaries 7,000 -
Others Hith 28,155 4,617
398,177 439,749
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts g : FIERRE (132,374) (105,859)
Total HE 265,803 333,890
Less: Current portion B REEL S (244,493) (307,610)
Non-current portion FEREE D 21,310 26,280
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21.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21.78{{Z1E - e R HEMEYKZIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (%)

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FERNRIZERENEEFH N T
year were as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

1 January 1H1H 105,859 46,657
Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 57,520 59,202
Written off B (819) -
De-recognition upon disposal of subsidiaries HE&EKE A BE KR I FHER (30,186) -
31 December 12A31H 132,374 105,859
None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets DA FEEWARBGE - A &SRB IEABREKE
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which AR B A B E T T BAP £ 8 495085

there was no recent history of default.
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22.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 22.fEW FEBEALTZIE

PARTIES

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The information disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) is as follows:

FEU/NEBATOFIBAREIER 280K
REBEFIEE -

RIBE AR BEGIF383158(5£622F ) BREN
BRI

Maximum
amount
outstanding Balance at Balance at
during 31 December 31 December
the year 2016 2015
FRA N2016 5 20154
REE 12H31H 12A31H
EatHE B A BR B4 ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR AR¥T T ARBETT

Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (Note i)  t&ERERMND AR A A)

(B &ED) 55,120 55,120 42,788
EBTEB New Energy Technology Co.,  Z{AE#HEERR AR AT
Ltd. (Note ii) (B &EiD) 88,212 88,212 10,435
Fujian Youtong Industrial Co., Ltd. BRERBEXER AT (P
(Note iii) 2,257 733 2,257
Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training @ERERE S RILITEE ISR
School (Note iii) (B i) 704 267 704
Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. EENRERER AR AR
(Note iii) (B &) 530 76 530
Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., BERERE HEHEBR A A
Ltd. (Note iv) (M$3Eiv) 409 409 -
Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd. %@/l FF1EFHRE A7 (M eEv)
(Note v) 2,000 2,000 -
146,817 56,714
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
PARTIES (Continued)

Notes:

23.

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Its directors and shareholders, Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo
Quan Zeng, are also the directors and shareholders of the
Company.

Its director is the son of, Mr. Fang Jin, a director and
shareholder of the Company.

Its director, Mr. Fang Jin, is also a director and shareholder
of the Company.

Its director and sole shareholder is the son of, Mr. Fang Jin,

22

EWNEEEATRE )

GEE

() HEFRBEHSEERDRMEENA
ARFZ EEREE -

() HEFRASEEL(ALTEERRR)Z
+ o

i) HEFHERENARATZESRH

(v) REERE-BRRBTEEE(RRAZ

a director and shareholder of the Company. BEERBRE)ZT -
(v) Its director and major shareholder is the son of, Mr. Fang v) EEERFERFEAFTSLE(RATZ
Jin, a director and shareholder of the Company. BEERBRE)ZT -
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 23. EEEA
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have RIMEBR AEBEHATEEERTF TR
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees T EARRERMRMBELRTEALEZ Y
for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to ER EABENEEMRFEMEATEETNE
suppliers, landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable BESEME AT
and pledged for other loans:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) WE - BB NERAE (MRE15) 124,536 38,248
Bank deposits RITIER 552,962 596,121
677,498 634,369
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IAAS

24,

25.

190

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND TIME
DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB") is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Time deposits are made for periods depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the
respective short-term time deposit rates. The directors consider
that the fair values of the short-term deposits are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because of the short
maturity period. As at 31 December 2016, the Group does not
have any time deposit (2015: RMB140,000,000) placed with
banks and earn interest income at the respective time deposit

24. SRITERRBREREHER

RITERIBASEEAEEFAENRS MRE
HIR A =B A A TR HERIT AR o

ARBTARE DI ERLBEMBESE
AR - B BSNEE BRI R AEE - BEERN
EEEMRTE  AREAEHEREETINESL
MR ZIRITIRE -

THFERZHR - DRIAEBZASREH
KiME - BERYTHFERFERDFE - &

REAPNEHRTEHFRREHANER - Bit
BERTFEEAAREABETEEANER - N20165F
128318 « AEBEWEIERITFREM T HF
k(20154 + AR #140,000,0007T) + Wiz &
B 7E BB 17 5K S BREUR B A o

rates.

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES 5. ENESIRERENERE
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT
Trade payables FENE 50 1,001,410 679,925
Notes payables ERRE 1,112,960 1,198,125
2,114,370 1,878,050
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25. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES (Continued)

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the

26.

25. ERESF

RENSEINESAC)
REXER NBSHARENESR

B &R

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZIEMERR OO T ¢
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREEF T
0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,486,981 1,146,962
61 to 180 days 61£180H 516,518 618,123
181 to 365 days 181%365H 24,919 56,701
1 to 2 years —EWME 55,453 48,165
2 to 3 years ME=F 24,706 2,854
Over 3 years =FLAE 5,793 5,245
2,114,370 1,878,050

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for

trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period

taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.

BNESHETEBRESHBERIFERAN

AXMFE - &
ZE90H ©

SBENEEHFHNF3I0R

OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 26. & #ti fE {4 2X18 - JE Uk 2% 18 % FE =t
AND ACCRUED CHARGES EH

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBEFT

Deposits bi7&in 35,177 42,767

Payroll and welfare payables FEA B M AE A 34,955 34,533

Accrued expenses fEETFI S 7,751 8,996

Payables for acquisition of property, plant  BEEWEH - FE MR EENZIE

and equipment 11,908 10,669

Other tax payables H At 18 63,437 39,193

Withholding tax liability BRHIEEE 9,000 9,000

Others Hith 45,503 44,394

207,731 189,552
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27. PROVISION FOR WARRANTY

27. EmREEHEE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBT T

1 January 1A18 1,870 3,104
Additions NE 348 -
De-recognition upon disposal of subsidiaries HE&HKEB A BELKR FHER (275) -
Realisation B35 = (1,234)
At 31 December ®12A31H 1,943 1,870

The provision for warranty represents management’s best
estimate of the Group's liability under a half-year warranty
program granted on the own-brand batteries, based on prior
experience and industry averages for defective products.

28. BORROWINGS

EmREEGSEEEBREBELREENA
REFHHE  BAKERLENEAEREED
FEREABNEBIEDOKERET -

28. EX

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Bank loans (Note (a)): RITER(MRE@Q)):

Secured bank loans BIEIRITER 163,404 128,744

Unsecured bank loans EIKIRIRITE R 251,690 211,212
415,094 339,956

Other loans (Note (b)) H b B (M (b)) 7,466 18,834

Obligations under finance leases (Note (c)) RtEMHE & & (FzE(c)) 7,805 13,007
430,365 371,797
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28. BORROWINGS (continued)

28. B

Notes: B3
(@) The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: (@) BITEFEREHMOT
2016 2015
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
Current portion: mENE S

—FATIEEKR

Within 1 year or on demand

415,094 339,956

As at 31 December 2016, bank loans of approximately
RMB163,404,000 (2015: RMB128,744,000) were secured
by the Group’s plant and machinery with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB19,127,000 (2015: RMB Nil) (Note
23), land under finance lease with a carrying amount
of RMB77,089,000 (2015: RMB Nil), bank deposits of
RMB552,962,000 (2015: RMB596,121,000) (Note 23) and
by personal guarantee from the Company’s director and
controlling shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, for certain bank loans
of the Group up to an amount of RMB242,698,000 (2015:
RMB117,044,000). As at 31 December 2015, motor vehicles
with a carrying amount of RMB542,000 was also pledged
to the above bank loans of the Group.

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

H2016F 128318  #) A R #163,404,000
TE(20154F A R #128,744,007T ) & R 17
BERUASEEAREEAR19,127,000
JC(2015%F « AR Z L) MRE M 2s (M
723) - BR M {E A K #77,089,0007t(2015
FAREBZOABRERAE L AR
552,962,00070(2015%F : A R #596,121,000
70) (MI5E23) W A AR RIE B MIER AR 7
SEAERAAEERESCERESEARE
242,698,0007T (20154 : AR#117,044,000
TO)HE TRITEREMALER - R20154
12A318 - BREE A R¥542,0007T /) /5 HE
TMERRERE FtsRITE IR o

AEBEHRITERNFHBERFEN X
HERBLHFF)MT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Average effective interest rate on fixed- EEEFHZ FHERF X

rate borrowings

4.58% 5.24%
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28. BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (Continued)

